[T
eeo000
ee0000
eeo000
eec000
0000000000

°
L3
°
°
°
°
o
L3
°

(1]
_HONG KC




CONTENTS

Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors and Senior Management
Directors'Report

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

H &

RAER

MR

EERE

EEENRmEDN

EXkaRERE

BEEWmEE

TEEARE

RIE @ REARE

B EE S
FRBHLEMEEKER

e MHIRR
FARaEHR
FERERER
A M mAR M
REMBRHE




CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANCIC-

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
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Hong Kong
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BTS2

Year ended/as at 31 December

BZ12A8318LEE/

R12A31H
2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
Operating results (HK$’000) REEE(THET)
Revenue PN 3,499,762 2,869,846
Gross profit ESl 821,512 787,476
Profit before tax ik 5 BT 1) 110,978 244,439
Profit for the year F N A 100,452 184,676
Profit for the year attributable to RNRRER NEIRF R A
owners of the Company 103,525 172,674
Financial position (HK$'000) BRI (FBT)
Total assets BEE 2,537,083 1,809,711
Net current assets TMENVEEEFRR 397,189 671,204
Bank borrowings RITEXK 476,896 160,541
Net assets BEFE 1,214,096 1,096,689
Net assets attributable to owners of RABEEAELREEFE
the Company 1,059,290 1,058,352
Per share data (HK cents) FREE (GBAL)
Dividend per share B E
— Interim — FRHf 0.6 15
— Final — R 1.0 25
— Total — 48zt 1.6 40
Earnings per share Fhx&AF
— Basic — &R 5.92 10.09
— Diluted — s 5.91 1007
Net assets value per share HREEFE 69.4 627
Share price as at 31 December K12 A31 BHRRR(E 63.0 81.0
Key statistics FTEHE
Gross profit margin (%) FEFER (%) 23.5% 27.4%
Net profit margin (%) FF R (%) 2.9% 6.4%
Inventory turnover (days) FERAESRE(RE) 52.8 61.1
Debtors' turnover (days) B AR EEXH (KE) 67.1 68.5
Creditors’ turnover (days) ﬁ%}\ﬁ’]ﬁ@}i%{ (R&0) 50.5 424
Payout ratio (%) & B (%) 54.0% 37.9%
Dividend yield (%) g uﬁzm (%) 2.5% 4.9%
Return on total assets (%) 48 B 0] 7R K (%) 4.0% 10.2%
Return on net assets (%) BEFELOHR (%) 8.3% 16.8%
Gearing ratio (%) BEABHE %) 39.3% 14.6%
Current ratio (%) BN L 2 (%) 135.5% 195.5%
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On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of
Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (altogether,
the “Group”), | have the great pleasure of presenting to you our annual
report for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

The year 2016 continued to be another challenging year. We strategically
focus on the markets in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the
United States of America (the “US"). During the year ended 31 December
2016, we had made the following major investments:

acquired a 51% equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co.,
Ltd.* (AKX #0 %7 /8 /8 48 5 FR 2 7)) (‘Chengdu Xingang’) in the
PRC.

acquired an additional 14.81% equity interest in Dormeo North
America, LLC ("“Dormeo”) in the US, which became a 51.31%
subsidiary of the Company.

continued with the set up of the new manufacturing facility in the
Us.

The acquisition of Chengdu Xingang was completed on 1 March 2016,
After the acquisition and during the year ended 31 December 2016,
Chengdu Xingang contributed HK$143.2 million revenue and HKS5.7
million profit to the Group. We expect Chengdu Xingang will continue
to contribute to the revenue and profit of the Group in the coming years.
The acquisition further re-inforced our leadership position in the PRC
foam market.

The acquisition of Dormeo together with our investment in setting up
our manufacturing facility in the US have provided a lot of business
opportunities for us in the US, in particular, the “Octaspring” technology
used by Dormeo provided a new and innovative product solution to a
lot of our customers.

* English translated name is for identification only

BHEEEARLQA

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEREE

Lam Chi Fan
Chairman
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EFBRREKESBITESEERAR([REBFE])
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1E B YL 8% Dormeo North America, LLC([ Dormeo )
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
=S RNE

“We built one of the most state of the art foam factories in the world”,
was the comment on our US manufacturing facility by the CEO of one of
our largest customers in the US. We expect the US factory will be
operational in the second quarter of 2017. In addition to the US factory,
we are setting up another logistics centre in Phoenix, Arizona and we
have a new showroom in New York as well. All these US investments will
enable us to provide our customers with vertically integrated solutions
and shortened lead time thereby enabling us to better serve our
customers in the US.

We have successfully developed two new brands, named: “Zeopedic”
and “PureLUX". Together with our existing brands like “Sinomax”, “Spa
Supreme”, “ComfortZen”, “Dream Serenity” and “Tung Ah”, we have a
greater brand variety to serve different needs of our customers.

We are expecting a rapid sales growth particularly in the US market. We
will continue to seek for other business opportunities in the US market
and in the PRC market in the future.

HMBPIERBERREF 2 —ITBABERR « T3
BY T At RE -2 R ERRRRE | - RIITEH
FEBHE B 2017 FHE - FRE - RREBEBEIN
HPER DA EBMNBEEL S —ERS O - MK
PIMRAHREFETE - A ZEEXEREBERP
ARAZEFPREEEBRAMANR  BEIERME - BX
BEPIRHEERS -

BMEKFHAR SN ER @A - BN [ Zeopedic] &
[PureLUX] o # [A [Sinomax] * [Spa Supreme] *
[ ComfortZen] ~ [ Dream Serenity | % [Tung Ah |38 &% -
BMEEZ TN REEREREEPHTRFRE -

HAEPBESREHEER  XEMEHRETRER
Bo R BPSEENEELPEMSSHEMER
BB o

Patented OCTASPRING® Technology
B EREN SR R

Over the years, our bankers have been very supportive to finance our
investments. In the coming years, we expect the Group to have a rapid
sales growth. We thank our bankers who indicated that they will provide
continuous support to finance our expected increase in working capital
needs.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all
staff members for their dedication to the Group and the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”), valued customers, suppliers,
bankers and other business partners for the continuous support.

Lam Chi Fan
Chairman
28 March 2017
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BEEEARARA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the Group
increased by approximately HK$630.0 million or approximately 21.9% to
approximately HK$3,499.8 million (FY2015: HK$2,869.8 million).

In the past, the Group reported its segment under export sales, retail and
corporate sales and polyurethane foam sales. As our business continues
to expand and we have production facilities in the US as well as in the
PRC, the previous presentation by separating operating segments into
export sales, retail and corporate sales and polyurethane foam sales may
not be adequate to reflect the performance of our business. In view of
the concentration of our business on different geographical markets, the
Group segment’s reporting will be on the geographical location of the
markets and the respective sales during the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows:

B R B AT

BREE DB D HBA

REZE2016F12A3BLEFE - AEBENKRAEELD
6300 B BB T 4121.9% F 493,4998 A & 78 7L (2015 F
BHEFE : 28608 A&BBIT) °

BE - ARBREOHE  TERARBEERTREL
KEEZHD P - AR EBFEERLBAINEE R F
BB LERE  BEAMAEED MO /HAHEE T
ERATHERBEARAREEN 2577 2R L AT R AR
EBERA - ERRPINEBETRTRMMERTS - A
SENDMBMER AT HHBEE D - MREE2016F
RANBLFESBEOFEERNT -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEEE

2016 2015 Changes

2016 F 20156 o
HK$’000 HKS'000 %
FHET FHET %
China market 5 1,895,867 1,696,827 1.7
North American market dbEMS 1,494,402 1,118,756 336
Europe and other overseas markets BOM R E A GINT S 109,493 54,263 101.8
Total st 3,499,762 2,869,846 219

Despite the fact that the consumer demand in the China market was
generally weak, the sales in this region for the year ended 31 December
2016 increased by approximately 11.7% because of the increase in foam
and e-commerce sales.

In terms of sales channel, same-store sales recorded a decrease of
approximately 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2016. Same-store
sales for each of Life Stores and concession counters decreased by
approximately 5.3% and 7.2%, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2016. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
opened five new Life Stores in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Sales in the North American market recorded an approximately 33.6%
growth during the year ended 31 December 2016. With the setting up of
the production facility in the US, we were able to co-operate with several
new customers in the US.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, we have successfully
promoted our own brands including the two new brands “Zeopedic”
and “PureLUX". The sales of the two new brands amounted to
approximately HK$304 million.

AR MSEEEERIIESS  HREE2016F12
A3BIEFEZMEAEEEIND117%  REBRR
NEFrEHEELM -

FIEEREMS  REHEENEZE2016F 1283181
FEHSTBL67% - REZE2016F12A31HILEFE
EEELTEEESAMNRIEHED B TELA53% &
72%° REZE2016F12A31BILFE  KREBEERBE
MR AR RAEELE -

RILETHMEENEE2016F 12 A3 BILFEE » 8%
BHI336% LR - REBKRTAEREE - RFIsEsE
EENZETELAE-

HZE2016F12A3BLEFE BMKNEEEERE
B IE RN EFT b [ Zeopedic | K [PureLUX ] ° & PR 1E#T dh
PR EREEA U B ERBTT °

2016 &R 9



SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB DRI

Although the general economy in Europe and other overseas markets
were weak, we were able to achieve a sales growth of approximately
101.8% by selling newly-innovated products.

GROSS PROFIT

With an increase of approximately 21.9% in the Group's revenue, gross
profit (the “GP") increased by approximately HK$34.0 million or 4.3% to
approximately HK$821.5 million during the year ended 31 December
2016 as compared to approximately HK$787.5 million for FY2015. The GP
margin decreased by 3.9% from approximately 27.4% to approximately
23.5% as compared with FY2015. The major reasons for the decrease in
the GP margin were:

(1) several products were sold at a relatively lower margin to attract
new customers;

(2)  the new production facility in the US started the trial run of
production and a gross loss of HK$26.0 million was incurred
during the year ended 31 December 2016;

(3)  the cost of our key raw material of polyurethane foam, increased
significantly in the fourth quarter of 2016 as announced on 20
October 2016 and 21 February 2017.

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 December 2016
increased by approximately HK$106.6 million or 31.1 % to approximately
HK$449.0 million, as compared to approximately HK$342.4 million for
FY2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase in transportation
expenses that were incurred to better serve our customers in the PRC
and in the US. Staff costs increased as we recruited more sales staff to
strengthen the sales team in the US. In addition, advertising expenses
and royalty fees also increased which were in line with the sales growth.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016
increased by approximately HK$43.5 million or 26.8 % to approximately
HKS$206.1 million, as compared to approximately HK$162.6 million for
FY2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff cost from
newly acquired subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2016 .

Other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 mainly consisted
of research and development expenses amounted to approximately
HK$59.0 million, as compared to approximately HK$39.8 million for
FY2015. The Group has put much more resources on improving and
developing more foam features to meet the increasing customers’
needs.
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BEEEARARA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 decreased by
approximately HK$84.2 million or 45.6% to approximately HK$100.5
million, as compared to approximately HK$184.7 million for FY2015

The major reasons for the decrease were:

(1) net loss incurred on the trial run of the US production facility of
HKS$33.1 million;

(2)  loss related to Dormeo (including net loss on derecognition of an
associate, share of loss of an associate and the post-acquisition
loss) of HK$61.1 million; and

(3)  the significant increase in the cost of our key raw material as
mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$397.2 million, as compared to approximately
HK$671.2 million as at 31 December 2015.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$1,383.0 million of which approximately HK$562.3
million was utilized (31 December 2015: banking facilities amounted to
approximately HKS$1,251.8 million of which approximately HK$220.0
million was utilized) (which included bank borrowings and bills
payables).

The bills payables of the Group were secured by bank deposits of
approximately HK$5.1 million (31 December 2015: approximately HK$8.5
million).

Details of the maturity profile and the breakdown of the borrowings are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

We expect we will have more bank borrowings in 2017 to finance our
rapid business growth.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EA RS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately HK$285.0 million was incurred mainly for
the purchase of the Group’s plant and machinery (31

HK$86.1 million).

December 2015:

BEXRFX

BEWFNAJNBEFEAEBENEARAINA
28508 BB T EKFHFE%,\ZK%.EO S5 M 22
(201512 A31H : 861 AEBTT) ©

Financial ratios B & H R
As at
iy
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
2016 F 2015 £
12A31H 12H31H
Current ratio 0 mENE RO 135.5% 195.5%
Quick ratio @ REpLE RO 93.0% 153.0%
Gearing ratio ® BEBEBLERO 39.3% 14.6%
Debt to equity ratio B R ER Y 28.4% N/A

m

3

@

12

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

Quick ratio is equal to current assets less inventories and divided by current

liabilities.

Gearing ratio is derived by dividing interest-bearing debt incurred in the

ordinary course of business by total equity.

Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt
is defined to include all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents.
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BEEEARARA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group carries on business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and the US.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally in Renminbi
which can be largely offset by its revenue and expenditure in the PRC.
The Group does not expect any appreciation or depreciation of the
Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi which could materially affect the
Group's results on operations, and therefore no hedging instrument has
been employed. The Group will closely monitor the trend of the
Renminbi and take appropriate measures to deal with the foreign
exchange exposure if necessary.

TREASURY POLICY AND MARKET RISKS

The Group has a treasury policy that aims to better control its treasury
operations and lower borrowing cost. Such treasury policy requires the
Group to maintain an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents, and
sufficient available banking facilities to finance the Group’s daily
operations and to address short term funding needs. The Group reviews
and evaluates its treasury policy from time to time to ensure its adequacy
and effectiveness.

PROSPECTS

The polyurethane foam products are becoming more and more popular
in the US. With our new US production facility, we can have a vertically
integrated solution to customers including product design, foam
manufacturing, trimming and assembly, inventory and logistics
management as well as sales and marketing in the US. This is particularly
a good time where we can capture the increasing demand of
polyurethane foam business opportunities as evidenced by the increase
in number of new customers and sales amount.

The US factory is expected to be operational in the second quarter of
2017. By that time, we can produce polyurethane foam as well as the
end consumer health products to capture different segments in North
American market and shorten the lead time between production and
delivery and thus better serve our customers. Production volume will
gradually increase so that the cost of our products will decrease. Sales
growth is expected to be significant in the coming years in North
American market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE s wm BT

As mentioned in “Profit for the year” in the Management Discussion and N E IR BT am B2 o — &1 [ FR&E A | Pritt - % (&
Analysis section, there were several factors which led to the decrease in ~ Z B 2016 F % M A o AT - ZEREEZE N 20174F
profit for 2016. However, these factors will be eliminated or minimized in -~ N¥F 8RB R - & -

the second half year of 2017 where:

(1) we expect there will be a normal gross profit instead of gross loss (1)
when the US factory is operational starting from the second
quarter of 2017;

(2)  more new customers will be developed with increasing sales for  (2)
Dormeo in 2017. At the same time, we were implementing various
cost-cutting measures on production costs and selling expenses
on the operation of Dormeo. We expect these costing-cutting
measures will be fully in place in the second half year of 2017. In
fact, the loss in the first two months in 2017 decreased by 77.8%
comparing with the same period in 2016;

(3)  we generally quote our products at a cost-plus basis. However,  (3)
there is a time lag where it may take some time to discuss with our
customers on the prices when there is a sudden change in cost. If
the material cost does not fluctuate significantly, our selling prices
will gradually catch up the previous cost increase.

BRI EEEBEE 2017 F5 _FRAEER
BESIERER - MIFER -

&% Dormeo i IR EITE LR - ¥ 2017 F /Y
THEBE RIEIN - FR - H ¥ Dormeo 75 & &R
HERAMBERASETZHERER - HME
MZEMREEER2017E T EELEEN - B
B b - 2017 FERE AR EEER 2016 F R AR L
77.8% :

v

BPBERRAINEEEERERRE - AW -
A RAES  AIEEFERERER  §&
EREAR - MYHRALBERIERE  EES
BEZE EBERATHE o

New York Showroom

BARRII=

We are setting up another logistics centre of about 180,000 square feet  F {f93R 1E 7 25 FI| 5= AR M Bl Bk 52 37 2 — 1@ 49 180,000 F
in Phoenix, Arizona so that we can better serve our customers in the  FIR&ETER L - BRI AILEMSASZIEHE
western part of the North American market. We also have a showroom in ~ fEARTS o H IR L TR A — 498,700 F 5 IRy R EE -
New York of about 8,700 square feet to demonstrate newly developed  FIARRFFEER TEHEFS -

products to our customers there.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the PRC market, the Group offers a wide range of health and
household products, under its flagship brand “SINOMAX". The Group will
further enhance brand management through various marketing
activities to reinforce brand recognition and enhance the image of
health, relaxation and comfort of the “SINOMAX" brand. The Group will
continue to promote its brands and products to corporate customers so
as to attract more corporate sales. The Group is also expanding
e-commerce sales channels to promote and distribute its products.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, e-commerce sales of the
Group recorded a substantial growth of approximately HK$37.9 million
or 133.5% to approximately HK$66.3 million, as compared to
approximately HK$28.4 million for FY2015

As the sales growth for Europe and other overseas markets is significant,
we will devote more resources to explore more business opportunities
in these regions.

The Group will continue to upgrade the machinery so as to improve the
production efficiency and increase the competitiveness. The Group will
continue to devote more resources on research and development to
develop more innovative products and to enhance its product features.

The Group plans to continue to grow its business by exploring attractive
acquisition and collaboration opportunities that are compatible with its
business vision. As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Material
Acquisitions and Disposals”, the Group acquired Chengdu Xingang and
Dormeo during the year ended 31 December 2016 . We are also setting
up a new foam factory in Shandong province in the PRC to serve our
customers in that region. We expect that the Shandong factory will be
operational by the end of 2017. This will further enhance our leading
position in the polyurethane foam industry in the PRC.

Going forward, the Group will continue to look for other strategic
acquisitions and business opportunities.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EA RS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

(a)

(b)

16

Acquisition of Chengdu Xingang

On 19 February 2016, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
"Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Jiaming, an independent
third party of the Group. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement,
the Group conditionally agreed to acquire and Mr. Liu Jiaming
agreed to sell 51% of the equity interest in Chengdu Xingang, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, and is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
polyurethane foam, sales of decorative materials, sofa materials,
cloth materials and mattress materials. The cash consideration of
the acquisition is RMB81.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$97.9 million). The acquisition was completed on 1 March 2016.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HKS$0.4
million that related to the above acquisition have been excluded
from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised as an
expense in the current year, included in “other expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Step acquisition of Dormeo

On 9 September 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a first securities purchase agreement (the “First
Purchase Agreement’) with, among others, Dormeo, a company
formed as a limited liability company pursuant to the Delaware
Limited Liability Company Act, to acquire 36.5% of all of the
membership interest in Dormeo at an aggregate cash
consideration of United States dollars ("USS$”) 10 million
(equivalent to HK$77.5 million). Pursuant to the First Purchase
Agreement, the Group’s membership interest in Dormeo is initially
set at 36.5%, but will be automatically reduced to 25% at 31
December 2017 if certain performance warranties given by the
investee and its parent company are met ("Possible Reduction”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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BEEEARARA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 11 April 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a second securities purchase agreement (the
“Second Purchase Agreement’) with, among others, Dormeo,
to increase the Group's ownership in Dormeo by an additional
14.81% and to waive the Possible Reduction pursuant to First
Purchase Agreement for a cash consideration of US$2.5 million
(equivalent to HK$19.4 million) by way of capital injection to
Dormeo.

The acquisition was completed on 12 April 2016. Together with
the 25% membership interest previously held by the Group and
the 11.5% membership interest gain on the waiver of Possible
Reduction, the Group is able to exercise control over Dormeo and
Dormeo became a 51.31% subsidiary of the Company from that
date.

Dormeo is principally engaged in the business of selling pillows,
mattresses and related bedding accessories and other consumer
products in North America.

The Group recognised a net loss of approximately of HK$10.1
million as a result of the re-measurement of membership interests
in Dormeo previously held and the derivative financial assets
related to membership interests in Dormeo upon waiver of
Possible Reduction. The net loss is included in “Net loss on
derecognition of an associate” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Acquisition-related costs amounted to approximately HK$0.3
million that related to the above acquisition have been excluded
from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised as an
expense in the current year, included in “other expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

For details of the above-mentioned material acquisitions, please refer to
the announcements published by the Company dated 19 February 2016
and 12 April 2016.

For details of the material acquisition in 2015, please refer to the
announcement published by the Company dated 23 January 2015.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE & A B AT

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Prospects” in this annual
report, the Group does not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2016 .

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 January 2017 (the "Date of Grant’), the Company offered to grant
a total of 30,800,000 share options (the “Share Options”) to the
Directors and certain eligible employees of the Group (the “Grantees”),
subject to the acceptance of the Grantees and pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. The Grantees are entitled, subject to the terms and
conditions of grant and upon exercise, to subscribe for a total of
30,800,000 new ordinary shares of nominal value of HK0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company (“Shares”), representing approximately
1.76% of the 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as at the Date of Grant. The
exercises price is HK$0.69 per share.

All 30,800,000 Share Options are valid for a period of 5 years
commencing from the relevant vesting date and subject to the following
vesting periods:

(@)  50% of the Share Options granted to each Grantee shall vest on
the first anniversary date of the Date of Grant (i.e. 26 January 2018);
and

(b)  50% of the Share Options granted to each Grantee shall vest on
the second anniversary date of the Date of Grant (i.e. 26 January

2019).

For details of the grant of the Share Options, please refer to the
announcement published by the Company dated 26 January 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI IR

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the employee headcount of the Group was
3,429 (31 December 2015: 3,197) and the total staff costs, including
Directors’ remuneration and share option expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$363.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
(FY2015: approximately HK$275.1 million). The significant increase in staff
costs was primarily due to salary increment, increase in social insurance
contributions, housing provident fund and share option expenses.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to employees
including housing and travel allowances depending on their grade and
ranking within the Group. The Group also maintains medical insurance
for the benefit of its employees. The Group conducts induction training
for all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends on
their specific field of operation. The Group also operates an employee
incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the form of
promotions, salary raises and monetary bonuses, and a share option
scheme.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEZNENEEE

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company who held office during the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LAM Chi Fan, aged 58

Mr. Lam is a co-founder of the Group, the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Lam is also the chairman of the Company’s nomination
committee and a member of the Company’s remuneration committee.
Mr. Lam was appointed to the Board in June 2012. Mr. Lam is responsible
for formulation of the overall business strategies and management of
the Group and business planning. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years’ experience in the
polyurethane foam business. Prior to founding the Group on 19 January
2000, he was a director of Luen Tai Component Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in the sales of foam products,
from March 1991 to July 1996. He was appointed as a member of the
13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Jiashan
Zhejiang Province Committee (FFBI A RBUA B #AT T4 = =%
F+=IEZEEREZE ) in February 2012, the vice president of the
Shau Kei Wan District of the Scout Association of Hong Kong (B8 E &
Be L EEEEIER) in August 2012 and in September 2013 and an
affiliated supervisor of the Huangpu Customs of the PRC (FF ZE A R 2%
MBI =S @M EEEFEEE8) in April 2014 and the president of
the Dongguan City Tang Xia Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (RZEMEEIINEIRE R EHEER) in March 2016. Mr.
Lam is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive
Director; the father of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member
of the Group; and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director.
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BEEEARARA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEUNG Tung, aged 41

Mr. Cheung is the President of the Company and an executive Director.
Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 21 July 2003 as the Chairman’s assistant,
responsible for handling the information technology infrastructure of
the Group. He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He is currently
responsible for the overall management and daily operations of the
Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Cheung assisted in setting up C&T Solutions
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in
providing information technology services, in March 2000. Mr. Cheung
holds a bachelor's degree in computer engineering from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a master’s degree in business
administration jointly issued by Northwestern University and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Cheung was granted the
"Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2014" by the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Cheung is a nephew of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the
Chairman and an executive Director; a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an
executive Director; and a cousin of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a senior
management member of the Group.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

s=ZMEREEE

Mr. CHEN Feng, aged 53

Mr. Chen is an executive Director. He was appointed to the Board in June
2012. He is responsible for the overall management of the export sales
business and product development of the Group. He is also the key
executive in mapping the sales and marketing strategies in the US
through Sinomax USA Inc. (“Sinomax USA”"). He is currently a director of
various wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the
Group on 19 January 2000 as an export sales manager and became the
vice president of the Group in 2007. He assisted in setting up Sinomax
USA, the company engaging in export sales in the US, and has been the
president and director of Sinomax USA since its establishment in 2005.
Mr. Chen holds a Master of Science degree in industrial engineering from
Louisiana State University in Baton Rouge, US and a bachelor of
engineering degree in safety engineering from Beijing College of
Economics ( 3t X #8 & £ Bt ), now known as Capital University of
Economics and Business (& #B 4 & 5 A 2), in Beijing, the PRC. Mr.
Chen is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director.

Mr. LAM Kam Cheung, aged 49

Mr. Lam is an executive Director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam joined the Group in May 2004 as the
financial controller and was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He was
appointed as the chief financial officer in August 2013 and is responsible
for the financial management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years’
experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he
was an executive director and company secretary of Yeebo (International
Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0259), a listed public company in Hong
Kong, from October 1995 to May 2004. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

22  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BRE AL - 53 5%

PROCAE BARRBIHITESE - HR2012F 6 AEZEMA
Ex2 FAEREERASEMNEDHEEEBESD
LR o RN 38 Sinomax USA Inc. ([ Sinomax USA L) ik &
FIRTEBHE R MIGRBEHNEZTHRAE - FEATAXR
SEZE2EMBABIMNES - BREEME 200051 A 19
HIMAREE - EEE D OHELLIE - WH 2007 FHA
AEBABIBE - B BBIAKNIL Sinomax USA (RE B2
EMBAT  #EEFREOMHE) - X8 HR 2005 F/K
AR —E FE{E Sinomax USABI B GRS = - [RILAEE
UREBREEREATNESIILTBMNIABEETET
EWBEEE T2 - RANF B Re It R ESEE (3R
HMABMKCEESRE)NBLEIRRIREE T B
i o FREEAMEZ (ITER)BHRNED ©

MERFESRE » 495%

MALEBERRRRITES - BFMBE RATIWE  #
SoETE 2004 5 A INA RS BIEEIEEE - W 2012
FoABZAMAESS - HR2013F8AETERY
BE AEAEEOTHEE - MEERSHNESH
HEAB20F L - MAKREER - HFE 19959410 A
F2004F5 AAEE LT ARARES (BIFRIERR) AR
ANE)(PRDRIE - 0259) ITEERARME - MEAE
EEBPYAZREIHEESLEM - AR S S

A B NERFFARSHABTEFTE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEAEEE

Ms. LAM Fei Man, aged 42

Ms. Lam is an executive Director. She is responsible for the Group's
purchasing operations. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lam joined the Group in January 2000 and served as the
assistant administration manager of Sinomax (Holding) Group Limited, a
predecessor company of Sinomax Enterprises, until January 2003. From
June 2003 to January 2006 Ms. Lam worked as a merchandiser in Capital
88 Incorporation Limited, a company engaged in general trading. Ms.
Lam rejoined the Group in February 2006 as purchasing manager. She
was appointed to the Board in June 2012. Ms. Lam has over 15 years’
experience in purchasing and logistics. She holds a bachelor's degree in
commerce jointly issued by the University of Canberra and the Hong
Kong Baptist University. Ms. Lam is a cousin of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director; the daughter of a
cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director; and aunt of Mr. Cheung
Tung, the President and an executive Director.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEZNENEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 50

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
audit committee and corporate governance committee and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed
to the Board on 4 March 2014. Mr. Wong is currently an executive
director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3322), a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was
previously the chief financial officer of Besunyen Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 0926) from September 2011 to September 2013 and
China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from May 2007 to
April 2010, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.
Between June 2002 and June 2006, Mr. Wong was a senior finance
manager of China Netcom Group Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (a
company previously listed in Hong Kong (former stock code: 0906)
which subsequently merged with China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited
(stock code: 0762), a listed public company in Hong Kong). Between July
1989 and December 1999, Mr. Wong was employed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international public accounting firm, in
Hong Kong and was an audit manager. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a master's degree in business administration from the
Australian Graduate School of Management, jointly issued by the
University of New South Wales and the University of Sydney. Mr. Wong is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon, aged 58

Professor Lam is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the corporate governance committee of
the Company. Professor Lam was appointed to the Board on 4 March
2014. Professor Lam joined the University of Hong Kong as full-time
teaching staff in September 1989 and is currently the Professor of
Management at the Faculty of Business and Economics at the University
of Hong Kong. He has published a number of academic papers and case
analysis on topics such as corporate strategies, organisation
development and operations management. Professor Lam is an
independent non-executive director of Overseas Chinese Town (Asia)
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366), Kwan On Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1559) and a non-executive director of Jacobson Pharma
Corporation Limited (stock code: 2633), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. In the past three years, Professor Lam has
been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Clean
Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Jin Cai Holdings Limited, stock
code: 1250), Chun Sing Engineering Holdings Limited (stock code: 2277),
King Force Security Holdings Limited (stock code: 8315) and Glory Flame
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8059). Prior to joining the University of
Hong Kong, Professor Lam was a regional support manager of Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce from 1987 to 1989. Professor Lam holds a
doctorate degree in commerce from the Australian National University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P., aged 38

Mr. Fan is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee, the corporate governance committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fan was appointed to the
Board on 4 March 2014. He is a managing director of CW. Fan & Co.
Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chuang’s China Investments Limited (stock code: 0298), Fulum Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443), Culturecom Holdings Limited (stock
code: 343), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 2882) and Nameson Holdings Limited (stock code: 1982), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. In the last three years,
Mr. Fan had been an independent non-executive director of Milan
Station Holdings Limited from March 2013 to July 2015 (stock code:
1150), LT Commercial Real Estate Limited from March 2013 to December
2016 (stock code: 112) and On Real International Holdings Limited from
September 2015 to August 2016 (stock code: 8245), all of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Fan was appointed as the
chairman of the 23rd council of Hong Kong United Youth Association
with effect from 1 July 2015. He is also a committee member of the 10th
and 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Zhejiang
Province Committee* (PEIARBUAHE S ZMN I EE TREKLSE
+—/EZ& B®), the 4th and 5th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shenzhen Committee* (FF B A RIBUA 1 78 2 3% 55 MU &
&% R EFRITTZE E ), member of HKSAR Committee on the
Promotion of Civic Education, HKSAR Justices of the Peace and the vice
chairman of Zhejiang Province United Young Association. Mr. Fan holds
a bachelor's degree in business administration in accounting and finance
from the University of Hong Kong and a bachelor's degree in laws from
the University of London. Mr. Fan is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. ZHANG HWO Jie, aged 54

Mr. Zhang is an independent non-executive Director, a member of the
audit committee and the corporate governance committee of the
Company. Mr. Zhang was appointed to the Board on 4 March 2014. Mr.
Zhang is currently the chairman of EVA Precision Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0838), a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in marketing, strategic
planning and corporate management in manufacturing industry. Mr.
Zhang was granted with the “Young Industrialist Award of Hongkong”
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2008, and was bestowed
as an honorary fellow by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries in 2014. He is currently a honorary chairman of The Hong
Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, a honorary president of Hong
Kong Mould and Product Technology Association and the president of
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council.

*English translated name is for identification purpose only
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

s=ZMEREEE

Mr. WU Tak Lung, aged 51

Mr. WU is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee and the corporate governance committee of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed to the Board on 4 March 2014. Mr. Wu
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.
Mr. Wu had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an international
accounting firm, for five years and had worked in several companies in
Hong Kong as head of corporate finance and/or executive director. Mr.
Wu had over 10 years' experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Wu
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Media Corporation Limited (stock code: 1000), China Machinery
Engineering Corporation* (1 Bl #4588 TI2 AR AR A A]) (stock
code: 1829), Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited (stock code:
2277) and Kam Hing International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2307),
all are listed public companies in Hong Kong, and First Tractor Company
Limited (a company listed in both Hong Kong, stock code: 0038, and
Shanghai). During the past three years, Mr. Wu served as an independent
non-executive director of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, a listed
company in Singapore, and Aupu Group Holding Limited, which was a
listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu currently is the member of the
committee of Jiangsu Provincial People’s Political Consultative
Conference, honorary member of the Council and the Court of Hong
Kong Baptist University, the honorary chairman of the North Kwai Chung
Scout Association and the executive vice-president of Hong Kong —
GuangDong Youth Exchange Promotion Association. Mr. Wu holds a
bachelor's degree in business administration in accounting from the
Hong Kong Baptist University and a master's degree in business
administration (Finance) jointly issued by the University of Manchester
and the University of Wales.

*English translated name is for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. LAM Sze Chiu, aged 34

Mr. Lam is the General Manager of Sinohome Household Products
(Shenzhen) Ltd (“Sinomax Shenzhen"). He is responsible for supervision
of the daily operation of Sinomax Shenzhen. Mr. Lam joined the Group in
2007 and has been working as the marketing director of the Group from
2012 to 2016. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor of arts degree with honours from
York University in Toronto, Canada. Mr. Lam is the son of Mr. Lam Chi
Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director, and a cousin
of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director.

Mr. QIAN Hong Xiang, aged 53

Mr. Qian is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, namely, Trade
Sincere Limited (“Trade Sincere”), Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co.
Limited (“Sinomax Kuka") and Haining Sinomax Trading Co. Limited
(“Haining Sinomax”) and a general manager of Sinomax Kuka. He is
responsible for supervision of daily operation and management of
Sinomax Kuka. Mr. Qian joined the Group in 2000 and worked as a
general manager and chief of foam research. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Qian worked at Tung Ah (China Holdings) Limited, a company
engaged in the chemical and plastic business, as a factory manager and
researcher in foams from 1993 to 2000. Mr. Qian has 20 years' experience
in foam production and research and has participated in formulating
more than five national standards. Mr. Qian was a member of the
Standardisation Administration of the PRC (FEIERIZE(LEH L B
&) until April 2018 and an expert in foaming plastics of the China
Plastics Processing Industry Association (7 BIZEB#} i1 T T2 #%E) with
tenure between November 2005 to September 2017. He was presented
the National Science & Technology Progress Award (third class)* (FH224
fiir 3 2 = 55 148) by the China Light Industry Council* (1 B8 T 28564
&) in March 2008, the China Standards Innovation Contribution Award*
(P EIZXEAIFT B B 2E) jointly by the General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (A A R L FNEH
RE EEBRBIBZALR) and the Standardisation Administration of
the People’s Republic of China (FEIBIZRIZE{LEELZER) in
December 2009. He was also awarded Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC* (R BIZE 11T 3 55 T1E%) by the China Plastics
Processing Industry Association (7 EI¥BR )1 T T2 E) in May 2009,
and Good Citizen* (T{E¥7/E &) between 2011 and 2012 in January
2013, Model Worker of Haining* (8% 1 85 E)#R &) between 2008 and
2012 in April 2013 and Outstanding Entrepreneur of 2011* (20114 €18
FEZK) in March 2012 by the Jiaxing People’s Government (32 E
AR

*English translated name is for identification purpose only
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. YUE Wai Fun, aged 42

Ms. Yue was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax Health
Household Products Limited (“Sinomax Health”) in June 2012. Ms. Yue
is responsible for supervision of the daily operation and management of
Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue joined the Group in 2004 and served as
marketing manager and brand & marketing manager prior to being
appointed as the general manager of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue holds a
bachelor of social science degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. CHEN Xiao Hua, aged 55

Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2013 and was appointed as a general
manager of Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane Household Products
Limited* (22 55 88 O )T ) B & BE 5 /& M dn B IR 2 7)) (‘Sinomax
Zhejiang") in October 2013. Mr. Chen is responsible for supervision of
the daily operation and management of Sinomax Zhejiang. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen was a general manager of Sinomax
Polyurethane (Shanghai) Co, Ltd.* (E2sE BB & Bs (L/8) BRAE]), a
company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung and
Mr. Chen Feng, the executive Directors, and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, the
mother of Mr. Cheung Tung, and engaging in foam manufacturing, from
2002 to 2013. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in foam
production and research. Mr. Chen completed a business administration
course for company executives in Zhejiang University* (3 )T X ) in
November 2006.

*English translated name is for identification purpose only
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 105 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK0.6 cent per Share amounted to approximately
HKS$10.5 million was paid to the Shareholders during the year ended 31
December 2016 . The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, amounting to approximately HK$17.5
million to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 21 June 2017. The final dividend is subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 9 June 2017 (“AGM"). The final dividend will
be paid on 4 July 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$0.6 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Directors consider that the Company's reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders comprise the share premium and the
accumulated profits which amounted to approximately HK$593.4 million
as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$459.0 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
paying distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has share option schemes, the details of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Options” in this annual report. Save as
aforesaid, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows and their biographical
information is set out in section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheung Tung (President)

Mr. Chen Feng

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung

Ms. Lam Fei Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P.
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie

Mr. Wu Tak Lung

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, four
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie
and Mr. Wu Tak Lung will retire at the AGM, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
LIABILITY INSURANCE

The articles of association of the Company provided that every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is quitted.

The Company has arranged approved Directors’ liability insurance policy
to protect the Directors against potential costs and liability arising from
claims brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
member of the Group which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in
which any Director or the Director’s connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had any interests in any business which
competes or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regards to the
comparable market practice, individual performance and the Group'’s
operating results. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) ("SFO”)) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred
to therein; or (c) were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code") as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares B REBRONEE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares and the issued Shares
underlying Shares as at
held under 31 December 2016
Name of Director Nature of interest equity derivatives (Note 1)
i
201612831 H
BEROR EETROBR
BARSTET AR BEBDL
EEME ERtE RO HNEER (PfF&E1)
Mr. Lam Chi Fan Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 1,095,472,000 62.60%
MENFTE BIEE TR L A (5 2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,650,000 0.38%
EmfAa A MEE3)
Mr. Cheung Tung Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,376,200 0.36%
SRR A Ema A (ME3)
Mr. Chen Feng Beneficial owner (Note 3) 3,050,000 0.17%
PR, 7 A Ema A fEE3)
Ms. Lam Fei Man Beneficial owner (Note 3) 2,150,000 0.12%
MEZ/ A BEma A (fiEs)
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung Beneficial owner (Note 3) 2,000,000 0.11%
MREBRESTAE EmBEAAMEE3)
Notes: (T
1. The calculation is based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as 1. SFEERTIBRENR206FENANHERITRNDAH A
at 31 December 2016. 1,750,002,000 % °
2. These Shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises’). 2. ZERMBEHBIMEAR AT ([ERBLE|)MAE - &
Sinomax Enterprises is legally and beneficially owned as to 50% by Chi Fan ## B2 BIH Chi Fan Holding Limited & Frankie {2 504 € &
Holding Limited and as to 50% by The Frankie Trust. The Frankie Trust is a BB 50% s M 50% 58 © Frankie (S 5E Jh M E LA B
discretionary family trust established by Mr. Lam Chi Fan as settlor and Vistra BIEREEE - RENBBER T A » M Vistra Trustees (BVI)
Trustees (BVI) Limited (“Vistra”, previously known as Orangefield Trustees (BVI) Limited ([Vistra] A7 %8 A& ([Orangefield Trustees (BVI)
Limited) acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are Mr. Lam Limited]) BZFEA © Frankie G iR X m A BME L4 R H
Chi Fan and his family members. RIGRLE °
3. Each of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Chen Feng, Ms. Lam Fei Man 3. HITEEMENLLE  RIRELE - BELAE  HMEZ/NER

and Mr. Lam Kam Cheung, was granted share options to subscribe for 6,650,000
Shares, 6,376,200 Shares, 3,050,000 Shares, 2,150,000 Shares and 2,000,000
Shares, respectively, under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, all of which are
still outstanding and details of which are disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” on pages 45 to 49 of this annual report.

MR E A EREE A AASERIBRENZDREET
B8 A% #E A 52 B86,650,000 ~ 6,376,200 * 3,050,000 * 2,150,000 K&
2,000,000 IRAZ (D + B EPEEATIEIN » HFFIBERAFHRE 45549
B RS — 8P IREE -
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Long positions in associated corporation — Sinomax Enterprises

EBEENGE R — EmBEhE

Approximate

Number percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest of shares shareholding
EEnA EEME R E BMAOREEDL
Mr. Lam Chi Fan Beneficiary of The Frankie Trust 15 50%
MENEE Frankie R 5ERI R A
Mr. Cheung Tung Beneficiary of The Cheung's Family Trust 5 16.67%
SRIRSTAE RERRGERNZEA
Mr. Chen Feng Beneficiary of The Feng Chen’s Family Trust 5 16.67%
PRAELSE 4 BRIEARKERNZEA

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2016, had any rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company been
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years old, or had any such rights been exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years old, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the person(s) (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FTERRZER

R2016F 128318 BEAAL(FEERARFEZESHH
TEE) AL ARG T B LENIRIE RS R
EIEDIE 336 AT ENEDMAERIAENT ¢

Long positions in Shares BOWTFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued Shares
as at
31 December
Number 2016
Name Nature of interest of Shares (Note 1)
i
201612831 H
ERITROAD
BEBDE
HER BB ERME R EE (BffaE1)
Sinomax Enterprises (Note 2) Beneficial interest 1,095,472,000 62.60%
BHBAME(HE2) B
Chi Fan Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,095,472,000 62.60%
PG EEES (Note 3)
(BIE3)
Vistra (Note 4) Trustee of various trusts 1,095,472,000 62.60%
(Mf5E4) ZEMEEEFEA
Li Ching Hau Interest of spouse 1,102,122,000 62.98%
mE [ (Note 5)
(B &ES)
Notes: st -

1. The calculation is based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as

at 31 December 2016.

2. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 50%, 16.67%, 16.67% and 16.67% by
Chi Fan Holding Limited, Wing Yiu Investments Limited, The James’ Family
Holding Limited and Venture Win Holdings Limited, respectively, and
beneficially owned in the same proportion by The Frankie Trust, The Cheung's
Family Trust, The James’ Family Trust and The Feng Chen’s Family Trust,

respectively.

HEAERDIBER06FENRANBERTROEE A
1,750,002,000 % °

B % B ¥ 9 Bl fChiFan Holding Limited + Wing Yiu
Investments Limited ~ The James’ Family Holding Limited
Venture Win Holdings Limited # 4 50% * 16.67% * 16.67% &
16.67% % E 7+ I 5 Bl B Frankie (578 « REK K& (558
James KIEEFE MR K RSt A BRI L P EamiEs -
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3. These Shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 50%
by Chi Fan Holding Limited.

4. Vistra acts as the trustee of The Frankie Trust, The James’ Family Trust, The
Cheung'’s Family Trust and The Feng Chen'’s Family Trust. The beneficiaries of
The Frankie Trust are Mr. Lam Chi Fan and his family members. The beneficiaries
of The Cheung's Family Trust are Mr. Cheung Tung and his family members. The
beneficiaries of The James’ Family Trust are Ms. Cheung Shui Ying and her
family members. The beneficiaries of The Feng Chen’s Family Trust are Mr. Chen
Feng and his family members.

5. These interests belong to Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the spouse of Ms. Li Ching Hau.
Under the SFO, Ms. Li Ching Hau is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares which Mr. Lam Chi Fan is interested.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had continuing
connected transactions with certain connected persons, details of which
have been disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June
2014 (the “Prospectus”) and the announcements of the Company
dated 12 April 2016, 29 April 2016 and 30 December 2016. Certain
continuing connected transactions are exempt from one or more of the
reporting, announcement, shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following are the continuing connected transactions of the Group
that are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements but
otherwise exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(i)  Sale of foams by Sinomax International Trading Limited
(“Sinomax Trading”) and Studio Moderna S. A and its
subsidiaries (“Studio Moderna”)

Studio Moderna is the holding company of SMSA North America
Holdings, LLC which holds 48.69% equity interest in Dormeo, an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, Studio
Moderna is a connected person of the Company. Each subsidiary
of Studio Moderna is an associate of Studio Moderna and hence a
connected person of the Company.
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F4812H 2016F4H298 M2016F12A308 & A
LR ETHEREIIR EMBRR4AEMFE
HNeET—HRZEBRR N5  BRRALERFEEZ
HIE o

NTRAEERE LT 4AZAETHRREFEEZR
E o BER R RIER ENRERER S

iy EZHEHREZERLT(EHBEZS ) K Studio
Moderna S. A & E [ff & 2 7] ([ Studio Moderna ]) tH
&%

Studio Moderna /& SMSA North America Holdings, LLC
Z R A A] 0  SMSA North America Holdings, LLC
BAERRRKNMEEIEREWEB A R Dormec A
48.69% % #E ° A3 FA Studio Moderna B4 A A HE T~ —
FEIB /@ 2 A1 Ay = ZR%E + Studio Moderna 282 A
#IEE:E A L ° Studio Moderna i N & EI M B A &) &
Studio ModernaJBEE A - HUBAR QA RIMIEEA L o



On 12 April 2016, Sinomax Trading, as supplier, entered into a
procurement agreement (the 2016 Studio Moderna
Procurement Agreement”) with Studio Moderna as purchaser in
relation to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group
to Studio Moderna and its subsidiaries for a term commencing
from the date of the 2016 Studio Moderna Procurement
Agreement to 31 December 2016. Parties to the 2016 Studio
Moderna Procurement Agreement will, from time to time, agree
to a price list setting out the price, specifications and delivery
schedule in respect of each type of foam products, which the
purchase orders must adhere to.

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Trading entered into a new
procurement agreement (the “"Renewal Procurement
Agreement’) with Studio Moderna to govern the sale and
purchase of polyurethane foams between Sinomax Trading and
Studio Moderna for the financial year commencing from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017 after the expiry of the 2016 Studio
Moderna Procurement Agreement.

Details of the terms of the 2016 Studio Moderna Procurement
Agreement and the Renewal Procurement Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12 April 2016, 30
December 2016 and 6 January 2017.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of such
continuing connected transactions under the 2016 Studio
Moderna Procurement Agreement and the Renewal Procurement
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 and ending 31
December 2017 were USD30 million respectively. The total
amount of sales to Studio Moderna pursuant to the 2016 Studio
Moderna Procurement Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately USD9.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$70.2 million).
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MR2016F4R 128 BEHEBES (EAMER) M
Studio Moderna (1E & B 75 ) 5] 2 # & 19 3% ([ 2016
£ Studio Moderna B &) - A BHETEE
[ Studio Moderna M H ] 8 7~ &) 435 /& 5 fE )0 R &=
& HAPR B 2016 4 Studio Moderna EREE 1755 B e
H 22016512 A 318 ° 2016 F Studio Moderna %
BRI NS I IRHE—REEE - 3J|\5E
VOREMME « B NATERRRE - MRS
BAAE B o

M20168F 128308 B B & 5 HStudio
Modermaz] (2 — A FT R B (EERBIHE])
AR % 2016 Studio Moderna Ex B % 8 B2 EE s B2
g ) B Studio Moderna Z IR 2017 F 1 A1 B E B
FE2017F1N2ANB LV BRFENBRIERRES -

2016 Studio Moderna BR B p 7% I S B B BE 1 s 16K
FIEARBLEET 2R SINERNA ARG B A
2016%F 4 128 ~2016F 12 4308 K&2017F1 A4
=N

BERHFE2016F 12831 BIEFEREE2017F
12 A 31 B 1k £ & 2016 Studio Moderna £ B 17 2% &
BEREDS TRSEEMB I ZFELRS
BA0BEEET REZE2016F12831B ILFE -
B #2016 Studio Moderna£% B 1 i 1A Studio
Modermna & < R4 A1 B & XL (BER 702
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Sale of foams by Sinomax Zhejiang to Hangzhou Gu Jia
Bedding Co., Limited* (“Gu Jia Bedding”) (M MEXBEAHE
RAE])

Gu Jia Bedding is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Gu
Jia Household, Co,, Limited* ("Gu Jia Household") (B85 K /& I%
19 B BR A &)), which holds 40% equity interest in Sinomax Kuka
and hence a substantial shareholder of an indirect non-wholly
subsidiary of the Company. As such, Gu Jia Household is a
connected person of the Company and Gu Jia Bedding is an
associate of Gu Jia Household and hence a connected person of
the Company.

On 29 April 2016, Sinomax Zhejiang, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as supplier entered into a
procurement agreement (the “2016 Zhejiang Procurement
Agreement’) with Gu Jia Bedding as purchaser to govern the sale
and purchase of polyurethane foams by issuing purchase orders
from time to time to Sinomax Zhejiang, pursuant to which the
Group will sell and Gu Jia Bedding will purchase polyurethane
foams for a term commencing from the date of the 2016 Zhejiang
Procurement Agreement to 31 December 2016. The price, type,
amount and specification of polyurethane foams to be purchased
depend on the purchase orders issued by Gu Jia Bedding to
Sinomax Zhejiang from time to time, provided that the price of
polyurethane foams shall be with reference to market price.

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Zhejiang entered into a new
procurement agreement (“the Renewal Zhejiang Procurement
Agreement”) with Gu Jia Bedding to govern the sale and
purchase of polyurethane foams between Sinomax Zhejiang and
Gu Jia Bedding for the financial year commencing from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017 after the expiry of the 2016 Zhejiang
Procurement Agreement.

Details of the terms of the 2016 Zhejiang Procurement Agreement
and the Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 April 2016 and 30
December 2016, respectively.
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(iii)

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of such
continuing connected transactions under the 2016 Procurement
Agreement and the Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and ending 31 December
2017 were RMB10.0 million and RMB12.0 million respectively. The
total amount of sales to Gu Jia Bedding pursuant to the 2016
Zhejiang Procurement Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB7.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$8.9 million).

Sale of foams by Haining Sinomax and Sinomax Kuka to Gu
Jia Household, Zhejiang Gu Jia Meilin Household Co.,
Limited* I IEER M KRB H R 2D 7)) (“Gu Jia Meilin”), Gu
Jia Bedding and Hangzhou Gu Jia Intelligence Household
Co. Limited* (FIMBEREEKEER D F) (“Gu Jia
Intelligence”)

Gu Jia Household holds 40% equity interest in Sinomax Kuka,
which is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
As a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, Gu Jia
Household is a connected person of the Company. Each of Gu Jia
Meilin, Gu Jia Bedding and Gu Jia Intelligence, being the direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Gu Jia Household, is an associate of
Gu Jia Household and hence a connected person of the Company.

On 18 December 2015, Haining Sinomax as supplier entered into
a procurement agreement (the “2016 Haining Procurement
Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and Gu Jia Meilin as
purchasers, pursuant to which the Group will sell and Gu Jia
Household and Gu Jia Meilin will purchase polyurethane foams for
a term commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.
The price, type, amount and specification of polyurethane foams
to be purchased depend on the purchase orders issued by Gu Jia
Household and Gu Jia Meilin to Haining Sinomax from time to
time, provided that the price of polyurethane foams shall be with
reference to market price.

On 30 December 2016, Haining Sinomax and Sinomax Kuka
entered into a procurement agreement (the “2017 Renewal
Haining Procurement Agreement”’) with Gu Jia Household, Gu
Jia Meilin, Gu Jia Bedding and Gu Jia Intelligence to govern the
sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Haining
Sinomax and Sinomax Kuka and Gu Jia Household, Gu Jia Meilin,
Gu Jia Bedding and Gu Jia Intelligence for the financial year
commencing from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 after the
expiry of the 2016 Haining Procurement Agreement.

(iii)
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Details of the terms of the 2016 Haining Procurement Agreement
and 2017 Renewal Haining Procurement Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 30
December 2016, respectively.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of such
continuing connected transactions under the 2016 Procurement
Agreement and the 2017 Renewal Haining Procurement
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016 and ending 31
December 2017 were RMB154.0 million and RMB170.0 million,
respectively. The total amount of sales to Gu Jia Household and
Gu Jia Meilin pursuant to the 2016 Haining Procurement
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB128.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$150.0 million).

Lease agreements between Dongguan Sinohome and
Dongguan Donglian Furniture Co., Ltd.* (R REH{REHE
FR 2 7)) (“Dongguan Donglian”)

Dongguan Donglian is indirectly wholly-owned by Sinomax
Enterprises, the controlling Shareholder. Dongguan Donglian is
therefore an associate of Sinomax Enterprises and a connected
person of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinohome, as tenant, entered
into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement of Dongguan
Sinohome") with Dongguan Donglian, as landlord, for the lease
of No. 1 Dajieling Road, Shahu Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan,
Guangdong Province, PRC (‘Dongguan Premises”) for a term of
slightly more than two years at a monthly rental of approximately
RMBO.7 million.

On 18 December 2015, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a
renewal lease agreement (the "Renewal Dongguan Lease
Agreement”’) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease of
Dongguan Premises for a term of three years ending 31 December
2018 at a monthly rental of approximately RMB1.3 million after the
expiry of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome.

Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan
Sinohome and the Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
Prospectus and the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, respectively.
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The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of such
continuing connected transactions under the Lease Agreement of
Dongguan Sinohome and the Renewal Dongguan Lease
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 and each of the
two years ending 31 December 2018 were RMB15.7 million,
respectively. The total amount of rent paid pursuant to the
Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately RMB15.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$18.3 million).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 and confirmed that
the transactions had been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

(c)  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued the unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter had been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all the
connected and continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 and all the above
continuing connected transactions was entered into in the manners
stated above.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above, these related party transactions either did not constitute
connected transaction/continuing connected transactions or
constituted connected transaction/continuing connected transactions
that were exempted from all disclosure and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the Group
financial performance during the year ended 31 December 2016 using
financial key performance indicators can be found in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections on page
6 and pages 9 to 19 of this annual report, respectively.

Environmental Policy and Performance

In conducting the business, the Group’s objective is to minimize the
adverse effects of its operations on the environment. In addition, in order
to comply with the applicable environmental protection laws, the Group
has established an environmental management system in its operations
in accordance with ISO 14001:2004 international standards and obtained
ISO 14001 certification. The environmental management system will be
reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. The Group has complied with a number of PRC
environmental protection laws in connection with water pollutants, air
pollutants, solid waste pollutants, as well as noise pollution generated
from its manufacturing operations. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group was in compliance with the applicable PRC laws and
regulations on environmental laws and was not subject to any fines or
legal action resulting from incidents of non-compliance with any
applicable PRC environmental regulations, nor was there any threatened
or pending action by any PRC environmental regulatory authority.

Other green initiatives and measures have been adopted by the Group
to control the use of energy and resources in the production, business
operation and management activities so as to achieve economic benefit.
Such initiatives include reducing manufacturing wastes by using scrap
foams to produce pillows and mattresses, reducing electricity
consumption by using the LED lightings and by using the diesel hot
water system operated by solar energy, recycling of used papers,
creating a paperless work environment and promoting water saving
practices.
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Further details of the Environmental Policy and Performance during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 70 to 97 of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2016, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers, Customers, and other
Stakeholders

The Group's long term success depends on its employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders. The Group recognizes the importance
of its employees, it offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees including housing and travel allowances
depending on their grade and ranking within the Group. The Group also
maintains medical insurance for the benefit of its employees. The Group
conducts induction training for all of its new employees and on-going
training from time to time during their employment. The nature of
training offered depends on their specific field of operation. The Group
has adopted a share option scheme and also operates an employee
incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the form of
promotions, salary raises and monetary bonuses.

The Group strives to maintain and enhance the relationship with its
customers and to maintain a fair and co-operating relationship with its
suppliers. The Group also takes an active role to take part in the
communities where it operates.

Further details of the Group's relationship with employees, suppliers,
customers and other stakeholder are set out in Environmental, Social
and Governance Report on pages 70 to 97 of this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties
(1)  Risk of customer concentration

Sales to the Group’s top five customers accounted for
approximately 37.1% (2015: 43.3%) of the Group's total revenue,
with one customer in the segment of North American market,
accounted for approximately 20.3% (2015: 26.3%) of the Group's
total revenue.
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The Group does not enter into any long-term agreements with
these top five customers. Their purchases are on an order-by-order
basis. The Group cannot assure that it will be able to maintain
stable relationships with its key customers. A substantial decrease
of purchases could adversely affect product sales, financial
condition and results of operations of the Group.

The Group will continue to diversify the customer’s portfolio by
actively searching for new customers and seeking for strategic
acquisition in order to capture more customers in different
markets.

Risk of changing in the economic conditions

It is anticipating that there will be a downturn in the economy of
the PRC and in Hong Kong in the coming year. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, approximately 54.2% (2015: 58.9%) of
the Group's total revenue was generated from sales in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Macau. The decline in the PRC, Hong Kong and
Macau economy may dampen the demand for the Group's
products which could have a material adverse effect on the
Group's business, results of operations and financial condition.

To manage the risk of economic downturn in a particular region,
the Group is trying to diversify its investment geographically. In
particular, the Group invested in new production facilities and
invested in Dormeo, a company having a well-known brand in the
US. The management of the Group expects the total revenue from
the US will increase in the coming years.

Risk of deterioration in the value of the Group brands

The Group is dependent on the goodwill in its brands for the
continued success and growth of its business. In particular, the
Group relies on sales of its “Sinomax” branded products in Hong
Kong and in the PRC, and products under other brands owned by
or licensed to it in other territories. Adverse publicity or regulatory
or legal action against the Group could damage the reputation,
the brand images and reduce long-term demand for the Group’s
products.

The Group continues its strategy to promote its brand names
through different marketing schemes. The Group also uses multi
brands strategy to promote more brands like “Zeopedic”,
"PurelLUX", "Dream Serenity”, “ComforZen”, “Customizer”, "Spa
Supreme” and “Tung Ah" so as to reduce the risk and deterioration
in a particular brand.
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(4)

Risk of volatility in the pricing of raw materials

The Group is exposed to commodity price risks resulting from
fluctuation of prices of chemicals including polypropylene glycol
and toluene diisocyanate, the principal raw materials for the
production of polyurethane foams. The Group has not entered
into any long-term agreement with any of its raw materials
suppliers, nor has it entered into any hedging arrangements or
transactions to reduce the Group's exposure to fluctuations in raw
materials costs.

The Group implements a cost-plus pricing policy. Price quotations
for orders are negotiated in an order-by-order basis. In
determining the product prices, the Group usually takes into
account of various factors such as production costs (including
costs of raw materials), production cycle, transportation costs,
product types and specification, market price and global
economic conditions.

PROSPECTS

A description of the prospects of the Group’s business is provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 9 to 19 of this
annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the "Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 9 to 19
of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which
complies with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
was adopted by the Shareholders.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that the eligible participants under the scheme have or may have
made to the Company.
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The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers,
consultants, agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the
Directors, will contribute or have contributed to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HKS1
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 13 December 2013, the Company has authorised to grant to
140 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
34,918,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. In
February 2014, the Company granted share options to 137 eligible
participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,903,000 Shares.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular share
option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be a
price representing 30% discount to the Offer Price (as defined in
the Prospectus).

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be vested equally in five tranches
commencing on the Listing Date and on each of the first, second,
third and fourth anniversary of the Listing Date. The grantees to
whom a share option has been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise the share option any
time after the share option has been vested but in any event on or
before the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing Date.
The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of further
effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014 and
ceased to have effect after 10 July 2014. Share options granted
prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme but
not yet exercised at that time shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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The following tables disclose details of movements of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
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TEREERBEERARBSHBELRETSIR LN

BREZEFE

Mr.Lam ChiFan (Chaiman)
WEREE(EER)

Mr.Cheung Tung
(President)
FREE(EH)

Mr. Chen Feng
(Executive Director)

RARL(HES)

10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
N14E2108
10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
W14E28108

10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
WI4E28108
10Feb 2014
014E28108
10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
NI4E28108

10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
W14E28108
10Feb 2014
01428108
10Feb 2014
014F28108

10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014
W4EIR108—2014F7 A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015
W4EIB10B =057 A 10
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016
W4EIB10B—206%F7A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017
W4EIR10B—207F7 A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018
W4EIB10B—2m8E7 A 10

10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014
W4F2A08—2014ETA10R
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015
W4EIB0B— 2057 A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016
W4EIB10B—06%7A10H
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017
W4F2A08—2017E7A10R
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018
W4EIB10B—2m8%7A 10

10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014
W4F2A108—2014E7A10R
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015
W4EIR108—205%7 A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016
W4EIB10B—206%7A 108
10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017
W4EIB10B —207%7 A 108
10Feb 2014—10Ju 2018
W4EIR108—2018%7 A 108

10Jul 2014 =10 Jul 2019
047108 — 20197108
10Jul 2015=10Jul 2019
W5E7BI0B— 20197 A 108
10Jul 2016 =10 Jul 2019
016%F7 B 108 — 201978108
10Jul 201710 Jul 2019
W17F7R10B— 201978108
10Jul 2018 10Jul 2019
2018E7R10B— 20197 A 108

10Jul 2014 =10 Jul 2019
W4ETANR—2019F7A10H
10Jul 201510 Jul 2019
W15E7R 08— 20197 A 108
10Jul 2016 =10Jul 2019
0167108 — 20197108
10Jul 201710 Jul 2019
WIETANE—2019F7A108
10Jul 201810 Jul 2019
2018E7R10B— 20197 A 108

10Jul 2014 =10 Jul 2019
0147108 —209%7 8108
10Jul 201510 Jul 2019
0157108 — 201977108
10Jul 2016 =10Jul 2019
016E7RB10B— 201974108
10Jul 201710 Jul 2019
0177108 —209%7 8108
10Jul 2018 10Jul 2019
018F7R10B— 201977108

0.74

074

074

074

074

074

074

074

074

074

074

0.74

074

074

0.74

1330000

1330000

1330000

1330000

1330000

1275240

1275240

1275240

1275240

1275240

610,000

610,000

610,000

610,000

610,000

2016 FHH

1330000
1330000
1330000
1330000

1330000

1275240
1275240
1,275,240
1275240

127540

610,000
610,000
610,000
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W Lam Kam Cheung 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 =10 Jul 2019 074 40000 - - 400000
(Bxecutive Director) W4EIR0B  04EIR0B—014ETANR  014E7B10B—209%7 A 108
WEREE (H17EZ) 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015 10Jul 201510 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - 400000
W4EIR0B  04EIR0A—0ISETANR  015F7R10B— 20197108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 = 10Jul 2019 074 400000 - - 400000
W4E2A108  04E2R10B—016E7A10B  2016%7A108— 201978108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017 10Jul 2017=10Jul 2019 074 40000 - - 400000
W4EIR0B  04EIR0B—07FTANR  017E7B10B—209%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 10Jul 2019 074 400000 - - 400000
W4EIR08  4FIR0A—208FTANR  018F7R10B— 20197108
Ms.Lam Fei Man 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 = 10Jul 2019 074 430000 - - 40000
(Executive Director) WAEIR0B  W04EIR0B—014ETANR  014ETBI0B—209%7 A 108
WEZNEGHTEE)  0Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015 10Jul 2015—10Jul 2019 074 430000 - - 430000
W4F2ANE  W4E2E0B-NETANE  05ETAI0B—2019F7A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 =10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - 40000
W4E2A0R  W4E2R0B—WI6ETA0E  206E7A10B—2019F7A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014100l 2017 10Jul 2017 10Jul 2019 074 430000 - - 40000
W4EIR0B  W04EIR0B—07ETANR  017E7EI0B—209%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 10Jul 2019 074 430000 - - 40000
W4F2ANE  W4E2E0B—NETANE  208FTA108 201978108
Other employees 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2014 10Jul 2014—10Jul 2019 074 2711360 (56,000 - 2655360
AtEE W4E2A108  04E2R10B—N1ETA0E  2014ETA108— 201978108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2015 10Jul 2015=10Jul 2019 074 2713360 (56,000) - 2657360
W4EIR0B  04EIR0B—0SETANR 0157 B10B—209%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 =10 Jul 2019 074 2711360 (56,000) - 2657360
W4EIR08  04EIA0B—06FTANR 0167 F10A— 20197108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 10Jul 2019 074 2711360 (56,000) - 2657360
W4E2A108  04E2R10B—N7ETA0E  07ETA108—20197A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 10Jul 2019 074 2711360 (56,000 - 2657360
W4EIR0B  04EIR0B—0I8ETANR  018F7R10B—209%7 A 108
33856000 (280000) - 33576000
Number of share options exercisable at 31 December 2016
R2016512 31 BT FBRER B 20144800
Notes: MfsE -
(a) 5 eligible participants (FY2015: 10), who have been granted share options have (@) SHRERBIRENSER2HBE QOSEMREE  108)R
ceased to become eligible participants upon termination of employment HE206FENANBLEEER IERBRETHAEEER
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and the said share options have S - M L BERERED BB -

automatically lapsed.

(b)  Other details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set outin note 31 tothe (b))  BEAARIZESHIBAREEST 2| b S IEEHN G A G mERM
consolidated financial statements.
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(ii) The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the Shareholders. Details of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law (2013
Revision) of the Cayman Islands do not entitle any Shareholder to any
pre-emptive right or other similar rights to subscribe for the Shares.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
controlling Shareholders, namely, Sinomax Enterprises, Mr. Lam Chi Fan,
Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Chen Feng and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, in respect
of their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition as
set out in the Prospectus for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (the "“INED(s)") an annual confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 39.2% of the
Group's total purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 12.4% of the Group's total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate sales to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 37.1% of the Group's
total revenue and the length of relationship with the customers are in a
range of 1 to 10 years. The Group's largest customer accounted for
approximately 20.3% of the Group's total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
issued Shares) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If any Shareholder has any doubt about the taxation implication of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercise of any rights in
relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their own professional
advisers.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, who
will retire and offer itself for re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution will
be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 52 to 69 of
this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

This annual report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Lam Chi Fan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Board believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management and healthy corporate culture, thereby earning
the confidence of the Shareholders and the public.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as it own code of corporate governance. The
Company had met the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Directors and
relevant employees, who are likely to possess inside information of the
Company, in their dealings in the Company’s securities. The code of
conduct are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors

confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2016

52  ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ARRAHAIR R REN D EE R IAREEBRAF
BsRRACEBELHET EEFSHERTNEEE
SREEREREE RERAEERTAESR - {EMERK
%&@%W%Mo

\

AARERPNEFE LA A ST AT E S EE AR
(M4 %aé#ﬂﬁ%ﬁfmhxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁam
SPRI - REIE2016F 12 A31BILFEE » ARRIBDE

EEIRSTRIES) 2 8 F <7 RS o

AR AR

BEEHSE
FAahEREART

ETEFRZNRESTH
AARERATLEABHEAR

ot % 55 BIE B IR EWW°
B P A B B A0 S E A o

ERRENAAANLEEA
¥ -

BREBENARER
%#%ﬁﬁ PEE A

ARARERAEBESELFAEN  2REETHEIRS
REZE2016F12A31BEFELETIRESTRIMATE
Z AR o



BEEEARARA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, with five executive Directors
and five INEDs. The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 20 to 28 of this
annual report and are posted on the Company’s website at
www.sinomax.com/group. The Directors during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

- Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Tung (President)
Mr. Chen Feng
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung
Ms. Lam Fei Man

Executive Directors

INED : Mr. Wong Chi Keung
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P.
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie

Mr. Wu Tak Lung

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
Company'’s business. The independence of the INEDs is assessed
according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Company requests the Directors to disclose annually to the
Company the number and nature of office held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments with an indication of
time involved.

Relationship between Board Members
The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 28 of this annual

report.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other
material relationships among members of the Board.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible and has general power for the management
and conduct of the business of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
management and operations functions of the Company to Board
committees and senior management of the Company with clear
directions and authority framework. The Board will review periodically
the delegation given to management to ensure that they are
appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

The Board has delegated specific roles and responsibilities to the
Company's audit committee, corporate governance committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Details of these
committees are set out on pages 58 to 63 of this annual report.

Chairman and President

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lam is responsible for
the formulation of the overall business strategies and business planning
of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Tung is the President (equivalent to the role of a chief
executive) of the Company. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall
management of the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung. However, there is a
clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility and the
President’s responsibility.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company currently has five INEDs, more than one-third of the
members of the Board, and are persons of high caliber with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan
Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P., Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak Lung has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commenced from 10 July 2014, respectively.
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Each of the service contracts of the INEDs can be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months' prior written notice.

The Company has received from all INEDs their confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs met
the independence guidelines and are independent. These INEDs are
high calibre executives who bring a diversified range of expertise and
serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and the Group as a whole.

Board meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and a tentative schedule for
regular Board meetings for each year is provided to Directors prior to the
beginning of each calendar year. Between scheduled regular Board
meetings, Directors may approve various matters by way of passing
written resolutions. Additional Board meetings may be arranged if
required. At least 14 days' notice of a regular Board meeting shall be
given and the Company aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the
intended date of a Board meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held six meetings
to consider and approve the audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2015, unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and continuing connected transactions. At these Board
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the business updates
and development of the Group.

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company and
are open for inspection by the Directors.
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The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:

Name of Directors

EEHEHE2016F12A31BIEFERITHNES
HRDEREIIT

i<)S
i3

Meetings attended

EEHE HESRRE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lam Chi Fan MEL A 6/6
Mr. Cheung Tung SRR A 6/6
Mr. Chen Feng BRAm 52 A& 6/6
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MEBFE LA 6/6
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEEZ/NE 6/6
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREA 6/6
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon A 2R 6/6
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. SBERE R4 6/6
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREESE A& 5/6
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RImEESLA 5/6

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of
financial statements of the Group to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results of its operation and its cashflows. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had
prepared the Group's financial statements on a going-concern basis and
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulations. Board
members are provided with monthly updates on the Group's financial
position, which give the Directors a clear assessment of the performance,
position and prospect of the Group.

A statement from the external auditor relating to their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the independent auditor's report on pages
98 to 215 of this annual report.
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Continuous training and professional development for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their responsibilities and duties and are
committed to participate in continuous professional development to
develop their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company provides regular updates on changes and developments
relating to the Group's business and the legislative and regulatory
environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings. In addition, the
Company also organises briefing sessions to the Directors which place
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director,
as well as the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements.

Individual training record of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out as follows:

ALl A N/ £
TEEBRWME

ESHERIIREXERRE

EXEVRBREREZBANBE  YARORNSNFE
BXRR  MhREMB NG  BREFEAGBEZE
EARYIERBHNER THEESELER -

ARRIEHRNEREFTEERLAEFEMRARE L
X5 RAE B A NER SRR ROAMIRE © AN AR
AINMAREERHE®RE  BEELTRAREENAE B
BEREME - PAR T AR B Ko B PR B2 B AR TE Y B 3
=R

BEERHZE216F12A31 BILFE Z @ ASIIE 8
R

Reading materials
regarding regulatory
updates and corporate

Attending
seminars and/or
conferences and/

Name of Directors governance matters or briefings
EENR EREEEHR

TEEREEN HEMRSER

RAEM B REERHER

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENL A& 4 4
Mr. Cheung Tung RIR A v/ v
Mr. Chen Feng B AL 52 A v/ 4
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MERHE LA v v/
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEZ/NA 4 v/
Independent non-executive Directors BIAKHITES
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREE v v
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon PR S 208% 4 4
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. BEEE AN T4+ v v
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SRAESE A& 4 v
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIERESLAE v/ 4
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up four committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
corporate governance committee, for overseeing the particular aspects
of the Company. The terms of reference of these committees are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises five INEDs, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung,
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P., Mr.
Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak Lung. Mr. Wong Chi Keung is the
chairman of the audit committee. He has professional qualifications in
accounting and financial management.

The primary duties of the audit committee include, among other things:

—  reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity;

— recommending to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and approve its remuneration;

—  reviewing the Group's consolidated financial statements, annual
reports and interim reports before submitting them to the Board;

—  overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, internal control
and risk management procedures and audit process;

— reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group; and

— meeting with the external auditor to discuss issues regarding audit
at least once a year in the absence of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the audit committee held
four meetings and reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the
interim and annual results of the Group and the relevant financial
reports. It also discussed matters with respect to the risk management
and internal controls and re-appointment of external auditor.
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A summary of the work of the audit committee during the year ended
31 December 2016 is as follows:

(@)

d

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2016;

discussed and reviewed the risk management system of the
Group, reviewed the internal control review plan and the internal
controls report of the Group prepared by the internal control
advisor relating to the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2016;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function; and

approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The attendance record of each member of the audit committee at the
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as

_‘

(d)

BEEZERES
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Name of members of audit committee ERZEEREHR Meetings attended

HESRIRE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREA 3/3
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon NI € 3/3
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. SBERE Rt 3/3
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie sREESE A 3/3
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIEEESEA 3/3
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Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee comprises five INEDs, namely, Mr,
Wong Chi Keung, the chairman of the corporate governance committee,
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P., Mr.
Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak Lung.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee include,
among other things:

— developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the
Company on corporate governance and making recommendation
to the Board with regard to any change;

— reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management
on corporate governance;

— reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
on corporate governance and making recommendation to the
Board with regard to any change;

—  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
corporate governance manual applicable to Directors and
employees; and

—  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the corporate governance
committee held one meeting to review the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices and the compliance with the CG
Code.
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The attendance record of each member of the corporate governance & EEEEE @K BNEZE2016E 12 A3 BILEE

committee at the meeting held during the year ended 31 December ~AREBITr h¥EE CEZE@@HMEELEEHIINOT -

2016 is set out as follows:
Name of members of Meeting attended
corporate governance committee TEEREEEREMRSR HESRRE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FREREA /1
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R S IR 1/1
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. SBEEER 4Rt Il
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREGEE A Il
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIEERERE /1
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee consists of one executive Director and two
INEDs. The remuneration committee is chaired by Professor Lam Sing
Kwong, Simon, an INED. Other members are Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew,
J.P.,an INED and Mr. Lam Chi Fan.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, among
other things:

—  studying and making recommendations or proposals to the Board
for its review on the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration of all Directors and senior management, on the
Company's incentive schemes and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for formulating the
remuneration policies and incentive schemes;

—  determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration of the non-executive Directors; and

—  reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate objectives approved by the Board from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration committee
held one meeting to review and approve the Directors’ and senior
management’s performance bonus, taking into consideration the
comparable market practice, competitive market position, individual
performance and contributions and the Group's operating results.

In order to recognize and acknowledge the contributions of key
employees of the Company, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. These incentive
schemes enable the eligible persons to have a personal stake in the
Company and thus motivate them to optimize their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Company.
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Details of the Directors’ emolument for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 10 and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee
at the meeting held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out

as follows:

Name of members of

BEEZE206FN2ABIEFENESEMEREAR
F‘aﬂééﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁé?riu&%ixkﬂ%ﬁéf%?éﬁ%l&%?r%wﬁ

1B RIEA LR A TS RERMIZE 10 RHIFE3T -

REMEEeRERNEEZ206F12A31 BILFERE
IZEFMNEEeeEMNE BRESHNIT

Meeting attended

remuneration committee FMHEZEEEREHA HEEBRE

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R YE % 1/1

Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENFEE 1/1

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. SBEEEARF LT 11
Nomination Committee BEZEES

The nomination committee comprises three members with the majority
of its members being INEDs. The nomination committee is chaired by
Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board. Other members are Mr.
Wong Chi Keung and Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, both being
INEDs.

The primary duties of the nomination committee include, among other
things:

— reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board and making recommendations regarding any proposed

changes to the Board in line with the Company’s strategies;

—  developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors;

— identifying suitable candidates for appointment as directors; and

— assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the nomination committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
among its Board members. The nomination committee has a policy
concerning the diversity of Board members with measurable objectives.
Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and the legitimate interests of the principal Shareholders.

The attendance record of each member of the nomination committee at
the meeting held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as

follows:

Name of members of

PEERRE
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Meeting attended

nomination committee REZESRERSA HESRRE
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MERLE 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FE®EE /1
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon RE 2% 11

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. A review
of the implemented systems and procedures, including areas covering
operational, legal compliance controls and risk management functions,
is carried out annually. The risk management and internal control
systems are implemented to minimise the risks to which the Group is
exposed and used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business.

The Board has, through the audit committee, reviewed and considered
the Group's risk management and internal control systems to be
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2016.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the operational, legal
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group were
identified.

The Group has established an organizational structure with defined
levels of responsibility and reporting procedures. The group internal
audit department assist the Board and the audit committee in the review
of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.
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The Company has established Enterprise Risk Management Procedures
to ensure safeguard of assets and to identify, evaluate, quantify and
manage existing and potential risks. Relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group's performance are appropriately identified and managed.

The internal audit department is responsible in the operation and
coordination of enterprise risk management mechanism, which includes
assessing, reviewing the effectiveness of risk management processes
and systems, assessing whether risk is properly assessed, assessing
significant risk reporting, and reviewing significant risk management. The
Group with appoint external internal control consultant when necessary.

The task group on risk management is responsible for establishing the
risk management register and defining responsibilities, procedures and
system of risk management, formulating the annual risk management
work plan, carrying out risk assessment, proposing the risk management
strategy, assisting the relevant departments and the enterprises in
significant risk management. It also prepares risk management
performance appraisal program and conducts annual performance
appraisal and arranges risk management training.

The departmental managements execute risk management strategies,
solutions and crisis management plans for significant risks, dynamically
monitor significant risk associated indicators and execute the procedures
and policies of the risk management and internal controls of the Group.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also assessed the
effectiveness of certain key risks and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits.
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To help ensure all risks which are relevant to the Group are considered, a
systematic approach to risk identification is followed. Identifiable risk
areas which are considered include:

maintaining a safe work environment for the Group's employees;
safeguarding and efficient use of assets;
management of human resources;

ensuring the Group complies with legal and regulatory
obligations;

achieving established objectives and goals;

reliability and integrity of financial and operational information;
and

compliance with internal policies and procedures;

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Group:

0]

(ii)

(i)

is aware of the obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other statutory
regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of
inside information, announcements and financial disclosures and
authorises their publication as required.

has adopted and implemented its Inside Information Disclosure
Policy.

has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the
securities transactions of those employees who, because of their
positions, are likely to have access to confidential or inside
information.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees in respect of the audit
and non-audit services provided to the Group by Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out as follows:

BT =

REZE206F1N2A3BLEFE  BHEY - BER S
SENTEAEERENEZEIFEEZREMZNNE R
T

Fee
i-9::]
HK$'000
FHET
Audit services Iz 3,380
Non-audit services: FEBEZRT -
Reviewing the Company's interim financial information, EZ 2 NN AR HE IS E R
report on continuing connected transactions and SEAB R SMERERAEE
review of risk management and internal control of BB E IR R A BRI - BB
the Group, and conducting financial and W EEEHV B ERBEAE
tax due diligence for potential acquisition ZERES 1,836
5216
COMPANY SECRETARY RAME

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 4 March 2014. The biographical details of Mr. Lam is set out
in the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior Management” on page
22 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lam took no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders and seeks to facilitate
the effective exercise of those rights by ensuring that the Company
communicates effectively with its Shareholders.

The Company promotes effective communication with Shareholders
and encourages effective participation by Shareholders at general
meetings of the Company. To ensure a high quality of communication
and level of clarity with all investors and other stakeholders, whilst
complying with its statutory disclosure obligations, the Company
endeavours to provide Shareholders with ready and easy access on a
timely basis to matters that affect their investment in the Company;
communicate in a clear, accurate and easy to understand manner with
investors and other stakeholders. Communication with Shareholders
would be mainly through the Company's interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars, general meetings and disclosure on the
Company's website.
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General Meetings

The Board also considers that general meetings of the Company provide
an useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual general
meetings. All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall
be called extraordinary general meetings (‘EGM").

Members of the audit committee, remuneration committee, corporate
governance committee and nomination committee and the external
auditor also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
from Shareholders. Notice of annual general meetings is sent to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual general
meetings and the accompanying circular also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under
the Listing Rules. The vote results of annual general meetings and EGMs
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on
the same day of the annual general meetings and EGM.

The 2016 annual general meeting was held on 10 June 2016. The
attendance records of the Directors at the 2016 annual general meeting
held during the year are set out below:

ALl A N/ £
TEEBRWME

BRERXE

EZgNRA/ARARRAGABRRER—BEERNH
BUREEGQHER - ARAIEEFRITRRERREE
REBRRBFAE - ARRSBBERNERBFAEG L
HEZeRmMER  YHMBERRRERE - lREREREA
FRENIMNAAEBRRAGH BERFHIAE ([RRH
BIKED -

B FH - CEERRIERZBGKE RINEZEAED
THERRBFAE - UEERRNER - BRERASFK
SREERRBEAGRTA LN 20EEXRFH
THBRIR - MBEKE KT ARARSIRZRERZFS
K EmRAER HMBEER - RIBF RS MR
FRIAGREZERARNERGNRRBFAG KRR
REBRITE BB RPN AR B A AU T 3%

2016 FREIAFEAEN 20165F6 410 BE1T » IREAFE
WERITH 2016 FRERF KM H By 0T -

Annual General
Meeting attended

Name of Directors EEEE HERFBFRE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENL A 1
Mr. Cheung Tung RIR A /1
Mr. Chen Feng PR AL 55 A /1
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MEBHF LA /1
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEZ/NA /1
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREE /1
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon RER e 2 /1
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.P. SEREAF AL N1
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie REEEAE 1
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RIEEESRAE 1
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Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the deposit of
a written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

The written requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting, signed
by the requisitionists and deposit it with the Company Secretary of the
Company at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower 1, MegaBox Enterprise Square Five, No.
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held within a further
21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for
information to the Directors or management through the ‘Contact Us'
section in the Company’s website at www.sinomax.com or in writing
and sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no members nor Shareholders are
permitted to propose new resolutions at the general meetings if the
intention to propose the new resolutions is not specified in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, procedures for proposing
candidate(s) for election as Directors at a Shareholder's meeting are set
out in the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website at
irsinomax.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its Shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders by electronic means, particularly
through its website, is an efficient way of distributing information in a
timely and convenient manner. The Company’s website at
www.sinomax.com/group provides the following information:

—  member of the Board, terms of reference of the Board committees,
key corporate governance policies and the Company’s
constitutional documents;

— latest news, announcements, financials including interim and
annual reports and all material information submitted to the Stock
Exchange;

— otherinformation relating to the Group and its business.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Shareholders can make any query in respect of the Group or to make
request for the Company'’s financial reports. The designated contact
details are as follows:

By post: Sinomax Group Limited

Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower 1,
MegaBox Enterprise Square Five,

No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinomax.com

Shareholders who have any matters related to change of name or
address, transfer of shares and stolen or loss of share certificates, please
contact the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited.
The contact details are as follows:

Address: Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
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SCOPE OF REPORT

This annual report mainly covers the environmental, social and
governance activities at the Group's core operating sites, namely, our
headquarter in Hong Kong and Sinomax Industrial Park, Shahu Village,
Tang Xia Town, Dongguan.

PARTICIPATION AND IMPORTANCE OF THE
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes our stakeholders' participation as one of the most
important driving forces to accelerate the Group's social responsibility
efforts. Therefore, the Group strives to improve existing communication
channels and conduct regular and spontaneous communications with
customers, employees, suppliers, community organizations,
governmental organizations and other relevant stakeholders through a
variety of channels, including interviews, phone calls, emails, forums,
seminars, company internal correspondences, publications and press
conferences, to understand expectations about corporate social
responsibilities from all parties and motivate us to reach various
objectives regarding corporate sustainability, as well as fulfilling
expectations of all stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, we commenced
environmental and social assessment practices in the forms of (among
others) face-to-face interviews and surveys for certain stakeholders with
a view to identify their concerns and the environmental and social
impacts of our businesses.

Group Development and Social Responsibility

As a leading industry expert in memory foam healthcare products, the
Group is an integrated enterprise that incorporates research and
development ("R&D"), manufacturing as well as sales. Our aim is to
become a global leader on health and household and a multinational
corporation with self-owned brands and renowned reputation.
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As a leading player in the industry, we believe that corporate social
responsibility is closely connected to business strategies. With “Integrity,
Inclusiveness, Innovation, Win-win” as our core values, and “Creating and
Sharing Quality Household Lifestyle” as our mission, our focus lies not
only in the development direction of the Company, but also in
commitment to global consumers as well as our responsibility to all staff
members at Sinomax.

Our Vision
“To become a global leader on health and household products”:

For more than a decade, supported by strong R&D capabilities and a
comprehensive industry chain, and leveraging on our understanding of
healthy household living, the Group has consistently provided innovative
solutions of healthy living and has shared quality lifestyles. The grand
vision of our Group is to become a global leader on health and
household products.

Our Mission
“Creating and sharing quality household lifestyle”:

Using Sinomax products helps bring comforts and health to numerous
households and improve people’s standards of living.

Milestones of Sustainable Development

Incorporate the idea of sustainable development into current operating
strategy:

In order to achieve the goal of sustainable development in the next
hundred years, the Group adheres to its established core values and has
set up an operating strategy with focus on sustainable development.
The Group incorporates the idea of sustainable development into its
values, culture, decision and strategy making process through
establishing international standards, promoting environment awareness
and continuing to practice environmentally-friendly production and
supply of health and household products with a view to maximize values
for the company, society, customers and employees.

RIE -t kERmE

ERERNELE  BRMEECELSETHERAKE
BAEEE - BMFAHE - B BIF - & ] &L
BEE UIAZEERBEE] AFED '%EWT@
RABIEREAR B2 Hﬁ%%m%a R
HEIMEMT-

[RAEREREREERSIRE]:
FEEBRRNMBENMTENERE R - AREHRE
REEHHERE - THRFR  SETHARARORELE

ARHBBIF T REDFEERELE - WRREIRMERE
REEmMI|REREENERERS -

SEESD
[BIZEERELE]:

HEHERBEENERTATX
ﬁgﬁ

BF  WEARH

AEFERRERR

AREERESBARBNEETH

RTEREEARARBENAHERRER  SEETH
AIVAZOEE  YRIUAIREERESAEENE
B MASKEONEER Xt RRREE - B2
RAFRIBEBRCHRE  ReRAREHE  LEEEER
EZRERIRRZETLEENHEREREEMOE

FERLE HE HBEERBETHERANERE -

oexrm 71



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

Excellent performance of social responsibility against ISO 26000
guidance:

Furthermore, the Group has obtained ISO 26000: 2010, the corporate
social responsibility performance statement from SGS Hong Kong
Limited ("SGS"), an international inspection and certification body, being
the first enterprise in the industry to receive such recognition from SGS.
This is no doubt recognition of the sustainable development system
established by the Group and our concern and contribution regarding
social responsibility.

EEISO 260005 5| SR EIT ¢
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1SO 26000 Corporate Social Responsibility Performance Logo
ISO 26000(E %t EEERRIR
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REVIEW OF HIGHLIGHTS EEEE

Social Responsibility
BT

Being the first enterprise in the industry to receive
the corporate social responsibility performance
statement ISO 26000 froom SGS.
BMRERNRERRESSGS ISO 26000TL BFE
KRBHWEE -

Recyclable Energy
TBELEER

Investing in the first clean energy project at our
Dongguan plant — the PV Project, with aggregate
investment amount of approximately RMB20 million.
RERSHESERBERLIE — HRRE -
REBRBSFHIMTETARE -

Caring for Society
BRI

Awarded the 10 year plus “Caring Company” award by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

BRI FESSEINSRBHTEEN
(BRERE) BR -

Industry Development
FEREE

Accelerating industry development by assisting related
departments of the PRC in formulating industry standards
for over 10 products and quality standards.
NRERERE - HBENPEHIEEIZBPIH B 1 0HER
RESBOITHERE -

Social Services
Tt 2R

Enhancing social harmony, with over 1,190 hours of
voluntary services in aggregate.
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A. Environmental
. A1 Aspect: Emissions

The Group emphasized our contribution and potential
impact to the society in the process of business
development. We hope to build a positive image for our
brand by means of environmental management and
internal training. Therefore, in addition to compliance with
regulations of local regulatory authorities and the specific
industrial guidelines, the Group also attempts to fulfill
environmental and social responsibilities through various
channels.

I. “Green industry chain”

The Group extends the concept of “green industry
chain” from its implementation of “ Vertical
Integration Mode of Development”. We minimize the
environmental impact produced during our
production by adding meticulously elements of
green to a number of aspects of our operation
ranging from research and development,
procurement, manufacturing, packaging, sales and
marketing.

In addition, we review regularly on how to bring more
positive influence to both the society and the
environment.

@ Green Industry Chain
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Photovoltaic Project (‘PV Project’)
Project implementation site:

The Group's location at Sinomax Industrial Park,
Shahu Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan.

Aggregate amount of investments:

The project is undertaken in stages, the first and
second stages have been completed successfully in
2016. We plan to commence the third and more
stages to expand its scale according to practical
needs. The aggregate amount of investments is
estimated to be approximately RMB20 million.

Project completion:

In 2016, the project has completed for utilization with
a satisfactory overall outcome. It remains to be
monitored and finalized subject to practical needs.

Project outcome:

According to estimation, the annual amount of
electric power that the project helps Sinomax
Industrial Park save is equivalent to the power
produced out of 460 tonnes of coal, which will
significantly reduce the carbon emissions from coal-
fired generation.

RIE - g NEARE
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PV Project — the major thermal energy collector installation
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1SO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System

Sinomax Industrial Park monitors, controls and
evaluates continuously the environmental impact of
the Group based on the ISO 14001:2004
Environmental Management System, with a view to
promoting green industry chain through appropriate
controls on energy conservation, and limiting the
pollutions resulting from our production process,
including sewage, air pollution, sold wastes and noise
pollution at the same time.

Exhaust collection:

Aiming to reduce exhaust emissions, we have
installed activated carbon absorption device in
Sinomax Industrial Park to handle and collect the
exhaust emitted from the sponge foaming process,
so as to improve the air quality at workplace as well
as mitigating air pollution.

Waste Management:

In terms of waste management, we proactively
reduce the amount of waste and alleviate its damage
to the environment.

Plastic Waste Management:

We take into account the indecomposable pollutants
produced from the enormous consumption of plastic
bags. In this regard, the adoption of “Environmentally-
friendly and Convenient Packaging” by the Group not
only frees customers from using extra plastic bags by
providing handle installation for most of our retail
products, but also delivers the message of
environmental awareness to the public in hopes of
protecting the environment with joint hands.

Waste Management of Raw Material Barrel:

Meanwhile, we also consider how to put
environmental concepts into practice on the
procurement of raw material aspect. We select
containers of lager size for raw material storage, such
as oil tanker truck instead of smaller barrel, in order to
reduce the waste of raw material barrels.
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Waste Disposal:

We are an advocator for legitimate disposal of waste.
We work with environmental protection companies
from our operation locations and have the waste
disposed by those with qualifications. We also keep
the receipt of hazardous waste disposal in compliance
with the law, and ensure the mitigation of
environmental impact as a result of proper disposal of
hazardous waste.
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ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification Mark

ISO 14001 IRIEERBERE
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

We have adopted several policies and guidelines to improve
energy efficiency and management constantly.

Water preservation

Water resource management is not the most
important issue of the Group, as our water
consumption and waste water discharge in the
production process is not significant and most of the
consumption only relates domestic use. Nevertheless,
we encourage employees to preserve water and
promote the idea of environmental protection and its
importance.

Environmental friendly lighting

In our Hong Kong office, 30% of light bulbs have
been replaced with LED luminaires to reduce energy
consumption. It also reduces harmful waste
generated by the replacement of traditional
luminaires with shorter life cycle.
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In addition, lunchtime energy saving policies have
been implemented in factories and most lighting
devices are temporarily switched off during
lunchtime to preserve energy, resulting in an annual
reduction in electricity consumption equivalent to
approximately 500 hours.

Green office
Energy for transportation:

Local suppliers are preferred to minimise energy
consumption due to product transportation.

Energy for communication:

Online methods are preferred for business
communications to reduce “carbon footprints”, such
as using electronic mail and visual conference.

Paperless office:

We adopt various kinds of electronic management,
such as system platforms like OA, POS and WMS, to
minimise use of paper. For instance, submission
claims for fees and expenses, update of personal
particulars and other internal documents are handled
through an electronic system.

Meanwhile, we convey the importance of “reducing
carbon emissions” to staff members and suppliers,
such as encouraging the printing on both sides and
reuse of paper to reduce paper consumption.
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4. Green production

Scraps are fully utilised in the course of production in
order the maximise the efficiency of resource
utilisation and minimise waste.

Further, industrial zones of the Group are equipped
with solar water heating system to reduce electricity
consumption.

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

In addition to our utmost effort to promote environmental
protection, we also recognise the importance of integration
of green elements into different aspects to improve the
environment.

In order to further relieve the material impact of our
operation on the environment, we avoid using volatile
organic production materials to meet the requirements of
the United States and European countries. Moreover,
starting from the research and development of application,
reusable materials are considered whenever possible
throughout the entire industry chain. All packaging material
we use is recyclable and reusable so as to minimise the
Group's impact on the environment and natural resources.

4. HeEtE

FEBETEE RN L&
BERERNZRANYE » el % RE
FHESE

I EENTERTSREAKE
BEEREMEKEGR  BREE -

A3EE RERXAER

R T IR BB ROAS - A ER(
R RIBE @ AR BT RAK SRS -

BRATE-TRIALEBETAELN
BEARERE  BRANLEEMBTEET
RETMERBEREBZMOMBIARRERK
BMBER 2 EBR - S5 EREEZEEL
RMENRHEEMLG  CRBEEZRER
ABAEME - EReETE - BT EEE
A BRRBEBRYE - WED SELRER
RRRERFTERNZE

06w 719



SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - LB RERWE

80

Social

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employs more than 1,200 staff members in its
Hong Kong and Dongguan factories. The Group considers
“talent” as one of the important assets in the
implementation of ideas of sustainable development. We
pursue harmony in cultural diversity and is committed to
creating an equal platform for the growth, learning and
development of employees, thereby leading to a more
comprehensive career planning for staff members at various
positions and levels. These commitments are set out in our
employee manual.

Based on the following significant elements, we were
awarded the 10 year plus “Caring Company” award and the
"Employer of Choice Award".

1. Equal recruitment

We provide all applicant with fair and equal career
opportunity and conduct the selection process based
on their quality, academic qualifications, capability,
integrity and suitability for the position in an impartial
manner. Such selection is not based on elements like
race, ethnicity, gender, age, family status, language,
religious belief, political affinity, etc.

2. Diverse development, equal opportunity and talent
retention

We ensure that each colleague grows with the Group.
In case of vacancy, given the same set of
qualifications, we will first look for internal options
and give priority to suitable candidates from existing
employees of the Company.

With regard to the Group’s promotion system, it is
based on the past performance, experience and
personal quality of employee.

We offer remuneration package in strict accordance
with relevant labour and employment ordinances
and other employment laws and regulations in
respect of work hour and day-off.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B1/EE : 1EME

SERETERREBEEMABEBI200%8
I SERRIAA I RAREBTAFER
RESNERITRZ — - RFERZ UL
BRT  RBOREY —EFENZ=R[TE
ITRRE  BBRER  ETRBLLBRE
THRRAEMRBIR AE INseim o B LG
EMARMINE T FA -

T ELER - 2R RAEE 0FRERE
REBR)RAR[FUREIAEI NEER
% o

1. FE e

BFEERE—EREMFFNHE
WeRmBREE BEBEREERR
BERBENAE B 880 miE
EREER TR RETAFInE
ToRMTEUER  BE - HhH-
FE o REMML - F5 > FH - BA
FRZRAEITEIE ©

2. ZITLER  FERERATHE

HAPITEER SO TIER HE0aE L R E
—FEER EHRBUZRE  £F
FHRET  BMEELETRRAR
BE EBLEEZEARANNREAAHE
N

EREIFABNSE  $E—ENUA
THIHER ERREAENER
BT ELE -

EHEMGETE  HABRFETEME
AT RERED - ARFEEME
FRETEMEFENEREER
SRR e



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

Balance between work and family life

As a family friendly employer, we hope that employees
achieve a balance between work and family life. We do
not encourage overtime work and offers flexibility to
improve labour relationship, boost morale, reduce
employee attrition and achieve a win-win situation.

Energetic work environment

We are committed to building a satisfying work
environment and encourage employees and their
family members to take part in various recreational
and sports activities to improve physical and mental
health. Sinomax Industrial Park is equipped with
facilities like leisure centre, fitness room, KTV room
and children playground.

Retirement security

In terms of retirement security, in addition to legal
retirement security of places where we operate,
including national social security fund (five insurances
and one fund) and mandatory provident fund,
employees in Hong Kong who retire at the age of 65
are entitled to extra pension as recognition for their
contributions to the Group over the years.

Furthermore, the Group strictly complies with
protection policies in relation to retirement and day-
off of places where we operate.
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group strives to maintain a safe working environment,
and continuously enhance employees’ awareness of
occupational health and safety to achieve “zero work
accident”. During the reporting year, the Group strictly
followed regulations of each operating site relating to
occupational health and safety.

Head of each department in the Group also takes on the role of
safety officer, who is responsible for managing and undertaking
health and safety-related risks, and managing relevant affairs in
this respect. We constantly improve our working environment
to prevent work-related injuries and illness. We have also
adopted and implemented laws and regulations such as Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases (€ F 2 A R 1 Bl B % 5
BF7387%)) and Technical Specifications for Occupational Health
Surveillance (B8 3 & 7 B2 RE BL T 452 8).

1. Work-related hazard and risk assessment

We have identified possible work-related hazards for
each job at production factories in the country and
conducted risk assessment to prevent any worker on
the job from occupational hazards.

2. Protective gears and safety devices

We provide suitable protective gears for work to
individual workers, such as safety hat, anti-dust mask, ear
plugs and protective gloves, to prevent personal injury.

3 Free health check

The Group provides free annual health checks to
employees exposed to work-related health hazards
and follows up any problematic case.

4. Occupational health and safety training

We provide occupational health and safety trainings
to employees and identify high-risk areas in the
working place for them.

In addition, we care about the psychological health of
our employees. If necessary, we will engage
professional institutions to provide psychological
consultations to employees. Related measures have
been included in the annual assessment plan.
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

“Welcome to join our Sinomax team and choose us to be
your platform for career development. We will provide the
best career planning for you.” The Group makes
arrangements of promotions or re-designations according
to plans based on mutual agreement, with reference to
capacity, potential, performance of employees and the
business development requirements of the Company as
well as the career planning of employees, so as to realize
employees’ full potentials.

I.

Induction training

We provide induction trainings to new employees on
(among others) history, structure, policy and culture
of the Group to give new staff an overview of the
Group.

On-the-job training

We provide on-the-job training to individual
employee based on his/her respective job position
and need. Such trainings will be provided by
department heads.

Teamwork

We value teamwork and motivate our employees to
steer forward together and actively engage
themselves in the job through training activities
centered on teamwork.

Training in cooperation with experts

In addition to on-the-job trainings, we also engage
experts from various academic backgrounds to
enable employees to gain a deeper understanding of
different sectors.

Sponsorship scheme for external training

We also encourage employees to take part in external
training programs to support relevant career
development. We have in place a sponsorship
scheme for external training. Upon completion of
trainings and obtaining of qualification by employees,
we will grant sponsorship to them.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

We are committed to protecting human rights and creating
a fair environment for employees.

. Zero tolerance policy

We strictly follow regulations on child labour and
forced labour of each operating site.

Regarding employment of child labour, the Group
adopts a “zero tolerance policy”. To prevent the
occurrence of child labour, all applicants must
provide identity documents for verification.

Regarding forced labour, we would explain to
applicants terms of the contract, including relevant
requirements and their rights, and give them
sufficient time to read and understand the contract.
Related company policies and staff codes are also
attached to the staff manual and contract. When
relevant information is amended from time to time,
the Company will arrange designated departments or
representatives of staff to provide explanations on the
latest updates for employees.

Regarding prevention of forced labour, the Group has
set up a telephone hotline handled independently by
the human resource department.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Group’s suppliers mainly locate in the PRC, the US and
Japan. As of 31 December 2016, there were 173 qualified
suppliers who provided materials and services to the Group
regularly. Pushed by the wave of economic globalization,
the Group has to improve its standards towards the entire
supply chain.

I. Criteria for selecting suppliers

We have included performance in corporate social
responsibility as one of the key criteria in selecting
our suppliers. Our suppliers must operate responsibly
and in compliance with our corporate social
responsibility standards, which involve (among
others) business ethics, environmental impacts,
health and safety as well as data privacy.
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2. Supplier Review and Management

We express the Group's latest requirements in details
to suppliers on a regular basis through various
channels including phone calls, emails,
questionnaires, training and on-site assessment, for
the purpose of achieving a win-win situation by
enhancing the awareness and performance of
corporate social responsibility of our business
partners.

3. Advocating the corruption-free culture

All suppliers are required to sign and adhere to the
“Corruption-free Agreement” developed by us, so as
to strengthen the anti-corruption awareness on the
supplier side.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

The Group's business has been expanding worldwide with
our customer-oriented approach. We have adopted a
vertically integrated business model as our mainstay of
operation and have also implemented the I1SO 9001:2008
Quality Management System, where we have put in place
systematic and reliable procedures in each and every stage
of our operation from R&D and procurement, production,
packaging to sale and marketing. We have also been in
compliance with the requirements on quality by relevant
laws, and keep fulfilling and matching the increasingly
stringent requirements on product quality and safety. Our
Group will look at and review the performance in this
aspect.

1. International product quality assurance

Sinomax Group obtained the ISO 9001:2008
certification in 2005, testifying our entire operation
procedure were at a par with the international
standard, from management’'s commitment to
product quality, operation plan, implementation,
monitoring and optimization.

The visco-elastic foams, conventional polyurethane
foams and high resilience foams produced by us have
all received CertiPUR-US certification, verifying that
our foams have low volatile organic compound (VOC)
emission and are free from ozone-depleting
chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs).
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Our business model has earned us the Hong Kong
Awards for Industries — Upgrading and
Transformation in 2016.

ISO 9001 Quality Management certification mark
ISO 9001 BEEEERBERE

Product quality assurance

The Group’s “SINOMAX" brand pillows and mattress
toppers have been recognized by the Chiropractic
Doctors’ Association of Hong Kong since 2005, and
the top quality of our mattresses also has gained
recognition from the Hong Kong Consumer Council,
testifying the top quality of Sinomax Group's
products.

Monitoring on raw materials suppliers

We implement thorough and detailed monitoring
measures towards our raw materials suppliers.
Through regular and random checks on the quality of
materials supplied by our suppliers, as well as field
studies and sampling test, amongst others, we seek
to maintain a stable supply of raw materials and their
high quality.

Quality control team

Each and every production line of the Group has
been assigned with a quality control officer, who
would perform the quality control tasks according to
the technical standards on production process as set
out by the quality control team in order to achieve
the ultimate objective of conformity and consistency
in products quality.
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Independent testing laboratory

The Group had acquired a number of product
checking devices with advanced technology and set
up a laboratory and testing service centre at our
Dongguan facilities which is run independently from
the production department. Throughout the whole
production process from R&D onwards, all our
products would have undergone several rounds of
vigorous testing and standard checking procedures.
Reliable testing results have to be obtained before
any products are ready for delivery.

Amongst the testing and investigation to be
conducted include those on environmental
protection and safety, such as VOC contents and
flame retardant tests.

Furthermore, the Group is in the process to prepare
for its existing laboratory and testing service centre to
be upgraded to a certified laboratory. Such exercise
will be done according to the ISO/IEC 17025 standard
for laboratories, and if materialized, will help to
enhance the level of objectiveness of the testing and
modification being taken.
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Independent laboratory and Environmental protection and

testing service centre
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Establishment of industry standard

The Group does not solely focus on its own
development, but also pay considerable attention to
R&D and overall development of our industry, and
strives to enhance products quality in general.
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We have actively taken part and been involved in
establishment of more than ten items of industry
standards in various aspects. Senior R&D staff of the
Group have also represented the Group in
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participation of drafting and outlining of standard for £ o
polyurethane foam products and quality standard in

China.

Various polyurethane foam products and quality standards in China
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Plastic standard for visco-elastic flexible polyurethane foam

IEOEREFTAIRRENRE

Test and determination of rebound resilience for flexible foam
polymeric material by ball rebound test
RERARSHRNZIREDBIERERAIE

Test and determination of tensile strength and elongation at
break of flexible foam polymeric material

REBATSHRBRENHREBREVAE

Plastics generally used for flexible polyether polyurethane foam

BRARERRUTIERAEN

Plastics for high resilience flexible polyurethane foam
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Test and determination of firmness of flexible foam polymeric
material (indentation method)
RERARSHRBRENAE(RBBE)

Test and determination of tearing strength of flexible cellular
polymeric material

SENZILBMERHRAEHAE

Test and determination of recovery time of visco-elastic foam
120X ERFBIRE

Test and determination of persistent fatigue performance of
flexible cellular materials

REBATRRIBE S EEHRTE

Inflaming retarding in public and component inflammability
requirement and mark
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7. Transparency of product information

The Group commits to providing the best products
for customers. Customers can test product effects by
themselves through product experience.

To make information on the Group and its products
more accessible to customers, we have established
online and offline platforms providing information
relating to various aspects. Such platforms include
retail outlets, webpages, online social media
platforms, product catalogues and sheets.

To ensure accuracy and truthfulness of information
about products and services given by our Group to
customers during sales activities, we provide product
trainings to staff and account managers at all retail
outlets, clearly introducing the features and effects of
our products.

Regarding the promotion materials of our products,
we strictly follow the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
and did not have any non-compliance with related
requirements.

We have set up customer service hotlines and emails
for customers to inquire about the use of products
and reflect any feedback on our products.

Communication Channels
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8. Products after-sales service

After-sale service is also included in our one-stop
shopping experience, where customers can make
product inquiries, leave comments and file
complaints by paying a visit to our stores and
concessionary spaces, or through mobile applications,
customer service hotlines and emails to communicate
with our staff or customer service officers. Seeking
satisfactory feedbacks from our customers, the
customer service officers will follow up the advice
and conduct review accordingly.

Notwithstanding the Group has not called back any
products due to safety or health concerns, nor
received any complaints in relation to our products
and services during the reporting year. In case of such
emergencies, we will insist on the product recall
procedure and address the issue immediately.
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Protection of consumers’data and privacy policy
Protection of consumers’ data and privacy:

In respect of customers’ personal data collected in
the course of sales, the Group adheres to the
information management principle of “safe, reliable
and efficient service” set out in the corporate culture
manual:

— According to the “Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance”, “personal information collection
statement” shall be set out in a promotion
material, website and application which
collects customer data to facilitate customers’

understanding of the relevant information.

—  Without customers’ prior consent, according to
internal guidelines, the collected customer data
shall not be used for promotional purpose.

—  All customer data should be stored properly.
The Group has engaged a technology
company to inspect the customer data storage
system regularly to ensure its security and
prevent hacker attack.

— The Group conducts daily analysis and
inspection through firewall and online activity
management to assess the security and
reliability of the system.

Protection of intellectual property:

In respect of protection and safeguard of intellectual
property, the Group undertakes:

— not to purchase any pirated hardware and
software and information technology
department and material development
department of the Group shall ensure all
software is provided by a licenced supplier.
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to assign information technology department
of the Group to handle all software installation
to maintain the integrity and reliability of the
system in accordance with the master
management principle of the information
technology department.

to include provisions in respect of intellectual
property in the cooperation agreement
entered into with partners and suppliers to
require both parties to respect copyrights and
prohibit unauthorised use of copyrighted
assets and information.

to agree on the owner of design in an
engagement of design and development and
obtain signatures from both parties.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Sinomax Group emphasises the standardisation,
systematisation and transparency of corporate governance.
It makes constant strides toward better internal
management and control and corporate governance
structure to pursue a more comprehensive mechanism
resulting in an efficient, transparent and competitive
corporate governance culture which boosts the strategic
decision making capability of the Company. During the
Reporting Period, we were not aware of any non-
compliance nor subject to any legal proceeding.
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As an integral corporation, we operate in a faithful, honest,
responsible and compliant manner and tackle material
business misconduct, such as bribery, blackmail, fraud and
money laundering. We implement the following measures
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to prevent malpractice:

1.

Letter of commitment on clean practice for

employees

Interest declaration mechanism

Letter of commitment on clean practice for suppliers
Fair competition with non-exclusive suppliers
Approval authority of purchasing orders
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines

Gift reporting mechanism

Whistle-blowing mechanism
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Governance Measures
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Aspect B8: Community Investment

Sinomax Group always upholds its core value of “Love
Supports Beloved” and has extended its caring spirit and
action into the community and area of environmental
protection and conservation.

We have been a member of the World Wide Fund — Hong
Kong ("WWF-Hong Kong") since 2013. We support the
protection of natural resources and development of a
sustainable living environment. The Group established a
volunteer team in 2015 and organised and took part in
different kinds of voluntary works to lend a helping hand to
the people in need at various levels of the society. In 2016,
the volunteer team accumulated a service time of over
1,190 hours and donated gifts with a total value of over
HK$400,000.
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SUMMARY OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AFEERE S

STRATEGIES

A. Environmental
A. B

Aspect A1: Emission management

AMEHE: ERYER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2EH  ERFEH

Aspect A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources

A3 EH : BRIRRAARER

B. Social
B. #=®

“Green industry chain”

(AR EBERE |

"PV Project”

[FRIEE

ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System
ISO 14001:2004 3735 E IR 48 R

Water preservation

EEEOlENIN

Environmental friendly lighting
IRIRIREA

Green office

BRRPEA

Green production

mEetE

Avoid using volatile organic production materials
BREAERIBEENIE
Recyclable and reusable materials are used throughout the entire industry chain

P S e 55 P ) A A L A IR IR A R

Aspect B1: Employment
B1EMH : 1%

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EH : REHEZZE

Equal recruitment

FERE

Diverse development, equal opportunity and talent retention
ZlbER  TERERATHRE

Balance between work and family life

TVEEA S BE A4 & 2 TR ER1S P18

Energetic work environment

AN TFES

Retirement security

RIRAETEIRIE

Work-related hazard and risk assessment
BEERE  WETRRE
Protective gears and safety devices

B & 22 & A

Free health check

REIRRE

Occupational health and safety training

B A2 R M 2 2455
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 B : #ERIEI

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 B : & TXA|

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 B : ftAEMEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
B6EH : EmEE
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Induction Training

ABEE

On-the-job training

R

Teamwork

PR

Training in cooperation with experts
BIEEZIE

Sponsorship scheme for external training

SNERSE I & BhEt B

Zero tolerance policy
TARREE

Criteria for selecting suppliers
HIER PR 2R

Supplier Review and Management
HERmEZLER

Advocating the corruption-free culture

RIEFZRSR

International product quality assurance
B E o B R B

Product quality assurance

B i ERFE

Monitoring on raw materials suppliers
Rt E R B

Quality control team

B EEHIEK

Independent testing laboratory

BB A O

Establishment of industry standard
HIETITHRAE

Transparency of product information
EmE&ERL

Products after-sales service

Em SRR

Protection of consumers’ data and privacy policy
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7 EH : R&ES

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BSEM : HERE

Letter of commitment on clean practice for employees
(BIHERRNERESE)
Interest declaration mechanism
M) 25 B #R A
Letter of commitment on clean practice for suppliers
HEBRRHEE)
Fair competition with non-exclusive suppliers
JEME— A AT HF
Approval authority of purchasing orders
REBATEF R
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines
& M= B B 4 5|
Gift reporting mechanism
BB oh B A
Whistle-blowing mechanism

Rt 1l

Member of the WWF — Hong Kong
HEREAESSFTELENG
Volunteer team
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2 AR

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
BREKEARAF

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinomax
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 105 to 215, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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FRETEIR

MRET FRITRIBEESOREAE - SAHESE M
BHREANENFTRAEENEE - GLRHRIEESE
BERGEMBHRRRHASRSETREN - E5TE
HEEEREHREBNER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EEEBTHHEREASEANEELR

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets
BRERREFEENLE

We identified the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets
arising on the acquisition of Dormeo North America, LLC (the
‘Dormeo’) as a key audit matter due to the complexity and
significant judgements made by the management.
ENEREEREEEMENEARHE  BEFKEWE
Dormeo North America, LLC ([ Dormeo |) T 2 4 B 7 2 & B 2
BENMGESN SERESEER -

As disclosed in notes 4, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, a significant value of goodwill of HK$36,463,000 and
intangible assets of HK$148,252,000 arising on the acquisition of
the Dormeo for the year ended 31 December 2016.
BMIERE B REM E4 - 18R 19FTH T - EE 2016512
A31BIEFE - BUEE Dormeo i 4 36,463,000 78 JT K 75
E}2148,252,000 B TTH BT B EM EAEE °

Determining whether the goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires the management’s estimation of the value in
use of cash-generating units ("“CGUs") related to business of
which the goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated. In
estimating the value in use of the CGU, key assumptions used by
the management include cash flow projections, growth rates,
gross margin, discount rate, expected sales from customers and
management’s expectation for market development.
EFETHENEVEERDLRRER FEEREMRE
HEEREBENEEMIRENEBNREEFLEM((RE
EXBENDHOEREEMELNGEE - EEABRSELE
UHEREER  EREMANERBREFERERER
A BER . EMEMER O KREEFHNEHHERER
EBrihi5ERNOEL -

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying values of goodwill and
intangible assets of the Dormeo are HK$36,463,000 and
HK$ 143,545,000, respectively.

72016 12 A31 8 * Dormeo MR E R EFLEEMNREMED
711 7% 36,463,000 78 7T } 143,545,000 8 7T °

Management of the Group determined that there were no
impairment in these CGUs containing goodwill and intangible
assets during the year ended 31 December 2016.
EEENERERTE  BE2016F12A31BIEFE %%
BREBELEVEENRCELEUMELINE -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of goodwill and intangible
assets included:

BEEERHEMNENEENGEEZREFERE

Understanding the entity’s key control in relation to the
valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, including the
process of preparation of the future cash flows projections,
CGUs allocation and assumptions estimation;
THRERAANERETAENMENBREITREE -
FHARBEEREAKRERETRA ReEEEUH
DERBROEEHRE -

Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions in the
cash flow projections, including growth rates, gross margin,
discount rate, expected sales from customers, by discussing
with the management based on their expectation for market
development;

NEERE S wmik S H M5 ERNAHN SN - FHER
SREBFAN(BREERE  EMNX  BRX . KEEF
TR E ) WBRERRNIAERE

evaluating the reasonableness of, and recalculating, the
sensitivity provided by management and assess the extent
impact on the value in use;
AHEEREERENGURENTOSIENE - WETEN
B UNFHEEREENEHZE

Comparing historical financial performance and revenue after
the end of reporting period of the CGUs with the original
forecasts , to evaluate the accuracy of management’s
budgeting process; and

BT BERRERRSEFSMNRE BRI E
FRBETERELER - LFHEEREELEE MBI AR
BE R

Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment testing in
the consolidated financial statements are sufficient and

appropriate.
LA BREAOREIHOKEENZET RH R
HE -
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Key audit matters

BRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ESHEETHHBARESTSENEES X

The recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 EWFER AR EIER

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to management judgement is required in making an
assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts.
MR REEENREREEMETONG  FTEEREDN
HE - BEFHE S EEFENAIKREIE R RERE
FIH o

As disclosed in notes 4 and 24, the Group held trade receivables
approximately of HK$731,010,000 which was net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$23,363,000 as at 31
December 2016.

HENHEE4 R 24 FTHEEE - R20165F 12 831 - BEEEFHE
FE 5 EUERIE ) 5 731,010,000 7T © A BZBE KL
23,363,0008 7L B R AR A o

When there is objective evidence of allowance for doubtful debts,
the management determines the allowance based on the aging
analysis, business relationship and settlement records for each
transaction.

ERERBERTERER  BEREESBREREROIT - X515
BRERMERZNEMNTE  BXRE -
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Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade receivables
included:

EERRNESREGRENAIREER 2 EFEHE

Obtaining an understanding of how impairment for trade
receivables is estimated by the management;

TRREEE NG E R SRR IRMNEE

Understanding and testing the entity’s key control in relation
to the recoverability of trade receivables;
TR RAIF BB E S WK IE /Y T U 15 5 # B 52

ELYRFE R

Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the source documents;

RIBHIR A - R E B R RR BRI DT

Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records and aging
analysis of each individual trade debtor; and
2EEECH(BRERFEENK) - B NE
PIEKERTR R B VBRI DT - ST E Z IR AT
AERNEEEE &

Discussing with the management the business relationship
with customers and evaluating reasonableness of the
recoverability of trade receivables with/without subsequent
settlement.

HEBENRETPOEBKEE  URTEESRE
ERRENNBERT - BZREGIEN AT KEE RN S
B o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

s RVRER G =

HEFERARELE ST EARNBEEFLER -
RIFFAEHNERRE  AEEEFEEEMFHE
MEBENERTHEEN MRl BEXREFE
REMBENBREASRE - MRESRR/TFEE
ATHEEN - BB EEZBENRERIRFES
EHRAMBRRTOBBEBREENNRT - |
ERBNERBEEMTR  MEFALANERE
BERNZBESRE BEENEREENBERE
Ah¥RE B IEPTEUS R B|ETERE » R - RREM
HERNTTEEH BERETRESSELE -

FHEGR AT RERMEEYFHR A - AEAA
BIEFEZRER  UWRGEEATBHRERE AN
RH5HHMEIG o

2 iR

B BEREEANRERAXBIDONBEERES

FREHEENEZEE  URGEEHBRRERE
- BEFRARE  EEMNT ERENEX

TE- BEBARBENERERAELREAL -

BEEHERAABBRTHENENRE KHERHE &
REFNBREEE - BREESEETHEER GRSz
HIEEAAT R ARG ©

BENAERABEHER BHESECTEAREL
HMRBBRER  TRFEFSRAERAERREY
EEEBHUMENMAREREMEE - LB #HE
Te (AR3E ) ©

w0i6=wwm 103



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEED RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Gladys Fung Suet Ngan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A B M EA 2SR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HILFE
2016 2015
2016 F 2015
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Fifsk THET THT
Revenue WA 5 3,499,762 2,869,846
Cost of sales SHERA (2,678,250) (2,082,370)
Gross profit 7 821,512 787476
Other income Hip A 6 55,123 47,946
Other gains and losses Hitnlas REE 7 (1,248) 11,229)
Selling and distribution costs HE R A (449,028) (342 416)
Administrative expenses THAX (206,106) (162,565)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E— Rl R E BB 20 (12,719) (7.924)
Net loss on derecognition of an associate RIFER—BBE AR
BR¥E (10,100) -
Finance costs BRI 8 (16,332) (7,955)
Other expenses HfE (70,124) (58,894)
Profit before taxation BB AT A 9 110,978 244439
Income tax expenses e HAx 12 (10,526) (59,763)
Profit for the year EREHN 100,452 184,676
Other comprehensive expense that may HEgesHinBE2B8an
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Hi2EAE
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBINEBREER
foreign operations EH =58 (53,705) (28,069)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALTE 46,747 156,607
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: THALEEFREF (B1]) :
Owners of the Company RARIEAA 103,525 172,674
Non-controlling interests Eiil g (3,073) 12,002
100,452 184,676
Total comprehensive income (expense) TIALTEEFAZE
for the year attributable to: WA (Fix) 858 -
Owners of the Company AREEEA 52,851 146,381
Non-controlling interests Flaudiiy iy (6,104) 10,226
46,747 156,607
Earnings per share BRAT 14
— Basic —&A HK5.92 cents 784l HK10.09 cents 711l
— Diluted —HE HK5.91 cents Bl HK1007 cents 1l
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ara MR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
R2016F 12 31 H

2016 2015
2016 F 2015 4F
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
B =E F#ET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W M ERE 15 572,917 211,904
Investment properties B YE 16 82,274 28,676
Prepaid lease payments AR HERIA 17 64,469 21,989
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, UL 5%%% BE RS
plant and equipment iz e 50,781 61,893
Goodwill EES 18 60,926 -
Intangible assets ﬁﬁ,ﬁ? 19 143,545 -
Interests in an associate R N R 20 - 71,569
Rental deposits Hes 21 23,952 19,764
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE B 22 22,673 19,937
1,021,537 435,732
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 23 475,941 208,707
Prepaid lease payments A HE R 17 1,607 580
Trade and other receivables g5 &ﬁf’@%”ﬁl%’xlﬁ 24 870,760 613,406
Bills receivables JEWE 25 11,714 22,485
Tax recoverable AU el £ IR = 17,841
Pledged bank deposits BEHEIFRITFR 26 5,053 8513
Fixed bank deposits TEBRERTTIF 5K 26 18,623 57,118
Structured bank deposits EREEIRI T 26 - 26,539
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 26 131,848 328,790
1,515,546 1,373,979
CURRENT LIABILITIES FEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMERN IR 27 617,331 367,557
Bills payables ANEE 28 85,433 59,493
Taxation payable FERTTRIE 24,000 115,184
Unsecured bank borrowings MR ITE R 29 391,593 160,541
1,118,357 702,775
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 397,189 671,204
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABAE 1,418,726 1,106,936
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAR
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEFRITHER 29 85,303 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 22 119,327 10,247
204,630 10,247
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,214,096 1,096,689
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERK #E
Share capital A&z 30 175,000 175,000
Reserves T 884,290 883,352
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAREEA AELER 1,059,290 1,058,352
Non-controlling interests IR e 154,806 38,337
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,214,096 1,096,689

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 215 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

FI5EQ5BFTEZ AV FRERN2017F3A28HE
ARRIEESHERKETIZE  TATHESREE
Z:

CHEUNG Tung 3R #
Director 2%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREDE

w3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

At January 2015 RSETR1A 165,000 312677 (403835) 8514 1510 7430 4,79 743,295 876320 36,793 913113
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - 172674 172674 12002 184,676
Eichange differencesarisingon G HN ERE LM

transhation of foreign BHER

operations - - - - - - (2693) - (26293) (1.776) (28069)
Total comprehensive (expense) 27 (F3) A

income for the year et - - - - - (26,293) 172674 146,381 10226 156,607
Dividend recognised as BRRARNRS

distribution (note 1) (M3E12) - - - - - - - (70000) (70,000) (868) (7868))
Issue of shares (note 30@) ~ B/TR(A (FH3E30@) 10000 9600 - - - - - - 106000 - 106000
Costofissuingnewshares — ZTHRAAA - (4157) - - - - - - (4157) - (47157)
Recognitionof sharebased BRI HER

payment expense - - - - - 3808 - - 3808 - 3808
Transfers &2 - - - 1858 - - - (1858) - - -
At 31 December 2015 B5E12A31E 175000 404520 (403835) 10372 1510 11238 15436 844111 1058352 38337 1,096,689
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - 10355 103525 (3073) 100,452
Bichange diferencesarising - SN EREREH

ontranslation of EHER

foreign operations - - - - - - (50,674) - (50,674) (3,031) (53,705)
Total comprehensive (expense) R 2T (5x) A

income for the year &8 - - - - - - (50,674) 103,525 52,851 (6,104) 46,747
Dividend recognised as BRI RARE

distibution (note 13 (Ht13) - - - - - - - (542500 (54.250) - (54250
Recognition of share based AROIFET

payment expense - - - - - 2,337 - - 2,337 - 2337
Acquisiton of subsidiaries  WEMBAF - - - - - - - - - 99,200 99,200
Capital contrbuton to H-EHEARTE

asubsidiary - - - - - - - - - 23373 233713
Transfers &2 - - - 2,49 - - - (2,249) - - -
At 31 December 2016 R06F128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 12,621 1,510 13,575 (35,238) 891,137 1,059,290 154,806 1,214,096
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A\ db =< 434
mAEEREEER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iif)

108

The merger reserve represented the difference between the total equity of
those subsidiaries which were transferred from the shareholders of Sinomax
Enterprises Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company
(‘Individual Shareholders”) to Treasure Range Holdings Limited (“Treasure
Range”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, attributable to the owners
of the Company and the aggregated share capital of the relevant subsidiaries
pursuant to the group reorganisation where the transfer of the relevant
subsidiaries to Treasure Range as satisfied by issue of new shares from Treasure
Range to the Company and from the Company to Sinomax Enterprises, the
immediate holding company of the Company.

According to the relevant requirements in the memorandum of association of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, a portion of their profits after taxation has to
be transferred to the statutory reserve. The transfer had been made before the
distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The reserve can be applied either to
set off accumulated losses, if any, or to increase capital. The statutory reserve
fund is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau is required to transfer a
minimum of 25% of annual net profit to statutory reserve until the accumulated
amount equals half of its quota capital. This reserve is not distributable to the
shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Individual Shareholders acquired
an additional 34% interest in Trade Sincere Limited (“Trade Sincere”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, from a non-controlling shareholder
for a consideration of US$998,012 (equivalent to HK$7,755,000) and the Group's
interest in Trade Sincere was then increased from 51% to 85%. Simultaneously,
Trade Sincere disposed of its 40% equity interest in Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang)
Foam Co. Limited ("Sinomax Kuka"), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Trade
Sincere to a non-controlling shareholder for a consideration of US$1,174,132
(equivalent to HK$8,855,000). Sinomax Kuka became a 60% owned subsidiary of
Trade Sincere after this partial disposal. The Group's effective interest in Sinomax
Kuka remained unchanged. The difference between the consideration received
by the Group and the increase in non-controlling interests after these
transactions amounting to approximately HK$1,515,000 is recorded in capital
reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rEREmMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
BHZE20169F 12 A31 HIFFE

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note HK$’000 HKS$" 000
B & FHExT FHAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before taxation BR A5 A 5 110,978 244,439
Adjustments for: KT S IRFHE -
Net allowance for doubtful debts REREB TR 2,034 9,809
Reversal of allowance for inventories GFERERR 8,023 (1,071)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TETH & IR 8 1,478 592
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 4,707 -
Depreciation of investment properties HEYENE 3,129 1,564
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « = MR EITE 40,425 29,934
Finance costs BT R AN 16,332 7,955
Interest income FBUA (1,931) (6,531)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - HERZHED
plant and equipment &8 134 103
Share-based payment expense B R 2,337 3,808
Share of loss of an associate FE(E—ERBE AR 2 BB 12,719 7,924
Net loss on derecognition of an associate TR E N E 2
B8 F 58 10,100 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEECEBIMNLEERS
working capital =3 210,465 298,526
Increase in rental deposits e m (4,188) (1,282)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOCEm R (170,047) 122,512
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 2 5 K E b fE LUK 18
(350 5> (248,896) 13,101
Decrease (increase) in bills receivables FEURZ= 3R > (1 0) 9,697 (12,797)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Eoth FE (S FIELE hI 157,116 70,913
Increase (decrease) in bills payables FEZEiEE 1 CR ) 30,693 (29,522)
Cash (used in) generated from operations KLE(BA)EARS (15,160) 461,451
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENBEAENEH (59,659) (10,537)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BT B ZEAER (27,070) (43,952)
US Income Tax paid B EBREH (13) (657)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REERE (BA)ELERESFE
ACTIVITIES (101,902) 406,305
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Payment for property, plant and equipment MDEE F}%& S EENEN (284,997) (86,063)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEMT B A 34 (55,076) (43,186)
Net withdrawal (placement) of fixed bank deposits H2EX (7£5%) i,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ 34,820 (43,548)
Net withdrawal (placement) of structured RE(FRR) B IESR1TIF 50
bank deposits 24,831 (2,464)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests 38 (8 — B /E A B JEFE I i 25
of a subsidiary ZEE 23,373 -
Net withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REIEEIRRITERFRE 2,912 5728
Interest received B & 1,931 6,531
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WEREER
plant and equipment Fr1S 5018 322 61
Investment in an associate R—EBERAZIRE - (79,493)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ B&EEBB AR S FE (251,884) (242,434)
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\‘/T\ I/% \ / /\ﬁ:%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

2016 2015
2016 F 2015 4F
HK$/000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITEN (250,355) (354,871)
Dividends paid EfIRE (54,250) (78,682)
Interest paid BAFLE (16,332) (7,955)
New bank borrowings raised ESEMIRITER 486,193 258,274
Proceeds on issue of shares, BT B FTISFIE
net of share issue expenses BRI DA X - 101,843
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING METBHEE (BH)
ACTIVITIES BHeFE 165,256 (81,391)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND BHeRRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS ORA) &5 (188,530) 82,480
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 328,790 254,020
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes E R Ehp S (8,412) (7,710)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOF EXEERELZEY
THE YEAR, represented by 131,848 328,790
Bank balances and cash LASRIT4E 88 IR & 2 7] 131,907 328,790
Bank overdraft LAIR1TIBE X 27 (59) -
131,848 328,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE WIS RRR MY AL

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is Sinomax Enterprises
Limited ("“Sinomax Enterprises’), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The address of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and Units 2005-2007, Level 20,
Tower 1, MegaBox Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

—REE

RARREBERASBESRAREFEFNEWIFE=
SUED] - IR E RIEF]) RFAS S FMK LI E
A HEREERAE  RERHRESH S
RGABRAB([HRFT]) ERET - R
AR AEHRECEERAG([BHBLE])
ZRAAA—HREBEZES((EBELEE])
MRS A E] ©

RATR MM EE R FELEME S FIA/PO.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands R B NLBEE AR RIBE 38R EES
1 HA MegaBox 1 B 201 2005-2007 & °

ARTARAERAT - TEMBATZEEY
TR HI 39 o

GARBREUBT(HBT) 25 BTMAE
NSEEAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& WM

l\\/T\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of amendments to HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had no
material impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 (lassification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

1

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are
in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

I\IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

2.

114

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2016, application of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a material impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets. The expected credit
loss model may result in early provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related Interpretations when
it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company consider that the performance
obligations are similar to the current identification of separate
revenue components under HKAS 18, however, the allocation of
total consideration to the respective performance obligations will
be based on relative fair values which will potentially affect the
timing and amounts of revenue recognition. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS
15 until the Group performs a detailed review. In addition, the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

116

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows except for the
short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value
assets and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the lease liability within operating cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$289,742,000 as disclosed in
note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16,
and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3.

118

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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120

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held by equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group report provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU") (or group of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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3.

122

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but
the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, the transfer is made at the carrying amount.

When there is a change of use of an investment property as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the transfer
is made at the carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes (i.e. construction in progress) are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, structured bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment of loans and receivables could
include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the respective credit period, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by
the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities of the Group, including trade and other
payables, bills payables and bank borrowings, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or, when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entity
comprising the Group, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding
the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 31.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any).
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of their assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether the goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires the management’s estimation of the value in
use of CGUs related to business of which the goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated. In estimating the value in
use of the CGU, key assumptions used by the management
include cash flow projections, growth rates, gross margin, discount
rate, expected sales from customers and management’s
expectation for market development. When the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Details of the Group’s goodwill and intangible assets are set out in
notes 18 and 19, respectively.

The recoverability of trade receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of trade
receivables which require management judgement in making an
assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts.
When there is objective evidence of allowance for doubtful debts,
the management determines the allowance based on the aging
analysis, business relationship and settlement record for each
transaction. Where the actual recoverability of the debts is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and allowance for the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

Details of the Group's trade receivables are set out in note 24.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify
slow-moving and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies
items of inventories which have a realisable value that is lower
than its carrying amount, the Group estimates the amount of
write-down of inventories as allowance for inventories. If the
realisable value of inventories of the Group becomes lower than
its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may be
required.

Details of the Group's inventories are set out in note 23.
Deferred tax assets

The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits generated are less or more than expected,
a material reversal or additional recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
future.

Details of the Group’s deferred tax assets are set out in note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacture
and sale of health and household products and polyurethane
foam. Health and household products mainly represent quality
visco-elastic pillows, mattress toppers and mattresses.

In previous years, the Group reported its primary segment

information based on three major operating and reportable

segments as follows:

Export sales — wholesales of products to overseas
customers;

Retail and
corporate sales

— sales of products through self-operated
retail network, third-party distributors,
direct sales to corporates and other
customers and e-commerce sales
channel; and

Polyurethane foam — wholesales of polyurethane foam to
sales furniture manufacturers in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (other
than Hong Kong and Macau).

During the current year, management has changed the
presentation of the information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") (i.e. the executive directors of the
Company), in order to present a more meaningful representation
of its business operations, consistent with the Group's long-term
strategy, and for the purpose of allocating resources to the
segments and assessing the performance of the segment. The
information reported to CODM in respect of the Group's business
is focused on the location of customers.

5.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE
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5.

144

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

In compliance with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”, the change of the presentation of the information
reported to CODM has led to a change in the segment report for
all comparable years. The Group is now organised into the
following three operating and reportable segments as follows:

— manufacture and sale of health and
household products and polyurethane
foam for customers located in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Macau

China market

North American ~ — manufacture and sale of health and

market household products for customers
located in the United States of
American (the “US"), Canada and
other North American countries
Europe and other — manufacture and sale of health and
overseas household products for customers located
markets overseas except for those customers

located in North American market

The CODM makes decisions based on the revenue of each
segment and reviews reports on the financial performance of the
Group as a whole. No information of segment results, segment
assets and liabilities are reviewed by the CODM for the assessment
of performance of operating segments. Therefore, only the
segment revenue is presented. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies.
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

= A B+ A7 23
e B R AR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

WARDEBER (&)

Pl LGNS

AN BAREEREE D BE D ORAREEDT

HZ2016F12831BLEEE

Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets Consolidated
B & E At
FE 5 £ BN S wae
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET F& T
SEGMENT REVENUE D EBUTA
External sales YNEREE 1,895,867 1,494,402 109,493 3,499,762
Share of loss of an associate JE Al — el Bt
NAEEE (12,719)
Net loss on derecognition of RIEER—EEgE
an associate NEIZEEFER (10,100)
Unallocated other income Ao E AU A 58,207
Unallocated costs and expenses  Zk 9 BRI N K B 2 (3,424,172)
Profit before taxation B 55 BT Al 110,978
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (as restated) HE2015F12A31 BIEFE (KE7)
Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets Consolidated
BUOM & E A
FR B 5% EEmH BINTI5 RE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE A EA
External sales SNEREYE 1,696,827 1,118,756 54,263 2,869,846
Share of loss of an associate JE A — e Bt &
NREE (7,924)
Unallocated income A B A 48,940
Unallocated costs and expenses AOERARFAS (2,666,423)
Profit before taxation B 75 AT ) 244,439

There were no inter-segment sales during both years.

RWEE - WED FREAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
products:

WA RS EBER (4

FEEMRBRBEHVRA

TXHNEAEEREEEEERWRADHT :

Health and household products R R R EEm 2,147,302 1,765,801
Polyurethane foam RRBSRK 1,352,460 1,104,045
3,499,762 2,869,846

Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of the retail shops and
concession counters for retail sales and location of customers for
other sales.

AR

REBKAIFEPWRANER TIZETEEH
ENTEERTERBMAELRAMHEETFH

FRE# T IAZ S -

The US e 1,411,594 1,101,612
The PRC i 1,609,574 1,532,469
Hong Kong BE 277,863 157,893
Macau BT 8,430 6,465
Europe BOM 90,548 31,454
Other Asian countries HbmsMER 12,411 18,259
Other American countries HEiEMER 82,808 17,144
Others Hith 6,534 4,550

3,499,762 2,869,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
deferred tax assets) is presented based on the location of the
assets:

iR e BRI et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

WARDEBER (E)

AR ()

AEEFRBEE (TNEBREEHREE)WEH
THRBEMEM T IAZS -

The PRC A 515,583 276,317
The US ESEY 466,116 119,174
Hong Kong a5 17,138 20,265
Macau JBFY 27 39

998,864 415,795

Information about major customers:

An analysis of revenue from a customer in the segment of North
American market contributing over 10% of the Group's total
revenue during the year is as follows:

IREFNER:

REARBIEETZD B —LELHEA (BE
REBEBKAE 10% A E)DITAT

Customer A ZEA

711,512 755,508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hflg A

Interest income FEUA 1,931 6,531

Rental income HeA 8,898 6,414

Scrap sales (Note a) THRYIEHEE (5t a) 25,011 31,723

Government subsidy (Note b) B Bh (B b) 1,081 1,579

Overprovision of tax penalties in prior years BAFERBINEERE 11,541 -

Others Hity 6,661 1,699
55,123 47,946

Notes: FisE

(a) The corresponding cost of scrap inventories is inseparable from cost of (a) SR BB ARG A B -

sales.
(b)  During the current year, the PRC government granted subsidy of b)) RAFE FEBFRTFARRPENB AR HELD

approximately HK$1,081,000 (2015: HK$1,579,000) to the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company with amounts equivalent to a certain
percentage of the tax paid to the local government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BB AR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HREREE

Allowance for doubtful debts RERE A (4,198) (10,804)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts REREERER 2,164 995
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE W% - E MR EREE (134) (103)
Net exchange gains (losses) i 5z (B548) % 58 920 (1,317)
(1,248) (11,229)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WA

Interest on: ME
— bank borrowings —RITIEE 13,161 7,955
— other borrowings — HMEE 3,171 -

16,332 7,955
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

I\IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRe B R B Rt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR¥ADGF
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after Mk (K %2) L TR EETER
charging (crediting): BREE AR F -

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) F=HM (FEE10) 12,871 14,268

Other staff costs HA 8 TAA 310,688 227,385

Retirement benefit scheme contributions for Hih B THEKEFEHE

other staff R 38,906 31,873

Share based payment expenses, excluding those of ~ B& 17 % {1 B 5%

directors (TBFEES) 919 1,534

Total staff costs B TR A48 363,384 275,060

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A HE RIS 1,478 592

Amortisation of intangible assets A R 4,707 -

Depreciation of investment properties WEMEFE 3,129 1,564

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB REREITE 40,425 29,934

Total depreciation and amortisation WE N EEAEE 49,739 32,090

Operating lease rentals in respect of T’ill%lﬁm%%fﬁg\ﬂﬁ :

— rented premises —HEWE 41,303 32,571
— retail stores (included in selling and —ZEEGIAHE
distribution costs) K EA ) 26,783 21,932
68,086 54,503
Department store counters concessionaire BEARERETEERA:
commission (included in selling and distribution (G ASHE Ry S8R AS)
costs) (Note a) (M5t a) 57,158 56,193
125,244 110,696
Auditor's remuneration (including fees for ZHETEN S (T AFEEZ
non-audit services) RIS ER) 5,216 3,895
Net provision (reversal of allowance) for inventories 17 & # & (B 55 [ ) /558
(included in cost of sales) (Note b) (BrASHENA) (FisEb) 8,023 (1,071)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BREMATHFERA
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHERAK) 2,670,227 2,083,441
Research and development expenses (included in -~ #F35FAX (Gt AE )
other expenses) (Note ¢) (FF5EC) 58,950 39,820

Notes: Mzt -

@) Concessionaire commission in respect of department store counters is (a) AEAREBETELEAE —MUSERNERHEE
generally calculated by applying pre-determined percentages to actual mIRELAETALETE -
sales made through respective counters.

(b) The reversal of allowance for inventories for the year ended 31 (b) HE205F N2 AN BIFEFERERRB I EEH
December 2015 was mainly resulted from the utilisation or sales of the REASHENZ I ET IR ENTFERE -
inventories of which allowance had previously been provided.

© Research and development expenses comprised staff salaries of (© MR BFEA B TH 41515800078 7T (20154
HK$15,158,000 (2015: HK$12,187,000), which were also included in the 12,187,000 7T) » 5t A LB 8 TR -

staff costs disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R Y o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B ZE 201612431 HIEFZ
10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERESTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments comprise payments BEERRSTBRAEMSREREEEAEESE
to the following directors, which include the chief executive of the KEBEmMRA NNES(BHEAATSESITHAER)
Company, by the Group in connection with the management of SRRIE - M BEELNAREEHNT
the affairs of the Group. The amount paid to each director was as
follows:
Performance Retirement
related  Share based benefit
Salaries and incentive payment scheme
Name of Director Fees allowances payments expense contributions Total
#e  EERR  ROXN  BHEA
ESpg e R il %3 X HEER @i

HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TER TEn TEn

(Note (i)
B
Forthe year ended 31 December 2016  EZ2016F 12431 RLLEE
M. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) WENEE(EER) - 1,969 180 466 18 2633
Mr. Cheung Tung RREE
(President and the Chief Executive) (BHAFRETHAE) - 2,039 220 447 18 2724
Mr. Chen Feng FRiE % - 2,447 250 214 = 2911
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MiRERE - 1,547 250 140 18 1,955
Ms. Lam Fei Man HEZ/ME - 1,079 200 151 18 1,448
Mr. Wong Chi Keung THBLE 240 - - - - 20
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon WEARER 20 - - - - 240
M. Fan Chun Wah Andrew BHELE 240 - - - = 240
Mr. Zhang Hiwo Jie RiEE 240 - - - = 240
M. Wu Tak Lung REERL 240 = = - - 240
1,200 9,081 1,100 1418 72 12,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E=AN & 3
RE BRI R MY R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERESTHRAEME (&

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Fortheyearended 31 December2015  EZ 2015512831 ALEE

Mr.Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) ENRE(EER) - 1902 380 748 18 3048
Mr. Cheung Tung KiREsE
(President and the Chief Executive) (BH%ZS/TRAS) - 1969 450 77 18 3154
Mr. Chen Feng RiE%E - 2149 500 3 - 2992
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung ML - 1470 480 25 18 2193
Ms.Lam Fei Man mEZ/ME - 1042 380 241 18 1681
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Rt b 240 - - - - 40
Professor Lam Sing Kiwong Simon WREHR 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew BHERE 240 - - - - 40
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie FhERE 240 - - - - 40
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RERLLE 240 - - - - 240
1,200 8532 2190 2274 72 14,268
Notes: FiE
(i) Performance related incentive payments is recommended by the 0} FERBNRS N2ERRELEEE - BARALE

remuneration committee of the Company and is approved by the board
of directors, with reference to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

(i) No Director nor the chief executive waived any emoluments in respect
of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(iii) There is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings arrangement in favour
of the Directors of the Company, controlled bodies corporate of the
Directors of the Company and connected entities with such Directors of
the Company in respect of the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R Y o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B ZE 201612431 HIEFZ
11. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEFHMH
(@) Emoluments of senior management (a) EREEESH
Of the five senior management of the Company for the year B ZE2015F K2016F12A31BIEFE » &
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, all of them are RAAMNEREREEEY  2BHAKRAT
directors of the Company and their remuneration has been EREREFMAME 1055 -
disclosed in note 10.
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HUBSHFMAL
The five highest paid individual of the Group during the FRAEBEAUGSTFMALBENEES
year included four directors (2015: five directors), details of (20156 : ARESE)  BEZHMFBIHR
whose remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of EXMFE10- BT —RBUEARREETIE
the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2015: BITBA BRI RSHMA L (20154 « &) F
Nil) highest paid individual who is neither a director nor NEM 2 S5 T -
chief executive of the Company are as follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZENEYWET 1,516 -
Performance related incentive payments (Note) B BA&RIFHI 84 (M) 124 -
1,640 -
Note: Performance related incentive payments are reference to the MizE - RPN BB TR 2 EAER 2 KL%
Group's operating results, individual performance and & AAFR R AL ETIRETE -
comparable market statistics.
The number of the highest paid individual who is not the FEBTHERHIERARTEESSEHIA
director of the Company whose remuneration fell within +EHEMT
the following band is as follows:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
No. of No. of
individual individual
A AH
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7L 2 2,000,000 % 7T 1 -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

154

12, FRIBHAX

2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET T
Current tax BIHEARR I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax (Note i) EENEH (M) 3,709 1,393
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") (Note ii) PRI EMREHR ([REMER])
g 37,063 56,781
US income tax (Note iii) EBFTS R (B i) 3 4,757
40,775 62,931
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFE (BRE) T REE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH (14,500) (588)
PRCEIT PRI RS (5,268) 1,637
US income tax EERIFTISHL (7,087) (2,743)
(26,855) (1,694)
Deferred taxation (note 22) IRFER IR (T 5E22) (3,394) (1,474)
10,526 59,763

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profit for those subsidiaries established in the PRC for both years.

The amounts include PRC withholding tax on distributed profits of a
PRC subsidiary of HK$1,115,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The US income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated at a
progressive rate of 15% to 35% on the estimated US federal taxable
income and (b) state income tax calculated at various state income tax
rates on the estimated state taxable income for the respective states for
both years. The income subject to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable
income) is calculated based on the federal taxable income with state tax
adjustments, which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective
states (i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned or
specially allocated to the respective states in which the Group operates)
based on the apportionment factors provided from the state tax returns
in previous year.

Under Decree-Law no. 58/99/M, the Group’s Macau subsidiary
incorporated under the Decree-Law, is exempted from Macau
Complementary tax as it satisfies the relevant conditions as specified in
the Decree-Law, one of which being that it does not sell its products to
any Macau resident company during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

12. FIEBIMAX (&)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the GAEENEMEEMNERABRT AN A BE R
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or VTSR HERMT ¢
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FH&T
Profit before taxation B 758 A1 5 ) 110,978 244,439
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BEHEBFGEHE165%E IR 18,311 40,332
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate JEREE R Rl BB RIS E 2,099 1,307
Tax effect of loss on derecognition of an associate HUH SR8 & N T B T 15 52 22 1,666 -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR A BB T2
tax purposes 4,135 2,833
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 5 78 25 B U A S 8 7% 1 57 22 (2,993) (580)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEERE (26,856) (1,694)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AFPHERNHIBEEOHGTE 10,346 -
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference not 7 - #E52 H A F0 6k B F 1 Z= 58 A9
recognised HigeE (1,695) -
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference )R BTE R T HERHY
previously not recognised AR BRI M 2= 58 - (844)
Deferred tax on withholding tax on undistributed 1 B Fff & /A B & 73k 22 F| 9 FB 0
earnings of PRC subsidiaries RYERERLIE 2,095 1376
Tax effect of profit of a subsidiary under tax TERPIER 2T B E A )
exemption in Macau piaRllEok s (7,895) (5913)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries TR E At B VA M [ £ B BT /S R | Y
operating in other jurisdictions TR EE 11,313 22,946
Income tax expenses Frigfifa st 10,526 59,763

The Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") commenced a tax
audit on certain subsidiaries of the Company in prior years. The
IRD had issued estimated profits tax assessments of HK$14,100,00,
HK$24,000,000, HK$26,725,000, HK$19,140,000 and HK$24,519,000
to the Group relating to the years of assessment 2005/06, 2006/07,
2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 for the financial years ended 31
December 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 (the "Relevant
Years'), respectively. The Group had lodged objection with the
IRD against the assessments and the IRD agreed that the relevant
subsidiaries could holdover the tax demanded for the said years of
assessment, except for the amounts of HK$175,000, HK$2,275,000,
HK$8,150,000 and HK$11,300,000 concerned for the years of
assessment 2006/07, 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10, respectively,
which were required to be paid by acquiring tax certificates by
one of the subsidiaries in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

RBEFE BBR(BHER AEREARFK
BT BABMITRAERZ o #Z 20054F + 2006
F + 2007 FF ~ 2008 FF K 20094F 12 A 31 H IF B EF
E(HBEE]  BEBHE D55 2005/064F -

2006/07 € ~ 2007/08 4 ~ 2008/09 F K 2009/10 £F &
MEERMASEEZLSEH A4 oooooﬁén

24,000,000 JT 26,725,000 JT * 19,140,000 JT
&24519000;‘%%%13%%5T)fé%%éi AEBEET
ZEFERAHERIELERZ  UEBRBEBERER
Hh—MMEB AR AR 20134 201445 - 20154
2016 4F > Bl Bt 2006/07 & ~ 2007/08 & ~ 2008/09
T} 2009/10 F R B 6 [ 122 & §8 175,000 7T
2,275,000/ 7T * 8,150,00078 7T & 11,300,000 7T I

HEWNB AR EH LR FEERNMER
7 o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

13.

156

The Group had provided various information and supporting
documents from time to time. However, having considered the
different opinion of the IRD on the controversial issue, and in order
to avoid further protracted exchange of correspondences, which
may not be in the best interest of the Company from the
commercial perspective, the directors of the Company decided to
take an alternative means with a compromised settlement
approach to resolve the case. During the current year, the Group
submitted a settlement proposal to IRD for the Relevant Years (the
"Settlement Proposal’) with an aggregate of HK$93,450,000 as a
full and final settlement of the tax audit. Subsequent to the
submission of the Settlement Proposal, the Group received formal

12. FIEBIRAX (&)

AEECTHRESEER KX HF - A
ZREIBBRELEFEETERTAER Al
HEZELRBAAR(KEEAEMS ANHEE
RARREFZ) RAREBRTENRE —ERH
N AZBAEEN R RN - RAFE
AEBERHEE R MAEFENMEEZ: (M
REBE]) S A934500008 7T - EAMIEE
R 2 E R REME - RXMAERE  AEE
WG BRBENBEZELNEEAERFEEL
f SRR ER BN AR REBRCEINEE
5 MEFENREEZBENCRE2MNME - A%
lf’iﬂuﬁ’\ﬂfiir WU TS EA AT S R B o

notices of revised assessment for the Relevant Years from the IRD HZEZ20106FN2A3BEFEEHBEERY
pursuant to the Settlement Proposal. With the Settlement Proposal 14,453,000 JC °
accepted by the IRD, the tax audit in respect of the Relevant Years
has now been completely settled. The Group had previously made
adequate provision for this tax audit in prior years. A provision of
approximately HK$14,453,000 has been released for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
DIVIDENDS 13. BB
2016 2015
2016 F 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE T FAT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FRBERRD IR AR FIERR
the Company recognised as distribution fRERZ B :
during the year:
Interim, paid — HK0.6 cent per share for 2016 2016 F 2 /R~ F BRI &
(2015: HK1.5 cents per share) — B 0.6 1L
(20154 : TiRAxt 1.57840) 10,500 26,250
Final, paid — HK2.5 cents per share for 2015 2015 F B RS AREILE
(2015: HK2.5 cents per share for 2014) — G AD 2.5 (L
(2015 4F : 2014 EGARAK (D 2.5801) 43,750 43,750
54,250 70,000

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016, amounting to approximately HK$17,500,000 has been
proposed by the board of directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The

RBEHRE EFGE?

proposed final dividend is not recognised as a liability in these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|_ STATEMENTS
/\‘/T\ /ﬁﬁkﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ FIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HILFE
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AKRARHEEABGESBRERNRESRF THRE I
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TEETE

following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic and FTE AR R E R T
diluted earnings per share: ZEF
Profit for the year attributable to RRATHEA ANEHFEREF
owners of the Company 103,525 172,674

Number of shares: REEE :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for & & f% E N 22 K| #) & 38 PL

the purpose of basic earnings per share B MEFHE 1,750,002,000 1,711,645,836
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in BRARTEERENETEE

respect of outstanding share options Rl a2 788,805 2,658,793
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for st & &M #E BA| A BIKE B

the purpose of diluted earnings per share INFE 1581 1,750,790,805 1,714,304,629
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 sk B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

15. W% - BERRE

CosT B

At January 2015 RusE1R18 148715 104132 51804 9307 5789 319767
Bichange adjustments EHA% (6729 (4994 (794) (429) (304) (13249)
Additions HE 1,020 12979 9041 239% 653 31961
Disposal HE - (701) (49) (245) - (994)
Acquisttion of a subsidiary WEENEAF 1312 42 4 12 - 6,884
Transfers R 87 4267 - - (4354) -
Transferred to investment properties (Note) axang  BERAEGD) 9740) - - - - 9740)
At 31 December 2015 RusENAA 134665 119935 80071 12304 7654 334629
Bichange adjustments L (14073) (9034 (1049 (830) (1,254 (26239)
Additions HE 58 68406 33761 1,608 20016 34319
Disposal HE - (244) (572 (546) - (1362
Acquistion of a subsidiary WEEMB AT 79899 9875 493 1148 - 95858
Transfers bl - 380 60 04 4156) -
At31 December 2016 R6E1 A3 201019 192810 9708 13908 12060 727,205
DEPRECIATION i

At January 2015 RusE1B18 2079 B2 31,745 374 - 98375
Exchange adjustments A% (1654) (1875) (429 (179 - (4137)
Provided for the year FEER 744 11832 8613 2048 - 20934
Eiimination on disposal i ERE S - (5%) (44 (190) - (830)
Transferred to Investment properties (Note) ~ EBZHENE () (617) - - - - (617)
At 31 December 2015 RuisE12B31A 34964 0473 30885 5403 - 122725
Exchange adjustmens BB (132 (3601) (786) 37 - (7956)
Provided for the year EERB 9456 17378 10960 2631 - 40455
Elimination on disposal HEHEH - (17) (289 (446) - (906)
At 31 December 2016 Rui6E 12831 A 41288 56079 49770 7151 - 154288
CARRYING VALUES BEE

At31 December 2016 R06E12A3H 159731 136731 47438 6,757 222260 572917
At 31 December 2015 Ras%E 128318 99,701 77462 2018 6901 7654 211904

The Group's buildings are erected on land in the PRC.
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WA

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method and at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 35 years
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Leasehold improvements,  10%-33'/,% or over the term
furniture and fixtures of the lease, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 20%

Buildings

Note: Property, plant and equipment were transferred to investment
properties evidenced by end of owner-occupation.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

15. ¥1% -  BMERRE(E)

FETIRMBEME - BEMREEB (ERTRER
M) BB AR R A il 5 AT 62 A SF HR R O RIBR B (B (2
RERERIZT I EFIRREME

TEF R FER35F
(AmEFREREE L)
855 Mt 2s 10%-20%

HEEE KA 10%-33'/,% IR X F 5
REE (A& R REREE RE)
"E 20%

M WE  BEERRERTBRETGHARERELEY
£

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYE

HK$'000

FAET
CosT R
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A1 H 23,780
Exchange adjustments [E 5 F % (1,270)
Transferred from property, plant and equipment HEEYE  BENERE 9,740
At 31 December 2015 201512 H31H 32,250
Exchange adjustments FE H % (5,879)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B A F 62,049
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A31H 88,420
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1 818 1,506
Exchange adjustments TE 5 FE (113)
Provided for the year FERE 1,564
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEAYE - EREE 617
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 H 3,574
Exchange adjustments VE 5 38 (557)
Provided for the year FER M 3,129
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12 A31H 6,146
CARRYING VALUES BRMEIE
At 31 December 2016 20165 12 H31H 82,274
At 31 December 2015 2015912 318 28,676
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties are erected on land in the PRC
and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
term of the lease or 35 years.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair values of the Group's investment
properties were HK$166,551,000 (2015: HK$91,679,000). The fair
values have been determined by the directors of the Company.

The directors of the Company determined the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of each reporting period by
reference to the comparison method of valuation. The inputs used
by the directors of the Company in the fair value measurements
mainly include the market value of comparable properties of
similar size, character and location.

In the opinion of the directors, the current use of the investment
properties are their highest and best use.

The Group's investment properties represent industrial properties
located in Zhejiang Province and Sichuan Province, the PRC and
their fair values are measured with unobservable inputs, which is
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers of investment properties into or out of
level 3 during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARe BTSRRI AL

16. REME(E)

AEBOREMEDERNPE L £ LEKR
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R2016F 124310 AERMIEEMELATES
166,551,000 7 7T (2015 4F : 91,679,0005 7T ) © AN A
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17.

18.

BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R Y o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

BE20169F 12431 HILFE
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ANHEERIA
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AREBEMBENEERBEVREETRRMNABE i
interests in the PRC. = e
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REBEENMANTR
Non-current asset ERBEE 64,469 21,989
Current asset MENEE 1,607 580
66,076 22,569
GOODWILL 18. BHE
HK$'000
FTET
COST 5%
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R2015F 1 A1 B K&2015F 12 431 H -
Exchange adjustments VE % (1,508)
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries U BB R B A A M E L 62,434
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 431 H 60,926
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been BETRENS BEELsREMEAMFBINIRES
allocated to two individual CGUs, comprising Chengdu Xingang EAEBEA HeERSHFE R A ([ RE
Sponge Co,, Ltd. ("Chengdu Xingang") in the manufacturing and ;e DB EEAREEREE - LA & Dormeo
sales of polyurethane foam and Dormeo North America, LLC North America, LLC ([Dormeo |) B2 & X B E &
(‘Dormeo’) in the retail and wholesale of health and household TERHEEE - 201612 A31H  BEEED R A
products. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts are 24,463,000 7 7T ] 36,463,000 75 IT, ©
HK$24,463,000 and HKS$36,463,000, respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors of the HE2016F12A83BILEE A B EERTH
company determine that there are no impairments of any of its E—ESREENESEA BN ERE -
CGUs containing goodwill.
The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their LR eEABEMNNAKESENEERETE

major underlying assumptions are summarised below: MREEERTRA T -
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRe B R B Rt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

18.

162

GOODWILL (Continued)
Chengdu Xingang

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 4-year period, and a discount rate of 8%. Chengdu
Xingang's cash flows beyond the 4-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is used with
reference to the inflation rate in Chengdu area and the
management expectation on market development. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include gross margin,
expected sales from customers, the estimation is based on the
Chengdu Xingang's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Chengdu
Xingang to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
Chengdu Xingang.

Dormeo

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate of 15.6%. Dormeo’s
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include gross margin, expected sales from
customers, the estimation is based on the Dormeo’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Dormeo to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of Dormeo.
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BN DEeEREEREESEEE
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Dormeo
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BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R Y o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B E20169F12A31 HIEFE
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Brand Customer
name relationship Total
i b 5 1B BEFE#% e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET FHT
cosT B
At 1 January 2015 and 20151 H1H
31 December 2015 K 201512 4318 - - -
Acquired on acquisition of A Uk B8 — R B A A
a subsidiary i L ey 85,483 62,769 148,252
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12H31H 85,483 62,769 148,252
AMORTISATION #aH
At 1 January 2015 and M2015F1 818
31 December 2015 %2015 12 A31H - - -
Charge for the year FAZH - 4,707 4,707
At 31 December 2016 20165512 H31 B - 4,707 4,707
CARRYING VALUES EREE
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A31H 85,483 58,062 143,545
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 431 H - - -
The customer relationship has finite useful lives of 10 years and ZERBENERAFERFHATF  WIREGE
amortised on a straight-line basis. HEF Y o
The brand name has indefinite useful life. The directors of the MEZENRFERFERAER - AR EFRA
Company are of the opinion that the brand name is developed M EBITEZFERNES  HEETBLRE, M
through years of advertising, promotional campaigns, and BERTES -
customer satisfaction.
As a result, the brand name is considered by the directors of the At AR mEEEESSERMEMIRERE
Company as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected FEE WA ARREERAEEERIFERFE
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The brand name will H - miPEBE Tew#Hy a2HEEREH
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. WEEAEBR -k SBFURNETREATHE
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever mRe BIRRER - HEEETRERE -
there is an indication that it may be impaired.
The brand name is acquired on acquisition of Dormeo, the basis of fh R 2 TR U BE Dormeo B JE UL EE - 1 R] Yo Bl & 58
the recoverable amount and its major underlying assumptions are B ELE I H I BB ER A MY s 18 T att -

summarised in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B Z2016F 12A31 HILFE
20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. R—EBE QT 2 ER
Cost of investment BB KA 79,493
Share of post-acquisition loss FE(R R E 1R - (7,924)
- 71,569
Consolidated financial position HEMBMRR
Current assets MEVEE 59,363
Non-current assets IERBEE - 17,241
Current liabilities mEaE - 54,466
Net assets BEFE = 22,138
Result for the period upon deem disposal/since acquisition BEHER BRBREHB %28
Revenue 36,300 33,697
Loss and total comprehensive expense for ,Hﬂ WEﬁTﬁ\&%Eﬁﬁi
the period 4azE (34,847) (17,335)
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21.

BEEEARARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o +
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20. R—EBE QR 2w (&)
Result for the period upon deem disposal/since acquisition RIEHER BWEBPRE 2248 (&)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to HZ2015F 12 A3 BIEFEZVBEER B ZER
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in AP MERFPERONE S A8 #Em s REE
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 ZEERINT
December 2015:
HK$'000
FHAT
Net assets of the associate BERAICFEE 22,138
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in REEGEE RN RI A EER
the associate sl 25%
5,535
Goodwill [EES 55,200
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition WIEEIE 2 AP ERABRNTZE 8,841
Acquisition cost LA B8 R S 1,993
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate REBEBMER R REA TR 71,569
On 11 April 2016, the Group further acquired 14.81% membership R2016F4 11 - K& B #E — 2 W Dormeo
interests in Dormeo. For details of the step acquisition of Dormeo, 1481% RS © B D 2P U Dormeo 2 515
please refer to note 34(b). The Group recognised a net loss of E2HMEE340) - NEB AR A EEIE (TER
approximately of HK$10,100,000 as a result of the re-measurement M]‘ 5T 34(b)) {éi%ﬁ‘ﬁ% Dormeo JE BT 45 B 2 I R ##
of membership interests in Dormeo previously held and the 3 M B2 Dormeo R R B 2 ITE @ R E E MR
derivative financial assets related to membership interests in BB F 58 49 10,100,000 78 I, © ﬁﬁ%)&ﬂé}%%ﬁﬁr)\,m
Dormeo upon waiver of Possible Reduction (as defined in note é%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁmiﬁqﬁm%qﬂ [ FER— A
34(b)). The net loss is included in “Net loss on derecognition of an NAIZEERFERE ] B oo
associate” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
RENTAL DEPOSITS 21. HeEZkE
The balances represent rental deposits placed by the Group in EHRHAERLREEREREDE ZTEENEE
connection with its rented premises, retail stores and department AEEBENNE2RE - HEHREKRARE

store counters. The relevant leases will either expire after one year
from the end of the reporting period, or if the remaining lease
term is less than one year, the Group has the positive intention to
renew the leases upon expiry. Therefore, the balances are classified
as non-current.

HIREF —FEm AW ERBOAEFHIR
—F AEEERERRKREIHE - Filt - &
BRIEDERIERD -

2.8
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The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised

%R R M aE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HE2016F 1231 HIFFE

22, DEFERRED TAXATION

and movements thereon during the reporting period:

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=]
IN=Y

IESE R IR

AT ARBENEEZNECHA (BB EER

HEE

A1 January 2015 RusE1A1H (9353) 316 738 1279 - - 0 8218
Eichange adjustments S 0 - 3 3 - - [ 0
(Charged) credited to profit orloss g (B A (1376) (724) 2015 104 - - b 359
Released to profitor loss upon paymentof X il S 6BZEER

dividends 1115 - - - - - - 1115
At 31 December 2015 Ro0sE12A318 (9616) 239 2820 12866 - - 1228 9690
Exchange adjustments EiA% (1 - - (813) 189 1574 - (12 263%
(Charged) credited to profit orloss MBS (R)EA (209) (2.247) 355 1513 - m 1600 359 3304
Avising from acauisition EXANE - - - - (32671) (27819) (51888) - (112374)
At 31 December 2016 B6E 128318 1,72 145 6372 13566 (30773) (25529 (50288) 1575 (96,654)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statements of MEAHBRAERO2NME r & TELEHRIESL

financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have

been offset.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

EREED TR -

AT BB SIS (R RE BRSO AT

Deferred tax assets FIETR I & 22,673 19,937
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE (119,327) (10,247)
(96,654) 9,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$93,247,000 (2015: HK$17,090,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$30,543,000 (2015: HK$17,090,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$62,704,000 (2015: Nil) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$ 15,670,000 (2015: Nil) that will expire in 2021. Other losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had deductible temporary
differences mainly arising from allowance for inventories and
doubtful debts and unrealised profits on inventories of
HK$49,636,000 (2015: HK$52,808,000). Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary
differences of HK$46,696,000 (2015: HK$52,333,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to the remaining
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profit earned by certain of the
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 of Renminbi ("RMB”)
290,494,000 (equivalent to HK$355,728,000) (2015: 228,975,000
(equivalent to HK$284,480,000)), as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax has been
provided in respect of remaining balance of the temporary
difference to the undistributed profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends distributed
from Sinomax USA. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits of
Sinomax USA of US$6,149,000 (equivalent to HK$47,655,000) (2015:
USS$3,851,000 (equivalent to HK$29,892,000)). Deferred taxation
has not been provided for such temporary differences as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

22, RIERIE (&)

REREEAR - AL BB R E) A IEEE 93,247,000
7 70 (2015 4F +17,090,0007% 7T ) 0] 4 3K 88 7 2K %
Ao B 5 A B E 5305430008 7T (20154 :
17,090,000/ 70 ) ERELER B EE - AR KK iE
FIEE LATE R - B0 £ 582 T 62,704,000 7T (2015
FE)ERERMIBEE © 902021 FE@m 2 B
815,670,000/ 7T (2015 F « ) AR ERBIIBE 18
MR - EfhEria ] R HR AL 6E o

R2016F 124310 AEBEFZARFERRER
GEXAERGMBEMEATINREE 25
49,636,00078 7T (20154F : 52,808,000/ 7T) - ©FtE
B A 0 OR BB £ 584669600078 7T (20154 ¢
52,333,000/ 70) ERIEL R IBEE - AT AT
BE B MER TR A ] BIEFUR R M 258 - I
TR A R BRI I E R RIE T R B L E -

RIEPBMERTERE - F2008F 1 51 HEE - &
BRI A R B E TGS A TS R M A% S A TE
T o RS B R 12 ) 8 OB I 1 2 R AV e -
AR AR B AR RN KA RE B I BR B 1 =58 - E it
IRt BB A TR 20164F 12 B 31 B BEEAY R
DikaFARE ([ ARME]) 290,494,000 7T (FHE R
355,728,000 7C) (20154 + AR ¥&228,975,0007T (48
B 72 284,480,000 70 ) ) FE(R MV ER RF M ZRRIE LR
EFRTERSE - A2016F 12 A31 B  ERHPEHE
AR 2008 F 1 A1 BABBEELA K 5 R 4 FI BE B 1
EEMATEIE IR TR -

K& B 7Bt Sinomax USA 2R B A% B 8~ T 0 ES ©
MR 2016 12 431 8 » 7K % B 5t Sinomax USA K 5
K i ) B Be B 1 2= 38 56,149,000k T (#E E R
47,655,000 7T ) (20154 : 3,851,000 jT (B & R
29,892,000/ 70 ) ) o FRFNZN 52 (B g 47 I 3 12 R AR 1
EFMER 0 &R R AR RN K AT 88 5B [ e b5
MERE HTERZEHESEEBELRERE
B -
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

I\IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B BHRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

23.

24,

168

INVENTORIES 23. &
2016 2015
2016 2015 4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Raw materials R 149,480 72,292
Work in progress TEEIR 68,423 31,887
Finished goods B TR 258,038 194,528
475,941 298,707

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. E5 RHMEBWFIE

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables B o ENIE 754,373 548,408
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (23,363) (27,514)
731,010 520,894
Other receivables E b jE W GRIE

Prepayments for purchase of raw materials and 8 B B RO FE (T 5018
operating expenses MR &R 82,169 67,007
Other taxes recoverable H b a] Y [B] Fi 18 49,019 15,230
Advance to staff B THIE 2,185 5482
Others Hip 6,377 4,793
139,750 92,512
Total trade and other receivables B5 NEMEWRIBERE 870,760 613,406

The Group's retail sales are made through its retail network
comprising stand-alone retail shops and concession counters in
department stores. The Group also sells health and household
products directly to overseas wholesalers and retailers and the
polyurethane foam to furniture manufacturers in the PRC. Sales at
self-operated retail shops and sales through retailers in the PRC are
transacted either by cash or credit cards. For sales made at
concession counters, the department stores collect cash from the
ultimate customers and then repay the balance after deducting
the concessionaire commission to the Group. The credit period
granted to department stores ranges from 30 days to 120 days.
For sales to wholesalers, retailers and other manufacturers, the
Group generally allows a credit period ranging from 7 days to 90
days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on the revenue
recognition date at the end of each reporting period.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

5 REMBEWRIEE)

AT RSN RERBE B E 5 I WA IREE D
I (RIBBEREHARNRAERBHZT)

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Within 30 days 30 H AR 371,154 249,521
31 to 60 days 31260H 206,123 142,112
61 to 90 days 61590 H 106,625 54,232
91 to 180 days 912180 H 33,326 20,830
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 6,758 29,578
Over 365 days i@ 365 H 7,024 24,621
731,010 520,894

For sales to wholesalers, retailers and other manufacturers, before
accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
potential customers’ credit quality and define the credit limits
based on results from investigation of historical credit records of
these customers.

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality
of trade receivables and considers the debts that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality and the Group
maintains a good business relationship with those customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$215,303,000 (2015:
HK$142,583,000), which are past due at end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

PRAMER TERREMEERNHEENS -
REMETAHEL 2/ AREEHEEEFPH
EEEARETAMNNE  XERELAKREEZE
EFBAGECHNATERATEERSE -

AEEEREeRYEREZREKNENEEE
= j’I%’ui’%EﬁEﬂi@HﬂX*ﬂEE’ﬂfi& LA RIFE
EEER AASEEZSFEPAERRIEKH
1% e

42 85 T B /215,303,000 7T (2015 4F © 142,583,000
B MEWEBD T AAREBNE FEWRFUEL
% ZENERBFEHR RO EAEEE
BUEH R EGEEE AEETERZELES
AT KRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are

24, B R EMEWIEE

AT AREREHRNDARERBENE 5 E

past due but not impaired at the end of each reporting period. W TEBR B D AT ©
Within 30 days 30 HUA 127,820 48,563
31 to 60 days 31%&60H 45,017 51,258
61 to 90 days 61290 H 22,785 4,452
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 H 11,085 11,565
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 1,988 2,124
Over 365 days B3@ 365 H 6,608 24,621
215,303 142,583
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts DERREET

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH 27,514 28316
Exchange adjustments [ H A2 (1,082) (785)
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE 4,198 10,804
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RERE R M (2,164) (995)
Bad debts written off [RE =i (5,103) (9,826)
Balance at end of the year FREER 23,363 27,514

Allowance are made based on the settlement records, aging
analysis and internal assessment of recoverability of the debt.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e WA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

BILLS RECEIVABLES

The amount represents bills receivables on hand which are not yet
due at the end of the reporting period. The management
considers the default rate is low based on past experience as the
Group seldom encounters default on bills receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables based on their
time to maturity as at the respective reporting dates.

25, EWWERE

ZETHEANRER R RAMNFBRETE -
REBBELR  ARAKEE VB EKRRERE
BN REEERREOXRER -

AT ARE 25 B BIRE S R 25 00 BIKRERE
IRARER DT ©

2016 2015

2016 &£ 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FHIT

Within 30 days 30 HAR 2,850 3,538
31to 60 days 31E60H 923 2,850
61 to 90 days 61290 H 1,179 3,071
91 to 180 days 912180 H 6,762 12,822
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H - 204
11,714 22,485

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS/FIXED BANK DEPOSITS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(a) Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2016, pledged bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months carried interest
at fixed rates ranging from 3.10% to 3.13% (2015: 2.80% to
3.05%) per annum, respectively. The bank deposits have
been pledged to secure the Group’s general banking
facilities and are classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bills payable.

26.E #‘ ﬁﬁw\/ﬁl ﬁﬂ?ﬂ?
.f

(a) CEFRBRITER

R2016F 128318 REEBHBE A=A
EHEERRITERIRE EFEETE - 25l
N F & F3.10%Z3.13% (2015 4F : 2.80% &
3.05%) © RITHFREEEAUARS AEEK
—F}Q%E”ﬁﬂé DEARBEE - DEHARE
THEREREERENRIEEERER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS/FIXED BANK DEPOSITS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

172

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Structured bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, structured bank deposits carried
interest at variable rates ranging 1.25% to 2.27% per annum.
These deposits bore guaranteed minimum interest of 1.25%
per annum, their principals were guaranteed and the
deposits may be withdrawn by the Group at any time.
Interest rates of these structured deposits varied depending
on the movement of market interest rates and foreign
exchange rates at the respective maturity dates and those
features constituted embedded derivatives. Some of the
embedded derivatives were closely related whereas some
were not based on assessment of their risks and
characteristics. For the non-closely related embedded
derivatives, their fair values were assessed to be not
significant during the reporting period.

Fixed bank deposits

As at 31 December 2016, fixed bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months carried interest at fixed
rates ranging from 1.40% to 2.27% (2015: 1.60% to 2.27%)
per annum.

Bank balances

As at 31 December 2016, bank balances carried interest at
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.30% (2015: 0.01% to
3.30%) per annum.

Bank overdrafts

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank overdrafts of

approximately HK$59,000 (2015: Nil). Bank overdrafts carry
interest at market rate of 5.5% (2015: Nil) per annum.
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26. CHEHFBITER EBUERTHE
?émﬁﬂﬁﬁm/ﬂﬁm%&ﬁﬁ
(b) HBHERITER
R2015F 12 A31 8 » B MHERITHEFTIRDF
FFEREFE  NTHEI125%E227% ° 25
5 5B A AR AR B F ) & 1.25% EZK%B
SARPE N AN 52 B A] pAME (A B R HR ER T 3 o
LB AR TR R 70 48 78 B A7 E rn
BRI ERINEEREBMAE - MZSHNE
BRERARAITETR - BORBRAITETR
WEERZY) - A% - RTEHERR REF
EREME  SRIEBEAEZ NN AITE

TAME EAFERBEHARFE ST
BEX-

(0 EMRITER

R2016F12A31H  REIHAA=@AMN
T ERTERIZEEFETE N TE

E1.40% % 2.27% (20154 © 1.60% & 2.27%) °

(d) SRITHER

R2016F12 A31H @ IRITEBRUATIE R =X
AN T F001%E3.30% (20154 ¢
0.01% % 3.30%) °

(e) MITEX
R2016F 128318 REBABRITEIY

59,000/ L (20154F + &) - IRITBE X IXETF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|_ STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EFREMENTIE

Trade payables E 5 ERFOE 395,725 200,804
Deposits received from customers BREFPUEMIZES 14,267 15,915
Accrued expenses/provision for expenses FEETBISL R BE 97,776 95,822
Other taxes payable HibpEFiIE 30,741 29,121
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of &<t &5 R it B A B FEIZ AR AR R

a subsidiary (Note) B RIE (FEE) 6,543 6,543
Payable for property, plant and equipment FETHIZ - R R HE IR 29,981 -
Payable for freight charges EHEE 17,674 9,401
Others Hib 24,624 9,951

221,606 166,753

Total trade and other payables B 5 REAE A RIE AR 617,331 367,557
Note: The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Wizt : ZRIB AEIKE - B NBIRERKEE -
The credit period of trade payables is from 30 to 60 days. B EMNRIENEERA30E0H
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the LTFARSREHRIZEXZAEAZYNE ZFEN
invoice date at the end of each reporting period. HRIBBRER DM ©

Within 30 days 30 HAR 204,086 131,749
3110 60 days 312 60H 131,086 58,446
61 1o 90 days 61290 H 46,071 4,025
91 to 180 days 91ZE 180 H 9,242 2,795
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 5,240 3,789

395,725 200,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN Ead e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
BHZE2016F 12 A31 HIFFE

28. BILLS PAYABLES

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end of
each reporting period. Bills payables as at 31 December 2016 were
secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$5,053,000 (2015:

HK$8,513,000).

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables at the end of the

28. BNRE

ecccc00e

) 0000009
20000GOO

UQO@QQ@O

REBWERNEZEERSHREHRH AR -
R2016F 12 A31 BMENZREASEBRITER
5,053,000 7T (2015 4F : 8,513,000 78 7T ) VEHEH# o

AT RARREMRIZFIRET B0 ERN

reporting period presented based on bills issue date: ZIEERE AT
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&T FAT
Within 30 days 30 HLAA 7,267 4392
31 to 60 days 312 60H 42,426 11,588
61 to 90 days 61290 H 17,392 8,070
91 to 180 days 912180 H 18,348 35443
85,433 59,493
29. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 9. EIEMBITMER
2016 2015
2016 2015 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Trade loans BE5E® 130,000 38,000
Term loans FHER 346,896 122,541
476,896 160,541
Variable-rate B 366,293 160,541
Fixed-rate & E FI| & 110,603 -
476,896 160,541
Carrying amounts repayable* FEEERAE
Within one year —FR 270,259 130,541
More than one year, but not more than BB —FEMFUR
two years 112,105 8,000
More than two years, but not more than HBMFERF AN
five years 94,532 22,000
476,896 160,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B Z2016F 1231 HILFE
29. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 9. MERRITER(E
(Continued)
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Analysis of carrying amounts: BREEDT
Bank borrowings that are repayable withinone 7B R4E B RS —ERNEEH
year from the end of the reporting period IRITER 270,259 130,541
Bank borrowings that are not repayable within -~ BZERRE R LT —FRNEERE
one year from the end of the reporting period BEeEEREREEIER
but contain a repayable on demand clause KSR TIE R
(shown under current liabilities) (RENEABEZY)
More than one year, but not more than BB —FEMENAA
two years 72,667 8,000
More than two years, but not more than FRIRMFE R F AR
five years 48,667 22,000
391,593 160,541
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FERHEBETN25 85,303 -
476,896 160,541

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in *
the loan agreements.

B HFIRAR R G AT TR EE R A AR -

Variable-rate bank borrowings bear interest with reference to ST F R AR T IR E B R T R 2 A R AR
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and Prime rate plus a specific FHEREENZ NS EFNERSEE o

margin of the relevant banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

29. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the corresponding group entity which it relates:

29. EILMMITER(F

THIRFFARITERN SRR (APISHEREEER
DREER AN EETIE) -

2016 2015

2016 & 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

uss e 163,491 38,750

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings, are as

AEBENERERFNE(BERFTONK) EE D
AR -

follows:
2016 2015
2016 F 20156
Effective interest rates (per annum): BRFERE :
Variable-rate borrowings FENF R ER 1.75% - 4.64% 1.45% — 6.90%
Fixed-rate borrowings TEFEIER 3.95% - 6.09% N/A 7~

As at 31 December 2016, a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary had provided a guarantee to a bank to secure the bank
facilities granted to that subsidiary to the extent of RMB17,600,000,
out of which RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,802,000) (2015: RMB17,600,000, out of which
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,888,000)),
were utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
Number of
shares Amount
RAEE S&
HK$'000
AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FA% 0.1 7B T B
Authorised: JEIE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R2015F 1 A1 BAK2015F &
and 2016 2016412 A 31 H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares HK$’000
BRHHE F#ET
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE -
At1 January 2015 M2015F1 818 1,650,002,000 165,000
Issue of shares upon placement (Note a) I E R TR (M5 a) 100,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 MR2015F X 201612 A31H 1,750,002,000 175,000

31.

Notes:

(@)

On 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement to
place up to 100,000,000 new shares to Sinomax Enterprises at HK$1.06
per share. On 21 May 2015, 100,000,000 new shares were issued and
allotted upon the placement. The net proceeds are to be used to fund
the Group’s business expansion in the US and general working capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, a share option scheme was adopted
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants
under the scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, will contribute or
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

BEE

(@  MR2015%F5815H8 » ARRIFIN—
f& A% 1D 1.068 T &) (B 4% M 2 5 B ﬁ%@a%%%
100,000,000 A% #1 A% » 7201645 A 21 B * 100,000,000
RIFTRA LSBT RECE © ﬁﬁ?%%&lﬁi%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁw%
AEENEZEEBERR —REEEFNRHRES -

31. lBRHERTE

AR ERBRETS

DB &R - AT

(i) BRD

MR2013F 12 4138 » AR E IR B EHAE K
ERE((ERAMRENBRESTSD - &
RAFEER E%Hx%%‘f’iﬂ s — IR IR () 2B AT
g BEASERRUZEETHNEERS
HEHARRRCIEL A REEER TR ©

BER2EEEARBREEMKNELRF
MER2BRRBES  (THRABRISHRB
B (BT FRTRBIUIFATES) -
AEARRAREEFRANBEXUEH AR
R/ Sk E AT B T{’Eﬂjﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬂ?&ﬁ%
P e - R MR -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

178

0]

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HKS1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 13 December 2013, the Company has authorised to
grant to 140 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 34,918,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company granted
share options to 137 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 34,903,000 shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall be a price representing 30% discount to the
Offer Price.

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be vested equally in five
tranches commencing on 10 July 2014, the first date on
which dealings in the shares of the Company commenced
on the Stock Exchange (the ‘Listing Date”) and on each of
the first, second, third and fourth anniversary of the Listing
Date. The grantees to whom a share option has been
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be
entitled to exercise the share option any time after the share
option has been vested but in any event on or before the
date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing Date. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not
exercised within the exercise period will lapse and cease to
be of further effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014
and will cease to have effect after 10 July 2014. Share
options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

31. BRESTE (2

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BXRXABEBENEREEE)
The following tables disclose details of movements of share TEREEREE X AFEERBERETEIR
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: HERE AR S B e
Outstandingat  Llapsedduring  Outstandingat  Lapsedduring Exercisedduring  Outstanding at
Options Vesting period 11,2015 the year 31.12.2015 the year the year 31.12.2016
R2015% R2015%F 20165
1R18 128318 128318
BhRE BES HATE RERZN HATE REREN RERTE HATHE
(Note (a))
GiRR)
Directors
EZ
Tranche 1 1002.2014-1007.2014 4,045,240 - 4045240 - - 4,045,240
E R WI4EIA0BZENI4ETRI0R
Tranche 2 10.02.2014-10.07.2015 4,045,240 - 4045240 - - 4,045,240
g7t WI4EIAI0BZNIETAI0R
Tranche 3 10022014-10072016 4045240 - 4045240 - - 4,045,240
2= WIEIAINBZNI6ETAI0R
Tranche 4 1002.2014-1007.2017 4045240 - 4045240 - - 4,045,240
1t WAFIRI0BENTETR10R
Tranche 5 10022014-1007.2018 4045240 - 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240
ERiti W4FLR10BEWI8ETR10R
2022600 - 20,226,200 - - 20,226,200
Senior management
SHEEE
Tranche | 10022014-1007.2014 1,007,560 - 1007560 - - 1,007,560
-4 WI4EIAINBENI4ETRI0R
Tranche 2 10.022014-10.07.2015 1,007,560 - 1007560 - - 1,007,560
£ WHAFLRI0BEWETRI10R
Tranche 3 10022014-1007.2016 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - - 1,007,560
EL WI4EIAI0BENI6ETAI0R
Tranche 4 1002.2014-10.07.2017 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - - 1,007,560
1l WI4EIA0BENTETRI0R
Tranche 5 1002.2014-10.07.2018 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - - 1,007,560
ERibis WI4EIAI0BZNISETAI0R
5037800 - 5037800 - - 5,037,800
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 31. BRESE ()

()  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BEXAFEREABRETSE)

Employees
E5
Tranche 1 1002.2014-10.07.2014 1,839,800 (123,000) 1,716,800 (56,000 - 1,660,800
i 04F2810AZ 01457 A10A
Tranche 2 1002.2014-10.07.2015 1841800 (123,000) 1718800 (56,000 - 1,662,800
2 0452810820155 7A10A
Tranche 3 1002.2014-10.07.2016 1841800 (123,000) 1718800 56,000 - 1,662,800
=4 0452810821657 A 108
Tranche 4 1002.2014-10.07.2017 1841800 (123,000) 1718800 (56,000 - 1,662,800
Fmit 04F28108Z 01757 A 108
Tranche 5 10022014-1007.2018 1,841,800 (123,000) 1718800 (56,000 - 1,662,800
ERii WHAFIRI0BEWI8ETR10R
9207000 (6150 8592000 (280000 - 8312000

34471000 (615,000) 33,856,000 280,000) - 33,576,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 13,541,200 20,144,800
RRSHRA TR

Note: ik
(@  5(2015:10) eligible participants, who have been granted share @  5&Q015F - 10%) ERBRENEERKS
options have ceased to become eligible participants upon %R\%E{Eﬁﬁﬁ%&TﬁﬁAﬁﬁ S - ﬁ'ﬁ
termination of employment and the said share options have BB E S B Bh kAR o

automatically lapsed.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO

= A B+ A7 23
e B R AR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

31. BRETEI(E)
() ERABEBEABRESE(E)
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Share Option Scheme are as follows: RS -

Number of Fair value

Date share options Exercise per share

of grant granted Exercise period price option

SHERE

Eda=h REBREHSE TS TEE ZAYE

HKS HKS

BIT BIT

Tranche 1 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2014-10.07.2019 0.74 041
E—#t 20142 A 10H 20147108 %
20197 A 10H

Tranche 2 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2015-10.07.2019 0.74 043
it 201482 A10H 2015F 7108
201947108

Tranche 3 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2016-10.07.2019 0.74 045
F=4t 201492 A 108 2016%F7R8108E
201957 H 108

Tranche 4 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2017 -10.07.2019 0.74 047
Uik 2014% 2 A 10H 20177108 E
20197 108

Tranche 5 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2018-10.07.2019 0.74 048
ERH 20142 F10H 20187 H10AE

The fair value of the share options at the grant date,
calculated using the Binomial Model is approximately
HKS$15,662,000.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date 10 February 2014
Number of share options 34,903,000
Share price HK$0.96
Risk-free rate 0.46%
Expected volatility 47.82%
Time-to-maturity 541 years

The risk-free rate is based on Hong Kong Dollar Sovereign
Curve obtained from Bloomberg.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
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The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using five
comparable companies’ historical volatility quoted by
Bloomberg. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised a total expense of HK$2,337,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$3,808,000) in
relation to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the
Company.

The number of share options granted expected to vest has
been reduced to reflect historical experience of forfeiture of
23% (2015: 19%) of options granted prior to completion of
vesting period and accordingly the share option expense
has been adjusted. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit
and loss over the remaining vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was conditionally
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to the eligible participants with
an opportunity to acquire the equity interests in the
Company, for their contributions to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interest of the Group or for such other
purposes as the board of directors of the Company may
approve from time to time, linking their interests with the
interests of the Group and thereby attracting and
encouraging those parties to work better for the interests of
the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the directors of the Company, will contribute or
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any particular share option granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the directors of
the Company in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price shall at least be the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
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(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at the Listing
Date (without taking into account any shares that may be
issued upon the full exercise of the options granted
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme), being
165,000,000 Shares (“Option Limit"). Options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Option Limit. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company, the Company may refresh
the Option Limit at any time provided that (i) the Option
Limit as refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the approval by the
shareholders of the Company; and (ii) the options previously
granted (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the provisions of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme or exercised options) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Option Limit as refreshed.
The Company may also, with the approval of the
shareholders of the Company, grant share options in
respect of shares of the Company in excess of the Option
Limit (as refreshed from time to time) to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval
is sought.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group at any time shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares
of the Company from time to time. No share options shall
be granted under any schemes of the Company (including
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period up to the date of offer to grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of offer
to grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

In addition, any grant of share options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any
of their respective associates is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is proposed to be
an option holder). If the Company proposes to grant share
options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive director of the Company or their respective
associates which will result in the number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of share
options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of offer of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and having an aggregate
value in excess of HKS5 million, based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of offer of each grant,
such further grant of share options will be subject to, in
addition to the approval of the independent non-executive
directors, the approval of shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

No share option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
has been granted during both years.
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. EXERERE
The management of the Group manages its capital to ensure that AREBEREAERNEBE TNEEENEET
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BERAMEBREEAR  WHBABEFEEZS B
while maximising the return to shareholders through the BERETE  AREFEHE ALK AER
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall BRI EEFAR -
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of unsecured bank AREBE RSB BRIEN 2T E A EIXIFRIT
borrowings disclosed in note 29, cash and cash equivalents, and EBER - BEeNBELEBYRANARES A
equity attributable to the owners of the Company, comprising =5 (BRI - FiERERERA) -
share capital, reserves and retained profits.
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a AEBEEETHEMNEALER - EAEMZ—
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group Hp o KREFESHEBEZEESKARNERZEES
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each AR WEHBGEE T8 A K2 EE R4
class of capital, and takes appropriate actions to balance its overall BIEL FE -
capital structure.
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. €@T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) 2RMIAENSSE
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables (including cash B K EWE (BEREe &
and cash equivalents) INEEEY) 906,810 964,339
Financial liabilities THaE
Amortised cost BEEHACAR 1,036,875 446,733

186

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bills receivables, pledged bank deposits,
structured bank deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bills payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
certain of these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings
(see notes 26 and 29 for details of these balances) due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group currently does not have a policy on hedging interest
rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the fixed-rate bank deposits and bank
borrowings (see notes 26 and 29 for details of these
balances). However, management considers the fair value
interest rate risk is insignificant as they are relatively short-
term.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank deposits
and bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
that the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. 25 basis point and 50 basis point increase or decrease
represent the management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates of bank deposits and bank
borrowings, respectively. Based on the sensitivity analysis,
the directors of the Company consider that the impact to
profit or loss for the respective years is insignificant.

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a formal
foreign currency hedging policy but will use foreign
currency contracts to hedge against the risk when it is
foreseen to be significant.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. €I E(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HBEMEENBEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) TR ()
Foreign currency risk (Continued) S B (#8)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and AEBRESHREHR  USEEEBHNE
monetary liabilities (excluding inter-company balances) BRI EBTENEREEREKAE
denominated in currencies other than the respective group (TEEEERAREGAR) MEEEAEDT ¢

entities’ functional currencies at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 F 20154 2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
THERT TFHBT THET T
HKS BT 16,761 10,444 - -
RMB AR 191 51,840 = -
uss ETT 129,254 104,384 202,152 56,507
In addition, inter-company balances denominated in foreign AN REREKR  UZEEERAIEE
currencies other than the respective group entities’ f?ﬁ%%ﬁl\ﬂ’j@l\ﬂ%ﬁlJ@m%lW Bk 30
functional currencies at the end of each reporting period T~
are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 F 20154 2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THBT THET THET
HKS ATT 88,057 - 765,937 202,368
RMB AR 19,401 63 82,489 -
uss ETT 766,776 597,988 19,574 201,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Subsidiaries of the Company carry out most of the
transactions denominated in HKS, RMB or US$ and the
Group is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange risk arising
from these currencies when they are different from the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. Under
the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact
arising from changes in exchange rates between HK$ and
USS is not expected to be significant and therefore, the
corresponding sensitivity analysis is not prepared.

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in HKS, RMB or USS against
the functional currencies of the respective group entities.
5% is the sensitivity rate used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency rate. A positive (negative)
number indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

33. 2T A (&)

(b) HIBEBREENEERBE(E)

S E R ()

SR (AE)

BURE DT

RRBEMBRRIETNBRE DR B TIA
BT ARBHETTAHE - EXFERAER
REEEBEBNIEERR  A&ETER
Pt G E R SNE BB o AR SR B B B K
€ - TRHIR BB T E R T R B gy A A B
BRELTEX - B I I 4R B I8 ) BUR
BT

THBREDMFEAEEEET - AR
FETHEAEEERNEESTHELE
TES%E’Jii’ E o FTAS%BRE LR RER
BHINEIERSIR R L E BTG o E(B)
%@\%/T\/BTE AE%D&%TEP@*HE@%IE%&T
B T 8E & 5 TTE 5% B 4 O RR B A& A48 hn
ORA) - BT - ARBRETABEEE

for the year when HKS, RMB or US$ strengthen 5% against BREMNNEEEIES%ME * FRKRIA
the functional currencies of the respective group entities. HEAGZHEEEERMEE -
For a 5% weakening of HKS, RMB or USS, there would be an
equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year.
2016 2015
2016 F 2015 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
HKS BT (26,420) (8,013)
RMB AR (2,626) 2,167
Uss$ e 30,478 20,529
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is BERERA  FARAMERTEEREFARR

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures over the customers to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The management of the Group considers that the Group's
credit risk in relation to sales made at concession counters is
limited as the Group only operates concession counters in
leading and reputable department stores. For international
and export sales, the customers are mainly leading retailers
in the US and the credit risk is not expected to be significant
by the management. In case of any disputed sales, the
Group will closely monitor and may consider making
adjustments to sales for any returned or defective goods.
For other customers, the management closely monitors
settlement status and regularly updates their credit profile
to ensure that the Group's credit risk is properly managed.
For customers in the PRC, the Group would accept bills as
alternate settlement means to reduce the exposure of credit
risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to its
trade receivables as follows:

o A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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33. 2T A (&)

MEAREENERREE(E)

FEmA (&)

IAKENE S REFIAN S - AREEER
MEREERRIT :

2016 2015
2016 F 2015 4
Amount due from the largest debtor as a EREKNEHARIBLE S
percentage to total trade receivables JEWRIEARFER B DL 8% 17%
Total amounts due from the five largest BN A REFARBLE(EE S
debtors as a percentage to total trade FEUGIABTEN B D
receivables 22% 34%
The Group keeps exploring new customers to diversify and NEBTEERHEZE  NEFLEEAE

strengthen its customer base to reduce the concentration
of credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds, pledged, structured and fixed
banks deposits is limited because majority of the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

B EPER  (tMEEEFEERR -

RBES  BER - BRERERRITER
MEERBRER A/AZHEFIHRE
BEEMRT

B ELmE

REERPESERE - AEESERIL K
BeMReEFEMRREEEERRENAR
AEENEHLERTESMRERSRE
KENREHIKYE - BIEEGERRITERN
ERBR - LHERETERIZY -

TERHAVNAEECRABBENHRTENFHD
T o RERRAKE R ZRAKH KT A BN
CRABEAMARSRERE - LEE A
BARREBREEGEFNBRITERTIF AR
R - MAmIRTTES AJREEEBEITERE
MR - HMIETAE SR B ENRHA DT
TRETEE MEE B RS -

o

191

2016 FF3H



SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

I\IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B BHRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

33. M I B (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BKEMREEMBERBEEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE(E)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To THREFIFERAEGRENRE - HAE B
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the EE)FE - RBLIRIR S RERIIR RS B R A9 F
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the Rt
end of the reporting period.
Liquidity tables MEE D H
Weighted  On demand Total
average  orlessthan 1-3  3monthsto 1-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months 1year years  cashflows amounts
RER RER
mETENE FPR-BEA 12388 3fERE1% 1255 RERELE REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
% TR TR TR TR TET TERT
At31December2016 201612 831H
Trade and other payables & 5 R E M BT R - 419,257 54,886 403 - 474,546 474,546
Bills payables [HPES - 10,622 61,665 13,146 - 85,433 85,433
Bank borrowings RITER
- variable-rate — FBE 2.74 229,454 6,542 46,305 89,929 372,230 366,293
- fixed rate —EEFIR 4.49 408 31,391 81,495 - 113,294 110,603
659,741 154,484 141,349 89,929 1,045,503 1,036,875
At31December2015 #2015 1231R
Trade and other payables & 5 R EL [ 30A - 150,344 71868 4487 - 226699 226699
Bills payables eSS - 14,00 20038 25,255 - 59493 59493
Bank borrowings RITfEH
- variable-rate — 3 HF|& 243 143,743 179 17,298 - 161,220 160,541
308,287 92,085 47040 - 447412 446,733
The amounts included above for variable interest rate B H R (LN B E IR E TR R E
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject B B i IEATE S RBGBR ISR TAENS
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those e ) o
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause while the
scheduled repayment dates are over one month are also
included in the “on demand or less than T month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$129,333,000 (2015:
HK$42,660,000). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment.

The directors of the Company believe that the principal and
interest will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$135,540,000.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

33. 2T A (&)

(b)

(c)

HBEBREENBRRBEK(F)

mBEZEE (E)
HBERK (E)

BEEBEREREEEIMBEREEBSHAE—
& A LA L& IRIT RN Bl BIHR B 5 45T
ATRERSFADR—EA] OFME - R
2016%12)%315 ZERITERO KRR
K & 48 F 512933300078 JT(2015%4 ¢

42,660000/%7t) EEN RSB B ISRR

ARBINESRABEBBRITAATREGITFEER
WiEEE Sk BMEZE A -

ARBEFMRE A2 RAERERRE
AR FAEERAHREE - 8 —ir N

&M N H BIR €7 A 135,540,000 8 7T ©

AT
SRAEREMA BN AT ENRERRR
SIREBHIE—RARHBRXEE -

ARREERRRBHR ARG E P BEHRER
AN EREENERBENREEREER
FEEL -
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

194

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(a)

Acquisition of Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co., Ltd.

On 19 February 2016, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
"Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Jiaming, an
independent third party of the Group. Pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Liu Jiaming agreed to sell 51% of the equity
interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co., Ltd. (B EBFT 85
#“BHMHR A7) (“"Chengdu Xingang”), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, and is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of polyurethane
foam, sales of decorative materials, sofa materials, cloth
materials and mattress materials. The cash consideration of
the acquisition is RMB81,740,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$97,948,000). The acquisition was
completed on 1 March 2016.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$390,000 that related to the above acquisition have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year, included in
"other expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

W B B X B

BZE2016F12A31BLEEE

(a)

WIB R ER R BB AE B R 2 B]

B2016F 28198 - AR F—HEEEZEN
BARHERPLE (REBRNBILE=H)
AW ERE((WEBHE]) - BREKER
FALREAKGRERARBELERE N
EREF B ERERAT ([REBFB)51%
R HeE - BCERETE AR BRI E R AR
FERBLEERBERRIARARIBEESR
SRR D EYIEL - R RIRIEMRL ST o
WEEEMNRSREAARS,7400007T
(& B #997,94800078 7T ) » U B8 £ 18 R
201693 8 1H5EMK °

Uiz % A8 B AR AR 49390,000 78 o 2 it IR BE A
B BB APREE  THRAFERER
BRY  sFAGABREREMEERERA
I EMRES ] EE -

RUEFERHRE c EERER CBEWT -

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid lease payments

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

Taxation payable
Bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

HK$'000

T
WE -~ BB R 88,742
"EYHE 62,049
FERNHEERIA 49,238
5E 25,405
B 5 N E A R U EIR 24,569
RITHEBRIRE 49,890
B 5 RHMERFRIE (38,149)
FESBITR (21 2)
RITIER (59,915)
EEMRIEBE (60,486)

141,131
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(a)

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

W BB BB 2 ] (42)

BZE2016F12A31HIEFEE (&)

Acquisition of Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co., Ltd. (a) WEBRAEH BEHEERAT(E)
(Continued)
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of 2 5 REAEYFIENYE A BN AT ER
acquisition amounted to HK$24,569,000. The gross 245690007870 - RMUREE HHEE - E WE M
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables EEB S NEMERTENEESENESES
acquired amounted to HK$25,006,000 at the date of 25,006,000 7T » FAFHESEKBEIH S AR €
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the mERNIEE B EIR REET A 437,000/ 7T °
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is
HK$437,000.
Gooadwill arising on acquisition: U E A AP

HK$’000

FHET

Consideration transferred DEEMRE 97,948
Plus: Non-controlling interests (Note) o JEERRRE RS (PfEE) 69,154
Less: Net assets acquired W2 FEE (141,131)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE e 25,971

Note: The non-controlling interests (49%) recognised at the acquisition
date was measured by the fair value of the proportionate share
of recognised amounts of net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Chengdu Xingang
because the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Chengdu
Xingang. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

FeE ‘EW&Z%EIHHEE L2 FFFE IR 2R (49%) TH 4R B B
RUBEEFESHEEIGLI 2 AFEFE

WA BMEE ZHEHRRAHE
AR EREERERHBRME - WA
BE - RKMHERMKEBNEZERBATF
ZHEMDE - XM@Y E R AR
R REIAR G A #AI B A E 2 ERIT
# o

JEEBL R B E L BB A BEHRR A
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

196

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co., Ltd.
(Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

W B B BB X B (48

BZE2016F12A31 HIEEFEE(E)

Wi R BB RT B SRR B R 4 B (48)

WEREE A RN SR 58

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration RERE 97,948
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTESR AR (49,890)
48,058

Included in the profit for the year is HK$3,604,000
attributable to Chengdu Xingang. Revenue for the year
includes HK$143,171,000 attributable to Chengdu Xingang.

Had the acquisition of Chengdu Xingang been effected at
the beginning of the year, the total amount of revenue of
the Group for the year would have been HK$3,517,166,000,
and the amount of the profit for the year would have been
HK$97,244,000. The aforesaid information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘aforesaid’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Chengdu Xingang been acquired at the
beginning of the year, the directors calculated depreciation
and amortisation of property, plant and equipment based
on the recognised amounts of property, plant and
equipment at the date of the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(b)

Step acquisition of Dormeo North America, LLC

On 9 September 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a first securities purchase agreement
(the “First Purchase Agreement”) with, among others,
Dormeo North America, LLC ("Dormeo”), a company
formed as a limited liability company pursuant to the
Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, to acquire 36.5% of
all of the membership interest in Dormeo at an aggregate
cash consideration of United States dollars ("US$")
10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,500,000). Pursuant to the
First Purchase Agreement, the Group’s membership interest
in Dormeo is initially set at 36.5%, but will be automatically
reduced to 25% at 31 December 2017 if certain
performance warranties given by the investee and its parent
company are met (“Possible Reduction”).

On 11 April 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a second securities purchase
agreement (the “Second Purchase Agreement’) with,
among others, Dormeo, to increase the Group's ownership
in Dormeo by an additional 14.81% and to waive the
Possible Reduction pursuant to First Purchase Agreement
for a cash consideration of US$2,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,375,000) by way of capital injection to Dormeo.

The acquisition was completed on 12 April 2016. Together
with the 25% membership interest previously held by the
Group and the 11.5% membership interest gain on the
waiver of Possible Reduction, the Group is able to exercise
control over Dormeo and Dormeo became a 51.31%
subsidiary of the Company from that date.

Dormeo is principally engaged in the business of selling
pillows, mattresses and related bedding accessories and
other consumer products in North America.

The Group recognised a net loss of approximately of
HKS$10,100,000 as a result of the re-measurement of
membershlp interests in Dormeo previously held and the
derivative financial assets related to membership interests in
Dormeo upon waiver of Possible Reduction. The net loss is
included in “Net loss on derecognition of an associate” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

W B B BB X B (48

BZE2016F12A31HIEFEE (&)

(b)

7 B ER I 7 Dormeo North America, LLC

R2015F9A9H » ARAI2 BB AR H(E
fhE84E) Dormeo North America, LLC ([ Dormeo |)
(—MRBEBENEMBRABVEKILHAER
EAARDRIVENESBER(( BB
EmE ) IR £ 48R E100000003% T
(I &7 ]) (A& ®775000007% 7T ) W BB
Dorme036 5% 2 BRI - RIEEDIEE W

» NEE B H Dormeo ) I R IE 25 S ¥ E B

36.5% @ 18 fﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ"ﬂ%iﬂjz**
FTRAOREBEEETR  BIER2017F12 A 31

H EEJJ%J/)EXiZS%(F—J‘E“ééJBﬁJ)

R2016F4811H  ARFI—EE2EHBA
FE (EFREIE)Dormeos] L E —HE 5
EHR((E-REE®HZE]) - LM Dormeo
JEE B 2 HE NN 5 B B Dormeo B RE SN
BE14831% KR ENEE S TARTAEE]
B R & B A25000003k T #HE R
19,375,000 7T) ©

WHEETER 2016 4 H 12 B FERK © ERIA &
] 5 B 45 A B 25% it K 38 52 PT SR EIRL £ 15
B 115%kiE BZAR AEEERE
Dormeo Hy 1% %U%&Dormeoﬁffﬁﬁ Bk
S5131% E=AMEA

Dormeo = ER ERILEMEEEFLEE K2
T AR RE IR SRS LA R B o SR EE T o

A& B A EHFE 5 A FTH A 8 Dormeo i%
1 N2 Fh G 7] BE Bl R £ B B Dormeo IR #E B9 DT
4 SR E E R IE 185 58 49 10,100,000 7
7_5 EEFHEOGAGZEER &ﬁmiﬁuﬁl

IR [ 4% ETERR — B & A RIS 185058
IHE o
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

198

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(b)

Step acquisition of Dormeo North America, LLC
(Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$286,000 that related to the above acquisition have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year, included in
"other expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

W B B BB X B (48

BZE2016F12A31 HIEEFEE(E)

(b)

7 B R 14 58 Dormeo North America, LLC(#&)

Uiz B AR B AR AR 49 286,000 78 7T 2 e BE A
B BB ATRRRE - R AFEER
BREY  stAGABFEREMEEmKEGERA
B [EMAS ] TEE -

RBER B 2 EERER ZBENT -

HKS$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment Vs - BERERE 7,116
Intangible assets mEE 148,252
Inventories FE 4,057
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H M EWGRIE 15,133
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHREIRS 12,357
Trade and other payables E 5 N E MR RIR (47,887)
Bank borrowings RITER (26/431)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIAEE (51,888)
60,709
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of B NHEMEWGIERKEBH RO RAFEES

acquisition amounted to HK$15,133,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables
acquired amounted to HK$23,116,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is
HK$7,983,000.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(b)

Step acquisition of Dormeo North America, LLC

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

W BB BB 2 ] (42)

BZE2016F12A31HIEFEE (&)

7 B R 14 5% Dormeo North America, LLC(#&)

(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: Wi E R A -
HK$’000
F#ET
Consideration transferred by way of capital injection PUFE R REENRE 19,375
Derivative financial assets related to membership FAR A] RE IR 1Z B2 A Dormeo B AR BR #E 2
interests in Dormeo upon waiver of Possible Reduction B HEEISTAE SR EZE 15,045
Fair value of membership interests in Dormeo RULEERTH Dormeo 358 B IR SR 2 Y
held before the acquisition 32,706
67,126
Plus: Non-controlling interests (Note) hn o SEdERR R (M 5E) 30,046
Less: Net assets acquired W W2 FEE (60,709)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIS E A P8 36,463

Note: The non-controlling interests (48.69%) recognised at the
acquisition date was measured by the fair value of the
proportionate share of recognised amounts of net assets
acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Dormeo because the
cost of combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Dormeo.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

BRE - PO MRS F B RR 2 SR IR AR ME 25 (48.69%) IR 2
HEREBEEFESREMELIZAFER

=
= °

W Dormeo FTEA ZE BTV HRMEHE

B NRERIEEHEEBRBRE - HﬁU\
BR - RRMHERE K Dormeo 2 ZEEAF
Zﬁf'ili%"ﬁ"ﬁx—rﬂ SR B EEERE

R AEW AR Al BRI B E E 2 R
LE o

TE AR A A A A 7 B T R VRSB  R
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

(b)

200

Step acquisition of Dormeo North America, LLC

(Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

W B B BB X B (48

BZE2016F12A31 HIEEFEE(E)

7 B R 14 58 Dormeo North America, LLC(#&)

WEREE A RN SR 58

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration RERE 19,375
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTESR AR (12,357)
7,018

Since step acquisition, included in the profit for the year is
loss of approximately HK$41,407,000 and revenue for the
year includes approximately HK$112,929,000 attributable to
Dormeo.

Had the acquisition of Dormeo been effected at the
beginning of the year, the total amount of revenue of the
Group for the year would have been approximately
HK$3,536,062,000, and the amount of the profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$65,605,000. The
aforesaid information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

In determining the ‘aforesaid’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Dormeo been acquired at the beginning of the
year, the directors calculated depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment based on the recognised
amounts of property, plant and equipment at the date of
the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(c)

Acquisition of Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd.

On 23 January 2015, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
"Acquisition Agreement”) with Mil-ton Company Limited
("Mil-ton”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and wholly owned by a connected person of
the Group, and Chori Co,, Ltd. ("Chori"), an independent
third party incorporated in Japan with limited liability whose
shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc.. Pursuant
to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group conditionally
agreed to acquire and Mil-ton and Chori conditionally
agreed to sell respectively 60% and 40% of the equity
interest in Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd. (& B
K 4 B R 2 7)) (‘Shanghai Luen Tai"), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, and principally
engaged in the processing, manufacturing and is sales of
polyurethane foam and products including mattress, sofa
and pillows. The cash consideration of the acquisition was
RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,519,000) and RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,679,000), to Mil-ton and Chori,
respectively. The acquisition was completed on 1 April 2015.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,014,000
related to the acquisition had been excluded from the cost
of acquisition and had been recognised as an expense in
2015, included in “other expenses” in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

= A B+ A7 23
e B R AR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

34. WEEMIB AR (&)

BZE2015F12A31BLEEE

(c)

Wig L EHABHERA A

MR2015F1A23H - ARFIEEZEHBA
REBEFRAR(BR] (—ERESTE
MR ERAR  WHAEE—ZEEA
TEREHE) KBRS ([RE]) (B
F=F —HREBAEMRZOBRAF
HBROGREREBEFR B L) ] LK #
#(WEHR) - BEKERZE  ~588
BERERERBRRERES A IKERE
HE BB ASRAERAR ([ EEBALD S
60% K% 40% A% 7 o K A — R R BIAK
SNHAERAR  WEBYEMNT - £EKRE
ERRRARER(BEFKRR - DRI
5H) o WEEIR S NRE A AR 21,0000007T (48
B #726,519,0007%8 70 ) K& A R # 14,000,000
TL(HBERH17,679000 7T ) 2 I EN T 8
RRRIE o WHEEIETIA2015F4 A1 HFE/K ©

U B8 A BE A A5 1,014,0008 T BB IN BB B IE B
B8 2B HIBR - W 2015 FHER
BN FFABBPSRG B M EM 2K
KA [EMMAY]ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. WEKHIEB AT (£2)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Continued) BZ2015F12A318LEE(H)

(c) Acquisition of Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd. (c)
(Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

Wi EISBA G ER A A (E)

REERHRE WENEEREERNBEN
T

HKS$'000

THT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE REE 6,884
Inventories rE 26,211
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EWGRIE 67,027
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIIRE 1,012

Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERFRIE (29,873)

Taxation payable FERTRRIE (544)

Bank and other borrowings 1T R E A BN (26,519)
44,198

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$67,027,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables
acquired amounted to HK$70,489,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to HK$3,462,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd.

= A B+ A7 23
e B R AR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

34. WEEMIB AR (&)

BZE2015F12A31HIEFEE(E)

(c) WHELEEHASHEERLA(E)

(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEE AR E
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred HEIERE 44,198
Less: Net assets acquired at provisional fair value B RERATEREFEE (44,198)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W ES EE A Ry PR -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEE A MRS FEE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration RENRE 44,198
Less: Bank balances and cash W IRITHESBREIRE (1,012)
43,186

Included in the profit for the year is HK$7,206,000
attributable to Shanghai Luen Tai. Revenue for the year
includes HK$64,190,000 is attributable to Shanghai Luen Tai.

Had the acquisition of Shanghai Luen Tai been effected at
the beginning of the year, the total amount of revenue of
the Group for the year would have been HK$108,782,000,
and the amount of the profit for the year would have been
HK$8,662,000. The aforesaid information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘aforesaid’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Shanghai Luen Tai been acquired at the
beginning of the year, the directors calculated depreciation
and amortisation of plant and equipment based on the
recognised amounts of plant and equipment at the date of
the acquisition.

BB K FE A5 #9 7,206,000 7T 5T A A
A o F YA B FE _E RS K E 1 #9 64,190,000
BT o

il B BB AN FEANBE TR - BIAEEF
UL A 4858 A 108,782,000/8 7T © FAREHF A
8,662,000/ 7T o Lt ERHEMFAE - R pA]
REMBERFVIETKOBRATAEEE
B EBRMIRARGEZEE  TMEEKNAR
REFEWTEA o

RETE LBBARFNEWE 2 Bl AREE
Yeas RO FIEs - AEBERERE B SR
5 N Rz 2B ERE MR RE R
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B ZE 20164 12 H31 HIFEE

35. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

35, ReEHE

REBBEEA

RIESR - NREBAR A HHLEHEAE
ARFEBEEFR RS TAREGEEERENT
HIERWT

2016 2015

2016 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTExT FABT

Within one year —FR 77,272 58,671
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF (BIEEEMS) 132,386 121,590
Over five years BERF 80,084 83,922
289,742 264,183

Included above are the following lease payments committed to a
fellow subsidiary of the Company:

VA PRk s T Bl R AN 2 R A 5 BB 1 B A )
ER0E ¢

2016 2015

2016 F 20154F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Within one year —&FR 18,063 18,963
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EERIF(BIEEEMSE) 17,823 37,926
35,886 56,889

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for the retail stores, offices, factory, staff quarters and warehouses.
Leases are negotiated for initial terms ranging from one to ten
years.

Certain retail stores include payment obligations with rental varied
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable (contingent
rents) is determined generally by applying pre-determined
percentages to actual sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases. It is not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such
contingent rents payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B E20169F12A31 HIEFE
OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 35. REWE(E)
The Group as lessor AEBHEBEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted MNEMHEEAR » NEFE N RKERERERA
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: BRI AR -
2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Within one year —FR 7,801 6,274
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZERF(REEEMF) 11,560 6,307
Over five years BB AF ol 1,719
27,537 14,300

The amounts represent rentals receivable by the Group for the
leasing of unutilised factories and warehouses classified as
investment properties. Leases are generally negotiated for initial
terms ranging from a few months to three years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at a rate of 5% specified in
the rules, but subject to a cap. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

36.

ZETBEHEERNASERHEESBARENE
MAERTIHERBENEKES - HOFHTIK
BREET XN FEEAZEMFELE -

RIRBRIGFE

REBHELESHEGD AEERMBEER
AEREE2ERHMEAES (BRI -
BEDENEERAAKREER LZEAZST
MESEENRRA - RIEBBESFERL - &
T REREBED IR OIZTR 5% Rt EIHR
BRAELR -AEBEEERESTENE—FB
ARIRFBIE L FTZA MR - W EBOL WHFKAT A
PAFIRUR 2K 6 FZ e R L3R o

RPBEZENEE RTERFEENERERR
HRENETEIHKE - FEMBEARAREEAT
BMETADLRARKENEEIHEK - LARH
RHES - ARBEABERBENGENE R
ARARFT B L TSR o W EHOL W FKAT A
PAFOIR AR 2 6 FE A5 4K 3K o
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37. COMMITMENTS 37. &iE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, BRI ERAGA M IEHRREEN
plant and equipment contracted for but not ME BENMBRENE RS
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 32,510 107,978
38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38. BELKE
In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments BREFE VI BMRMBLENRS - SR RoFAEIN
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the REBEEM TIBEERRS
Group had entered into the following related party transactions:
Relationship with the Group Nature of transactions 2016 2015
ichiN e 1] RE XHEME 2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Fellow subsidiary of the Company Rental expenses 18,330 10,280
ZAN/NEEEO IS SN =N ikl
In addition, certain trademarks owned by fellow subsidiaries of the AN REERREFEAREERE TARF
Company were used by the Group free of charge during both B ZME A RHER B REIE -
years.
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEASHHE
The remuneration of directors and other member of key EENEMTETEEMENRERNTELNT
management during the reporting period was as follows:
2016 2015
2016 F 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FAT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 11,370 10,692
Performance related incentive payments BERRNES 1,200 3,126
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIREFIET B 156 201
Share based payment expense &1 AR X 1,772 2274
14,498 16,293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. AT B A TFE

COMPANY
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: AATMBATSBEET
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of share/
operations/ share capital/ registered registered/ quota capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/ quota capital held by the Group Principal activities
ELEAVE -V BRARARRE/ AEERERE/
WEAEEHE R AMERREELR EMER/ BEEFHLH TEXH
At 31 December
M12A318
2016 2015
2016F 20154
Directly owned
BEEHE
Treasure Range Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$27 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bl LER7ET REARR
Indirectly owned
EEEE
Ascension International Development Limited The BVI Ordinary shares USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEERERERAA HBATHE Ef e REZR
Fullelite Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEERAH RERNHE LER10%ET REER
Year Prosper Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEBRRA HBATHS EARI0ET REZER
Wonderful Health Limited The BV Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERNNE Ei@R10%ET REER
Trade Sincere Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$100 85% 85%  Investment holding
ZHAERRA HBATHS EBRI0ET REZER
Sinomax International Investment Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision of
treasury management services
EHRBERREERAA HBATHE EARI0ET REZRRRHIEERRE
Sinomax Health & Household Products Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Retail and wholesale of health and
household products
PREREREARERAR BiE L3RR 1,000,000 T TERMERRREER
Sinomax International Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of health and
household products
PREEREHERAA BiE LAk 10000 BRREERER
Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co, Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital RMB120,000,000 51% - Manufacture and sale of
(Notes 1.and 4) polyurethane foam
REFEBIRARAT (i1 R4) ik &R AR 120000000 7T SERHERRRAR
Dongguan Sinohome Limited (Note 3)* The PRC Registered capital HK$32,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of health and
household products
RREARERRBRAA(FE3) HE FEMER 320000007 WERHERRFRER
Shandong Sinomax Household Products and The PRC Registered capital RMB30,000,000 100% - Processing, manufacturing and sales
Technology Limited (Notes 2 and 3)* of polyurethane foam
WRERREHEBRAR (M2 R3) ik AR ARE 300000007 NI BERHERREOR
Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital RMB35,000,000 100% 100%  Processing, manufacturing and sales
Co, Ltd* (Notes 2 and 3) of polyurethane foam
HEBABRARAR (i 2R3) H AR AR 350000007 NI BERHERREOR
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B E2016F 12431 HILFE
39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. AR FIME QRIS (E
COMPANY (Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of share/
operations/ share capital/ registered registered/ quota capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/ quota capital held by the Group Principal activities
MY/ EE BRARMRRE/ AEERERE/
WERR AR R AMEARFEER EMER/ BEEAHLH TEEH
At 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
2016% 2WI5F
Sinohome Household Products The PRC Registered capital HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of health
(Shenzhen) Limited (Note 3)* and household products
EwFERm (R EBRAR (H3) HE &4 1,0000007% 7T TERMERRZREER
Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane Household The PRC Registered capital US$30,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of health
Products Limited (Note 3)* and household products
EREONDZEERERRERAG(HE3) +E 1 7230,000000% T WERHERRRRER
Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited The PRC Registered capital US$2,100,000 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of foam
(Note 4)* ("Sinomax Kuka’)
HIERBBEFERERAR e AR 2100000 7T BUE T HE R
(Mia) ((2HBER])
Haining Sinomax Trading Co, Ltd* (Note 4) The PRC Registered capital RMB1,000,000 51% 51% Trading of foam
(‘Haining Sinomax’)
BEEHREFERAD (Mika)(EREHRR)) & AR AR 10000007 WKEE
Sinomax Macao Commercial Offshore Limited Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
ERARMREEERGERAR household products
pls BRERRFIH 1000007 KEREREER
Sinomax USA, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
stock of no par value household products
Ei 10REEEEER BERRFEEM
Sinomax East, Inc. The US 1 share of common 100% 100%  Manufacture of health and
stock with no par value household products
Edi 1RERELER HERRFEEM
Dormeo North American, LLC (Note 5) The US Issued and fully paid share capital 51.31% 36.5%  Investment holding
US$50,481,560 (Note 6)
Dormeo North American, LLC (Bt 5) £8 BETREZRA50481560FT REER
(M)
Top Shop TV, LLC (Note 5) The US Issued and fully paid share capital 51.31% 36.5% Investment holding
US$42,103,890 (Note 6)
Top Shop TV, LLC (Bi3ES) E3eil BETRETZRA4,103890FT RERR
(Hizke)
Octaspring Operations US, Inc. (Note 5) The US 100 shares of common stock 51.31% 36.5% Manufacture and sales of health
of US$0.0001 par value and household products
Octaspring Operations US, Inc. (B 5) £8 100 R SR EE 00001 T LB WERHERTRAR
Octaspring US, Inc. (Note 5) The US 100 shares of common stock 51.31% 36.5%  Retail and wholesale of health
of US$0.0001 par value and household products
Octaspring US, Inc. (it 5) Edi 100 REREE 00001 ETLEER TERBERRREER
TSTV Canada Limited (Note 5) (Canada 1,000 shares of common stock 51.31% 36.5%  Retail and wholesale of health
of no par value and household products
TSTV Canada Limited (F{3£5) nEX 1000 B EAEEBR TERMEREZEER
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(1) This subsidiary was acquired in March 2016.

(2) This subsidiary was incorporated in November 2016.

3) The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprise.

4) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign equity joint
venture.

(5) This subsidiaries were acquired in April 2016.

(6) The amount represents the issued and fully paid share capital as at 31
December 2016.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting
periods.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only.

40. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

— A7
r e R R R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZFE 201612 H31 HIFEE

39. AQTEIMIE A RS (&)

e -

M  EMEA
Q EZMEBA
3) VNG|
(4 ZENT]

6  ZEBEAR

AR 2016 4F 3 AIEUEE -
AR 2016 F 11 AsEfAL -

LASNES I A (b ST S URER ©

ARSNGB B EZ A o

BNEIR 20166 4 AEURES -

20164 12 A 31 HE 1T RAUBIRA -

BLEAR DB B 2 RN E B RS i
BEFRKREESE

* EXEFER

#5

40. ERFERER

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
SRR LEER FERBRATHEAE PREFERER
WEATEH TEEEHY BERRRE 2R (B8) R FERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 20155 2016 F 20155 2016 20155
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TiER
Sinomax Kuka The PRC 51% 51% 15,350 12,006 50,347 37929
BREER i
Chengdu Xingang The PRC 51% - 1,438 - 94,204 -
& Fib i
Dormeo The US 51.31% 36.5%* (20,161) - 9.878 -
Dormeo Ede
Individually immaterial subsidiary
with non controlling interests 377 408
BRFERES Z
FEAMBR
154,806 38337
* Being the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2015. * R2015% 12 A31 BZ AREBEBZ QT
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40. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of Group'’s
subsidiaries that had material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before the elimination of intragroup transactions.

(@) Sinomax Kuka and its wholly owned subsidiary, (a) E

Haining Sinomax

40. EXRFEZERER ()

BERXNSEEHE

ERASEHRAERZERESNSHB AR MM
BEREREINT - ATHBEMFRIFEREK
HEEANZHAIZEHE -

2016 2015

2016 20156

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Current assets RENEE 137,831 113,464

Non-current assets ERBEE 11,738 13,813

Current liabilities mEAaE 46,820 49,871

Total equity iR 102,749 77,406
Total equity attributable to non-controlling  FEFEARME RS FE (R AE 25 4B 5E

interests 50,347 37,929

2016 2015

2016 2015

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET FHT

Revenue WA 416,293 334,876

Expenses X 384,967 310,374

Profit for the year F N F 31,326 24,502

Other comprehensive expense for the year RN E M 2 EFH X (6,309) (3,395)

Total comprehensive income for the year FREEM AL 25,017 21,107
Profit for the year attributable to FE1ZE e 25 FE A F s

non-controlling interest 15,350 12,006

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest M FEIE AR M 25 P ST P RO AR B - 7322

Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBIR S MAFRE 12,429 22,494

Net cash inflow from investing activities KREETHEESRAFE 1,096 2,039

Net cash outflow from financing activities & ERENRE SR FEE (934) (16,934)

Net cash inflow B mAFHE 12,591 7,599
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40. ERFERER (F

(Continued)
(b) Chengdu Xingang (b) FERETE

2016

2016

HK$’000

FET

Current assets mEBEE 93,908
Non-current assets EREEE 205,731
Current liabilities mEAG 51,083
Non-current liabilities EmEAE 56,303
Total equity iR 192,253
Total equity attributable to non-controlling interests SRR R e (G i e B R 94,204
2016

2016 F

HK$’000

FERT

Revenue WA 150,280
Expenses X 147,346
Profit for the year F 5 A 2,934
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEmMFS (8,339)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREMEMF X A% (5,405)
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interest  3E3%2 A 8 25 F& 1 45 03 K 1,438
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest M) FET2E AR M 2 P S AN O R B -
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEEEIR SR R (50,572)
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEEER ML FE (10,330)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEESHRE T RAERE 10,249
Net cash outflow We i FE (50,653)
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40. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  40. & KIFIRpRiEss (&

(Continued)

(c) Dormeo and its wholly owned subsidiaries

() DormeoXRHEZEME LT

Current assets mENEE 34,427
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 149,771
Current liabilities nBaE 113,622
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 50,288
Total equity AR 20,288
Total equity attributable to non-controlling interests FEIERR R e (G M e B R 9,878

Revenue WA 113,860
Expenses 3 154,336
(Loss) for the year FA(EE) (41,407)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FAHMEERS (635)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEEASLE (42,042)
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interest  3E3%2 B 18 25 & 1 45 03 K 20,161
Net cash inflow from operating activities LEEBRERAFHR 19,014
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEHHEE R FEE (148)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REEEIR S R FE (4,691)
Net cash outflow WML R (14,175)
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 January 2017 (the “Date of Grant’), the Company offered
to grant a total of 30,800,000 share options (the “Share Options”)
to the Directors and certain eligible employees of the Group (the
"Grantees’), subject to the acceptance of the Grantees and
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. The Grantees are entitled,
subject to the terms and conditions of grant and upon exercise, to
subscribe for a total of 30,800,000 new Shares in the capital of the
Company, representing approximately 1.76% of the 1,750,002,000
Shares in issue as at the Date of Grant. The exercises price is
HKS$0.69 per share.

All 30,800,000 Share Options are valid for a period of 5 years
commencing from the relevant vesting date and subject to the
following vesting periods:

(@) 50% of the Share Options granted to each Grantee shall vest
on the first anniversary date of the Date of Grant (i.e. 26
January 2018); and

(b)  50% of the Share Options granted to each Grantee shall vest
on the second anniversary date of the Date of Grant (i.e. 26
January 2019).

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

41. REHEREE

R2017F1 A2 B([BHEBH]) $’Aﬁﬁ$%
BEERATAERBEE(ABRADELAHR
30,800,000 17 FEARAE ([ BB AE ]) - MBS EAR AR
MR IRIEERERT S - FAEE - BERTE 2K
R RATEBRREER - ARAGERELRRD
A AR 30,800,000 BT AR - (h IR H HHEAE 31T
1,750,002,000 A% J& 19 49 1.76% ° 1T{EB AT 06975
5T o

30,800,000 BE R ¥ 2 BN HAM AR R B B HikE &
BisFERSFATRBEEBER :

@)  50%[A) & FERARL 2 BIREAR T*ﬁEIB;ﬁ
ZE—AF(EN20184F1 A26 B) &

(b) 509 [A) & A AL 2 AR EAR &L A
ZECEF(KR2019F1A26H) BB -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B ZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 42, KD Tz EER
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company RATZHBERRE

TOTAL ASSETS BmAE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZIEE 403,846 403,846
Other receivables H b fE U i T8 1,300 651
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EPNGIE S 478,048 293,782
(Bank overdraft) bank balances and cash (BRITEX)RITES LIRS (59) 102
883,135 698,381
TOTAL LIABILITIES FEY=N
Other payables E A 1,200 1,345
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANLRIENGIE - 51,768
Bank borrowings RITIE 100,000 -
101,200 53,113
NET ASSETS BEFE 781,935 645,268
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR R #E
Share capital i 175,000 175,000
Reserves (Note) ELACES) 606,935 470,268
TOTAL EQUITY TETRARER 781,935 645,268
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HZE2016F 1231 HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

42. RRBZHBER (F)

Note: B E

At1January 2015 R 201541 418 312677 &) 7,430 (38437) 281,665
Profit for the year FEREF| - - - 162,952 162,952
Dividend recognised as distribution 52 A 7 K 2 I8 (BisE13)

(note 13) - - - (70,000) (70,000)
Issue of shares (note 30(a)) TR (M 3E30()) 96,000 - - - 96,000
Cost of issuing new shares BEATHIRAD AR AR (4,157) - - - (4,157)
Recognition of share based payment — FEZRLARL 9 A ERE 2 B

expense - - 3,808 - 3,808
At 31 December 2015 2015912 A318 404,520 (5) 11,238 54,515 470,268
Profit for the year F A% F - - - 188,580 188,580
Dividend recognised as distribution RADIEZRE (M7E13)

(note 13) - - - (54,250) (54,250)
Recognition of share based TERUARG BEM 2 MR

payment expense - - 2,337 - 2,337
At 31 December 2016 M2016F 12 A31H 404,520 (5) 13,575 188,845 606,935
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SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEPHRE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated

AEEBERLEYRERFEAREERABHREH
BFEEERGEMHHREREIIMT -

financial statements is set out below:

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 & 20154 20144 20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT FHIT FHIT T
Revenue WA 3,499,762 2,869,846 2,683,408 2,369,539 1,971,495
Profit before tax B 7 BT i 110,978 244,439 246,867 189,578 154,676
Income tax expenses e (10,526) (59,763) (43,920) (44,545) (39,000)
Profit for the year FREF 100,452 184,676 202,947 145,033 115,676
Attributable to: THIALE -
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE Z S DN 103,525 172,674 194,393 135,761 108411
Non-controlling interest FEIEAR M 2 (3,073) 12,002 8,554 9,272 7,265
100,452 184,676 202,947 145,033 115,676
p; ==
ASSET AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 F 20154F 20144 20134 20124
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FHTT T FHTT
Total assets BEE 2,537,083 1,809,711 1,621,266 1,428,665 1,283,111
Total liabilities BeE (1,322,987) (713,022) (708,153) (853,400) (803,211)
Total equity iR 1,214,096 1,096,689 913,113 575,256 479,900
Attributable to THIAT R
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEN 1,059,290 1,058,352 876,320 540,271 455,010
Non-controlling interest FEIEAR M 2 154,806 38,337 36,793 34,985 24,890
1,214,096 1,096,689 913,113 575,256 479,900
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